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We attribute our achievements and breakthroughs to our dedicated team
at China XLX. The team is committed to uphold the vision with integrity,
discipline and strong commitment.
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Strong and healthy cash flow
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Company Profile
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Leading enterprise in the PRC chemical fertiliser industry
Largest single scale urea producer in the PRC

The most cost-effective urea producer in the PRC (Honourably

REMEIEITREEDRE
TR BERRERANKEEERD
EP B iR A AR e i) PR = A EE 7 (G

recognised as "Ammonia Energy Consumption Leader” for five BLFREGEKARNERER
consecutive years) HJJ:%J AT

New/High Tech Enterprise in the PRC (enjoying preferential income PR SFEMEE(ZX15% KEE
tax rate of 15%) FriSii®)

The first producer mastering the production of control release urea FEE -—REBZERRZEESFH
production patented technology in the PRC BreEERE

China XLX was incorporated with limited liability on 17 July 2006 in
Singapore under the Companies Act, with its registered office at 80
Robinson Road, #02-00, Singapore 068898. The Group's headquarters
and principal place of business is located in Xinxiang Economic and
Technological Development Zone, Henan Province, the PRC. In terms of
capacity and efficiency, the Group is now one of the largest and most cost-
efficient coal-based urea producers in the PRC, aiming to become “the most

FRELELNERZZZERNFLATEHR
BRARLNEEF MK BRAR
RN &) B 9% =5 BE A2 4 80 Robinson Road,
#02-00, Singapore 068898 ° 7N 5 B 48 EF &
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respected enterprise in the chemical fertiliser industry inthe PRC' The X4 EMz— BEEAR[TEESZE
principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the principal ~ EM{LIELEEE | - ARG F B XK
activities of its principal subsidiary, namely Henan XLX, are research and ~ ARIREZER - MEFEMB R DI mEOE
development, manufacturing, sales of urea, compound fertiliser, methanol, DREBEBRARE - EAKE - FiE B
furfuryl alcohol, vehicle urea, melamine and related differentiated products. B~ BAKE - = BERKIEEEZE(LE

Currently, its annual production capacity of urea, compound fertiliser and
methanol are 2,600,000 tons, 1,850,000 tons and 300,000 tons, respectively.
China XLX has been listed on the Main Board of the SEHK since 8 December
2009 with stock code “1866".

1

Focus on coal-based urea
production for 40+ years

SRR R

Geographic and logistics
advantages to benefit

MR AE - HE - BRIBARESF
EERE 2608 MR - A MEFERE 185 BHAR
FEFERE30EME - FREILELEZZTTN
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Prudent dividend policy
(e DI NIE

FIKEAREEESES from the agricultural
404F reforms mapped out in

the 13th Five Year Plan
BAMBANYRES
SENtZREENS

Committed and experienced Obvious cost leadership

Well established agricultural

Traditional sales + agricultural

management team and loyal AR 1B S AR A service team and perfect e- commerce channel
staff who hold 65% equity distribution network EHEE+ REERER
interest in the Company BEE R ELREEK &
EERTNEREENE TEE M E AL

BEKEBHHET
BEIFA AR RTE] 65% A
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corporate Informatlon
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Financial Highlights
MBEHE
RESULTS PERFORMANCE EERR
2015 2016 Change (%)
(RMB million) (AREBEBET) 2015F & 2016 £ & [ b B2 (%)
Revenue WA 5,788 5,711 (13)
Cost of sales HENA (4,465) (4,687) 50
Gross profit E7 1323 1,024 (226)
Profit before tax FRA AT ) 478 40 (91.6)
Income tax expense FriSHiF = (70) (11) (84.3)
Net profit HEF 408 29 (929)
Basic and diluted earnings per share TR K HEE AT 34.76 2.56 (92.6)
(RMB cents) (AREES)
Dividend per share (RMB cents) BRRE(ARESD) 830 4.00 (51.8)
Gearing ratio (%) BRBEE %) 71.20 71.16 ©.1)
I
REVENUE BREAKDOWN BY SEGMENT PEERBA

FY2016 FY2015
® Urea @® Methanol Compound fertiliser @ Other
K& iz BEE HAth
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18 JANUARY

The Group launched nitro compound fertiliser products
named “B#%" and "#HH%" The introduction of
new products is the Group's result of low-cost and
differentiation development strategy, which also better
meets the demand of agricultural customised specific
fertiliser.

AEEBEIEHS)IRCEEEOWERSIRER  FESR
WL RASEERANERCBERBBOES
LASE 473t 2 2 2 M ML B RIAE M B SR ©

2 A FEBRUARY

“Full Team Charge and Win 2016" (%2 8 JinZk - 525 2016)
marketing work conference of the Group was successfully
held.

AREE [ 2 EINR - RE 2016 HHTIERHKRD AR - A

3 A MARCH

The Group's second phase of water-soluble fertiliser
project in Xinjiang was commenced successfully, which
further enhances production capacity and profitability.
ANEREAL TR NRIE Z B A KD - #— SR
EREREFEES
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48 APRIL

Henan XLX won the Grand Slam during the “2015
China Nitrogen Fertiliser Enterprise Top 20" (20154
FEAARD2058) hosted by the China Nitrogen
Fertiliser Industry Association, and was recognised as
“2015 National Nitrogen Fertiliser Enterprises Top 20
Urea Production” (2015 F2BARPEREZES
2058), “2015 National Nitrogen Fertiliser Enterprises
Top 20 Ammonia Energy Production” (20154
ZERIPEAREEE205) and “2015 National
Nitrogen Fertiliser Enterprises Top 20 Total Profit” (2015
F2EAAEMEEFHLREE203%). The Group's product
differentiation development strategy and results were
recognised.

AELEOEPBEAETEBE N 205 FhEARE
¥2058 | FPEFESKRE - HRIKE 2015 F2EAE
CERZEE20%] 2015 FREAAEEEAKTESE 20
821 AR [2015 F 2 BAAED XA H4ERE 2058 | SBTES -
REMHEMERCERRBREERIETE -

The Group's new compound fertiliser plant in southern
Xinjiang has commenced construction, which
further enhances the Group’s profitability and overall
competitiveness. The new facilities will be mainly for the
production of compound fertiliser products, including
water-soluble fertiliser and drip fertigation fertiliser
products, while the new equipments have an annual
capacity of 100,000 tons of compound fertiliser and
150,000 tons of drip fertigation fertiliser.
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The Company was shortlisted as a constituent of the
MSCI China Small Cap Index, which fully demonstrated
the recognition of investors in the development strategy
of the Company, thus enhances the reputation and status
of the Company in the capital market and brings positive
impact to the trading liquidity of the Company.

AR EERAMSC BN IR BAR D - RO BRRE
EYHARRERRBENRR - BPRALRREEARTS
AR ERA - RAARNRSMBERRKEEAVE -

The Group entered into a letter of intent with Jiujiang
Pengze County Government for clean production
comprehensive utilisation project investment, and seized
the opportunity to explore the central market.
AEEEFNITZEGBA - FiEREEFEFIBE
BIREEME - RERBFMAD TS -

65 JUNE

The Group established a new sulfur compound fertiliser
project with an annual production capacity of 200,000
tons. After commencing operation, it can help the Group
to grasp the prospect and potential demand of sulfur
compound fertiliser market, increase the sales of sulfur
compound fertiliser and raise profit, and consolidate the
advantages of the Group in the domestic high-efficiency
compound fertiliser market.
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The Group entered into a strategic cooperation
framework agreement with Jilin Province Supply and
Marketing Cooperation, to build compound fertiliser
production base in Changchun City with an annual
production capacity of 500,000 tons. After commencing
operation, the annual compound fertiliser production
capacity of the Group will exceed 2,000,000 tons.
REEEE MG RES EER B S EIE2E 0 - BiE
REMRRFEROBMEEAILEEL  REKASE
A FEFERE IR 200 B ©

Henan XLX was recognised as the “Ammonia Energy
Consumption Leader” by China Petro and Chemical
Industry Association for the fifth consecutive year, the
energy-saving and emission reduction effort were
remarkable.

AREOENVEERFRPEAMIMERTERESERTIA
PRERL R EIRAT R | SRBIES - SRR -

8 8 AuGUsT

Liu Xingxu, the Chairman of the Board was granted
the Alibaba “Internet + Agriculture” Top Ten Talents.
The Group's online brand “& MEHE" won the Top Ten
Marketing Innovation Award.
EEeIRAREEMEERE [E8E+ RS | TAREA
V) REEE TR L [ SO | R E AR -
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The Group's melamine project in Xinjiang Plant V has
successfully commenced operation and becomes a new
point of growth for the Group’s future profitability.
REMA RS LM =B RRE A KIIRE - KAK
SEEARR BT R -

The Group’s second phase of 600,000 tons compound
fertiliser expansion project has successfully commenced
operation, the annual compound fertiliser production
capacity increased to 1,850,000 tons.
AEBOBMIEAICHEZIER SRR —RERY - 8
AIEFERILE 1858M -

108 ocTOBRER

Henan XLX was recognised as the “2014-2015 Governor
Quality Award” (2014-2015FEEREEH),
representing the high recognition of the comprehensive
management ability of the Group.
R E LS [2014-2015FEARERE | - RPHA
FESACERNNRESTE - [

11 8 NOVEMBER

Henan XLX was recognised as “Henan Top 100 Private
Enterprises” (A FR&E%100348), “Henan Top 100
Private Taxpaying Enterprises” (7] 2 44 1D 3 4975510038)
and "Henan Top 100 Private Manufacturing Enterprises” (/8]
PRSP ERLER10038).

FRLELEE DmRERE 10058 ] DIRmREDER
Bi1o03 ] & DARREMERIER 10058 | RBTES - Wl

12 B DECEMBER

Henan XLX was recognised as the “National, Provincial
and Municipal” tertiary intellectual property superior
enterprise (BIR ~ &~ M= RABEREDDE).
AROELRE R - & T ZRNEEREL RS
BRES -
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Chairman’s Statement
EREHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | present the business performance of the Group for

FY2016 to you.

BLAIRR

AANEBRXEZE  FE M REAEE T —

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2016, the industry was in deep adjustment and accelerated shuffling
period. The external circumstance was tough, while internal transformation
and upgrade entered into a crucial turning period. With the superposition
of internal and external pressure, the Group still adhered to upgrade,
innovation and development. The foundation was more solid, the direction
was more progressive, the idea of transformation was clearer, and the
confidence of development was stronger. The core competitiveness was
gradually formed and emerged.

In 2016, the Group's plant |, plant Il, plant lll, plant IV and plant V (in Xinjiang)
achieved stable and efficient operation. Urea production capacity utilisation
reached more than 100%. The Group achieved urea production of 2.88
million tons and overall production capacity utilisation of 111%.

DIVIDEND AND DIVIDEND PAYOUT RATIO

The Board proposed the payment of a final dividend of RMB4 cents per
share for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB8.3 cents) on 22
June 2017 to Shareholders whose names appear on the Company’s Register
of Members on 2 June 2017. The dividend payout ratio has remained above
20% of net profit after tax of the Group for ten consecutive years from 2007
to 2016.

8  China XLX 2016 Annual Report
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(&) LU Xingxu 2% 8
Chairman of the Board ZEF & F /&

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

With its mission to serve the best interests of the Shareholders, the
Board has consistently strived to enhance the standard of corporate
governance and to develop a standardised, highly effective and scientific
corporate governance mechanism. The Group held nine Board meetings
in the year 2016 to review and approve matters including the quarterly
results, interim report, annual report, dividend payout ratio, connected
transactions and development strategies of the Group. The AC, the RC and
the NC have exercised and performed the rights and duties conferred on
them by the Board with a view of raising the standards of the Company’s
risk management and internal control and perfecting the Company’s
governance structure. For internal audit: internal audit was mainly
conducted by the internal audit team of the Company in 2016, focusing
on enhancing internal risk control over fixed assets, capital management,
financial report, purchasing, inventories, security of funds and other key
processes, and thereby enhancing operational efficiency.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group highly values its relationship with its investors and
communicates with them through a number of channels. It aims to provide
the latest information on the Group’s operations and business development
to its investors, so that they can obtain all necessary information on a timely
manner to make informed investment decisions. Please refer to the “Investor
relations” section of this annual report for more details.

EEER
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Chairman’s Statement
EREHRE

PROSPECTS

Strategic Planning: "Adhere to Produce Good Fertiliser”. Explore and
appropriate develop new energy and new chemical materials. Adhere
to the competitive strategy of combination of “combination of low cost
and differentiation” with the focus on fertiliser industry. Based on the
fundamental conditions of “Henan, Xinjiang, Jiujiang” bases, become
market-oriented, follow the development path with high standard, parks
and bases with special features.

Henan Base: Position as the Group's core base, create “fertiliser as
base, chemical as complement” characteristics of the base. Exploit
resources synergies of the park, enhance sustained profitability of
the base.

Xinjiang Base: Fully utilise local resource advantage, develop coal
chemical industry oriented by high resource conversion, rapidly
develop strong profitability of the base in 2-3 years.

Jiangxi Base: Market-oriented, fully utilise waterborne transport
advantage, establish “fertiliser as base, fertiliser and chemical side by
side” with modernization of the chemical park base.

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

For the next three years, we will actively respond to demand of society and
industrial upgrading and development, focus on “technical innovation,
product innovation, marketing innovation, service innovation”, enhance
marketing service professional standards, highlighting the sound brand
position of “Pioneer of High-Efficiency Fertiliser in China” and “ Leader of
Chemical Industry”.

Better tomorrow is our corporate’s mission, and it is the dream of all China
XLX people to strive for a strong corporate. In accordance with the overall
development strategy of the Group, we adhere to the competitive strategy
of “‘combination of low cost and differentiation”; achieve industry-leading
cost consumption, industry-leading technology level, market-leading
brand marketing and industry-leading safety and environmental protection
in the name of "Pioneer of High-Efficiency Fertiliser in China”in leading
the industry. We will proactively shoulder more corporate responsibility
in leading the industry, supporting the continuous exploration of high-
efficiency chemical fertilisers and agricultural science, rewarding farmers
and serving the community, with higher standards, and strive to become
“the most respected enterprise in the chemical fertiliser industry in China"

10 China XLX 2016 Annual Report
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APPRECIATION &)

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this & @ FEUEE  FABKEZESFTERE
opportunity to extend my heartfelt gratitude to all Shareholders, the IR - ARIBERE - 28BELT AT
Company’s management team, all the staff, customers and friends who ~ PHBEOXFHAERERNS AR -
have been caring for and supporting us. In 2017, the Group’s senior ~ BUAROHIRZGS | —F—+F - AEEH
management and staff continue working cohesively under the leadership ~ RREBEENE2EET  HEEEFTESL
of the Board to endeavour to achieve better performance and investment T BE B BETERAMER(CHE
returns for the Shareholders through its strategy of ‘combination of low cost ~ #& & | FIBEE - BHABLRRBSEE

and differentiation’”. RIZEAEDIIR -
=i ;MB/’ J }%r/’
LIU Xingxu EFETE
Chairman of the Board 2|58 78
27 March 2017 —ET—+F=ZA-++H
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE WD T

(1)  BUSINESS REVIEW (1 ¥EKEE
PRODUCTION POSITION OF THE GROUP IN 2016 REB-Z—RFEEBR
PRODUCTION E2
As at the end of 2016, the Group's total annual production of HE_Z—RFR XEEREF
urea reached 2,879,000 tons, and the total annual production BESED 2879 THE - AL
of compound fertiliser and methanol reached 976,000 tons and T FBESDRlER 976 THE &
342,000 tons respectively. 342 F Mg -
PRODUCTION CAPACITY UTILISATION ERAARNER

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—HLEE

2016 2015

ZE-RF —T—hfF
Total actual Capacity Total actual Capacity
production  Total actual utilisation production Total actual utilisation
capacity  production rate capacity production rate
HERER AEREE EREAAZR ST 95 ST
thousand thousand % thousand thousand %

tons tons tons tons

F g g T T
Urea R= 2,600 2,879 111 2,600 2474 95
Compound BEhE 1,850 976 53 1,100 872 79

fertiliser

Methanol Az 300 342 114 300 342 114
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COAL AND ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION HMBHEBER
Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=+—-BHLEE

2016 2015

—E-RE —E—hF

Fixed bed technology (&l E R 1 Urea per ton Urea per ton

coal consumption (tons) FLBRE (ME) ES1UTES BHEfR =

Raw coal JREHE 0.605 0611

Fuel coal WRRHE 0.151 0.146

Total coal consumption BEFEE 0.756 0.757

2016 2015

—EB-AF —T-RF

Coal water slurry technology IR F i Urea per ton Urea per ton

coal consumption (tons) B (188) S1UTES BMER=

Raw coal JRAHEE 0.778 0.785

Fuel coal R 0.212 0.248

Total coal consumption BEFEE 0.990 1033

2016 2015

—E—RE —E-hE

KWh per ton KWh per ton

Electricity consumption (KWh) BFE(TERE) BT R ST R

Urea (Fixed bed technology) PR 2 (BT R ) 769 771

Urea (Coal water slurry technology) R 2= OKESER0T) 338 344

Methanol iz 875 882

|
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or approximately 1.3% from approximately RMB5,788 million in
FY2015 to approximately RMB5,711 million. The decrease in revenue
was mainly due to the decline of average selling prices of urea,
compound fertiliser and methanol.

T-HYBREFEMNHARE
5,788,000,0007C & > # A R &
77,000,000 70 Bk 49 1.3% & #9 A R &
5,711,000,0007C ° tIER A ThE EH

RRE - EEEMFEFHEET
F& o
UREA ITES

Revenue derived from the sales of urea decreased by approximately
RMB296 million or approximately 9.1% from approximately
RMB3,236 million in FY2015 to approximately RMB2,940 million in
FY2016. The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in average
selling price of urea by approximately 23.3%. The decrease in
average selling price of urea was offset by the increase in sales
volume by approximately 404,000 tons or approximately 18.5% from
approximately 2,185,000 tons in FY2015 to approximately 2,589,000
tons in FY2016 due to the commencement of production of the
Xinjiang Project.

METHANOL

Revenue derived from the sales of methanol decreased by
approximately RMB16 million or approximately 2.9% from
approximately RMB548 million in FY2015 to approximately RMB532
million in FY2016. Such decrease was mainly due to a decrease in
the average selling price of methanol by approximately 1.9%.

COMPOUND FERTILISER

Revenue derived from the sales of compound fertiliser decreased
by approximately RMB108 million or approximately 6.1% from
approximately RMB1,766 million in FY2015 to approximately
RMB1,658 million in FY2016. Such decrease was mainly due to
the decrease in average selling price of compound fertiliser by
approximately 18.8%. The decrease in average selling price of
compound fertiliser was offset by the increase in sales volume
by approximately 128,000 tons or approximately 15.6% from
approximately 820,000 tons in FY2015 to approximately 948,000
tons in FY2016 due to the expansion of sales network and increase
in production capacity.

14 China XLX 2016 Annual Report

REMEER AR - —HPTHF
E B %) A R ¥ 3,236,000,000 7T 8L
%4 A B % 296,000,000 7T 8% #79.1%
EFT-RPBRFENHARE
2,940,000,0007C © WHIER D T EE
RIREFIEBTIEL233% © fR=
FHEETHREHEE EFAEE - B
REBEERE  RKEHER-ZFT
— R Y EFE A %) 2,185,000 A 12 1
#)404,000 BB 2K 4] 185% 2= — F — /X
B R F TE B9 49 2,589,000 W o

R

FEMEERABR - AT
FE R4 A R 548000000 7T J&
L #) N R ¥ 16,000,000 7T 8k #92.9%
ET AU BRFERNHARE
532,000,0007C ° LEIER AL TIEE R
REREEEFEE TEA 1.9% ©

waE

BEEEMHEERAR T —APK
FENHARE 1,766,000,00075/)536
47 N R ¥ 108,000,000 7T 8% 49 6.1%
E_T-ARUBFEENHARE
1,658,000,0007C ° W IER DT E &
HAREA B EE TRE418.8% °
EEREFHEE T EEHEEE K
M ARNERHEENKRRESE
B SHEAPRHEER T AR
£F [Z 1Y 49820,000 BE & A0 #7 128,000
WEsk 4] 156% % — T — M REE
) #9948,000 I o

T (X)) t/"\X\/V\ \\K\ t/"\X\ ) (“X/N\\ ( 7\></"\\ (<) t/m\X/”\J t/m\></"\: t/%\)(/”\l \/%X/V\J t/m\></"? ( ><\ t/%\)(/”\l t/m\></"? t/m\></"\: t/%\)(/”\l t/m\X/”\J \><\ ( ><\ (
ZENOZNGZNOZEN NG ZN0ZN 0N ZN NN\ VN0 7\ 0\ O\ N0 7\ O\ 7N 0 7\
CON ON 70N /T“\ it ‘\ SONZON 7ONZON ZON 7ON Z7ON 7ON 7ON Z7ON 7ON 70N 7ON 7ON 7ON /O
(XD (XD (XD (XD (XD (XD (XD (XD (XD (XD (X (XD (X (X (X (X (X (X (X XD X
Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED
REVENUE A
Revenue for FY2016 decreased by approximately RMB77 million TE-RVERFENKRAHBCZ



PROFITABILITY

Overall profit margin decreased from approximately 22.9% in FY2015
to approximately 17.9% in FY2016 mainly due to the decrease in
urea and compound fertiliser gross profit margin. The decrease was
partially offset by the increase in methanol gross profit margin.

UREA

Gross profit margin for urea sales decreased from approximately
27.4% in FY2015 to approximately 19% in FY2016. This was mainly
due to the decrease in average selling price of urea affected by
the low domestic grain prices and weak international commodity
prices. The decrease was partially offset by the decrease in average
cost of sales by approximately 15.0% due to the lower average coal
purchase price and the outstanding performance of Plant IV and
Xinjiang Project.

METHANOL

Gross profit margin for methanol increased from approximately
12.4% in FY2015 to approximately 15.0% in FY2016. This was mainly
due to the decrease in average cost of sales by approximately 4.7%
resulted from the weak international energy prices.

COMPOUND FERTILISER

Gross profit margin for compound fertiliser decreased from
approximately 19.9% in FY2015 to approximately 16.8% in FY2016.
This was mainly due to the decrease in average selling price by
approximately 18.8% resulted from the low grain prices. The
decrease was partially offset by the decrease in average cost of sales
by approximately 14.1% as a result of lower raw material prices.
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OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Other income and gains decreased by approximately RMB11 million
from approximately RMB81 million in FY2015 to approximately
RMB70 million in FY2016. The decrease was mainly due to the
reduction of net profit from sale of by-products and bank interest
income for deposits by approximately RMB12 million and RMB10
million, respectively. The decrease was partially offset by the increase
in subsidy income, amortisation of deferred grants and rental
income by approximately RMB7 million, RMB1 million and RMB!1
million, respectively.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
RMB88 million from approximately RMB347 million in FY2015 to
approximately RMB435 million in FY2016. Such increase was mainly
due to the increase in loading and uploading costs and salaries by
approximately RMB66 million and RMB21 million, respectively. The
increase in selling and distribution expenses was also in line with
the rapid expansion of the Group’s sales networks and the growth
of sales volumes as a result of the commencement of production
of Xinjiang Project and the expansion of compound fertiliser
production capacity in FY2016. The increase was partially offset by
the decrease in advertisement expenses and conference expense
by approximately RMB4 million and RMB2 million, respectively.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

General and administrative expenses increased by approximately
RMB2 million from approximately RMB317 million in FY2015 to
approximately RMB319 million in FY2016. The increase was mainly
due to the increase in depreciation and amortisation costs and
research and laboratory expenses by approximately RMB10 million
and RMB2 million, respectively. The increase was partially offset
by the decrease in repair expenses, office expenses and travelling
expenses by approximately RMB2 million, RMB2 million and RMB2
million, respectively.
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OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses remained stable at RMB33 million in FY2016
compared to FY2015. The major changes are the increase in
unrealised exchange losses, net by approximately RMB12 million
which was partially offset by the decrease in loss on disposal of
items of property, plant and equipment by approximately RMB15
million.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs increased by approximately RMB38 million from
approximately RMB228 million in FY2015 to approximately RMB266
million in FY2016 mainly due to the decrease in amount of interest
capitalised by approximately RMB60 million followed by the
commencement of production of Xinjiang Project.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expense decreased by approximately RMB59 million
from approximately RMB70 million in FY2015 to approximately
RMB11 million in FY2016 due to lower taxable profits generated by
the Group.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT

The profit attributable to owners of the parent decreased by
approximately RMB379 million or approximately 92.6% from
approximately RMB409 million in FY2015 to approximately RMB30
million in FY2016. This was mainly due to the decrease in gross
profit and other income and gains by approximately RMB300
million and RMB11 million, respectively and the increase in selling
and distribution expenses and finance costs by approximately
RMB88 million and RMB38 million, respectively. The decrease in
profit attributable to owners of the parent was partially offset by the
decrease in income tax expense by approximately RMB59 million.
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Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
bonds payable, loan from a non-controlling interest, trade and bills
payables, amounts due to related companies, accruals and other
payables, less cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits.
Capital includes equity attributable to owners of the parent less the
above-mentioned restricted statutory reserve fund.
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(1) FINANCIAL REVIEW () BAFMRRE R
GEARING EEERE

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt rEBFHEEABRLEER(BETF
divided by the aggregate of total capital and net debt. The Group's BEBRABERINBEFEEN) K

policy is to keep the gearing ratio below 90%. ERER - REBHBERGEE

BEILEERFEI0WAT o

2016 2015

—E—RE —ZE—AhF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETFT

Trade payables E SN HIE 185,577 140,229

Bills payable ANE S 655,020 998,738

Accruals and other payables FEETE A S H A FE ST I8 1,422,739 1,310,389

Due to related companies FEERE A RFIA 4,391 8,805

Loan from a non-controlling interest IR IERE N 100,000 -
Interest-bearing bank and FTESRITREMER 4,357,542 4,458,951

other borrowings

Bonds payable [ERES 800,000 800,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W IRERIREEEY (512,806) (581,355)
Less: Pledged deposits B BERIRER (226,349) (397,884)

Net debt BEFEE 6,786,114 6,737,873

Equity attributable to owners BARHE ARG 3,035,787 3,001,017

of the parent

Less: Statutory reserve fund B EERER (285,412) (275,880)

Total capital BEKR 2,750,375 2,725,137

Capital and net debt EARMBEFE 9,536,489 9,463,010

Gearing ratio BEARE A X 71.16% 71.20%

|



LOANS

AMOUNTS PAYABLE IN ONE YEAR OR LESS, OR ON DEMAND

As at 31 December 2016
R=ZB—RE+=-A=+—H RZZE—hF+=-A=+—AH

R—FRENHREREENER

As at 31 December 2015

Secured Unsecured Secured Unsecured

IR AT =Eiga S

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TT AR®T T ARBFT ARETFT

Bank loans RITER 261,150 495,006 287,873 602,295
RMB bond ANREES = 200,000 - -
261,150 695,006 287,873 602,295

AMOUNTS PAYABLE AFTER ONE YEAR

As at 31 December 2016

—FRENIFE

As at 31 December 2015

R=B—X"F+=-A=+—AH RZE—RF+-A=1+—H
Secured Unsecured Secured Unsecured
HER I 1 BE IR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T AREFTT AREEFTT
Bank loans BITEZ 176,000 3,421,750 178,000 3,386,238
Loan from BIFER - 3,636 - 4,545
govemment
RMB bond AR ES - 600,000 - 800,000
176,000 4,025,386 178,000 4,190,783
I
DETAILS OF COLLATERAL KIRRFE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a short-term loan of
approximately RMB259 million (2015: RMB286 million) secured by

pledged fixed deposits.

R_E—RF+-_A=+—H8" 'K
£ B AR ¥ 2590000007 ( = F
—RF : AR 2860000007T ) K
52 ERE A A B R IR E BRI S ERAR o
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() PROSPECTS

(1v)

In 2016, the domestic urea market was affected by the adverse
domestic and international macro-economic environment, the
continuously declining energy prices and the decreasing domestic
grain prices. In particular, coal price has rebounded since September
2016, but it did not help the urea price. The domestic urea industry
as a whole has suffered severe loss, and the overall operating rate
in the urea industry was less than 55%. The Group expects that
the depressed domestic urea market environment will speed up
consolidation within the industry and squeeze out obsolete and
inefficient producers.

The Group expects the profitability of the Company to make steady
improvement in 2017. Despite the downturn of domestic grain
prices, with the launch of production capacity reduction policy in the
domestic coal industry, the domestic urea price will be supported
by coal price to a certain extent in 2017. As the international
energy prices gradually pick up, the domestic methanol market
will also recover. The profitability of methanol and other chemical
products will be improved. The Group is able to adjust its product
mix and maximise the profitability of the Group in accordance with
the profitability of each product. Further measures on domestic
environmental protection will speed up industry consolidation and
squeeze out obsolete and inefficient producers, which will gradually
alleviate the overcapacity in the fertiliser industry. Leveraging on
the scale advantage, technological advantage, cost leadership and
differentiation advantage of the Group, we believe that our core
competitiveness will be strengthened.

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
RMB4.00 cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: RMB8.30 cents per ordinary share), subject to the
approval of Shareholders at the 2017 AGM, the final dividend will be
paid on 22 June 2017 in HKS.

The translation of RMB into HKS for the purpose of dividend
payment in HKS is made at the rate of approximately RMB1.00 =
HK$1.1182, which is the official exchange rate of HKS against RMB as
quoted on 31 March 2017 by The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited. Therefore, based on the above translation of
the exchange rate, the dividend to be paid in HKS will be HK$0.0447
per share.
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(V) SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

1. RECONCILIATION BETWEEN SINGAPORE FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“SFRSs”) AND IFRSs

For the year ended 31 December 2016, there were no
material differences between the consolidated financial
statements of the Group prepared under SFRSs and IFRSs
(which include all IFRSs, IASs and Interpretations).

2. OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL RISKS

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

MARKET RISK

The major market risks of the Group include changes
in the average selling prices of key products, changes
in the costs of raw materials (mainly coal) and
fluctuations in interest and exchange rates.

COMMODITY PRICE RISK

The Group is also exposed to commodity price risk
arising from fluctuations in product sale prices and
costs of raw materials.

INTEREST RATE RISK

The major market interest rate risk that the Group
is exposed to includes the Group's long-term debt
obligations which are subject to floating interest
rates.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's revenue and costs are primarily
denominated in RMB. Some costs may be
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States
dollars or Singapore dollars.
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INFLATION AND CURRENCY RISK

According to the data released by the National
Bureau of Statistics of China, the consumer price
index of the PRC increased by approximately 2.0%
in the year ended 31 December 2016 as compared
with an increase by approximately 1.4% in 2015. Such
inflation in the PRC did not have a significant effect
on the Group's operating results.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group monitors its risk exposure to shortage of
funds. The Group regularly reviews the maturity of
both its financial investments and financial assets
(e.g., trade receivables and other financial assets)
and the projected cash flows from operations. The
Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of bank overdrafts and bank loans. As at 31
December 2016, approximately RMB956 million (31
December 2015: RMB890 million), or approximately
18.5% (31 December 2015: 16.9%) of the Group's
debts will mature in less than one year based on the
carrying value of the borrowings reflected in the
financial statements.
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(vii)  GEARING RISK

The Group monitors its capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’
value. The Group manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes
in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may raise new debt or
issue new shares. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015
The gearing ratio of the Group (calculated as net
debt divided by the aggregate of total capital and
net debt) decreased from approximately 71.20% as at
31 December 2015 to approximately 71.

December 2016

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (2015: Nil).

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

As at 31 December 2016, the Group was not involved in any

litigation or arbitration.
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BOARD

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. LIU XINGXU CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD

Aged 62, is principally in charge of our Group's overall strategic planning
and business development. Mr. Liu was appointed as an executive Director
on 26 July 2006. He is also a member of the NC. Mr. Liu has over 20 years
of experience in the chemical fertiliser industry. He is currently the expert
consultant of the Advisory Committee of China Nitrogen Fertiliser Industry
Association. Mr. Liu was appointed the factory head of Xinxiang Fertiliser
Factory, a state-owned enterprise, in charge of factory operations in 1994
and then became the chairman and the general manager of XLX Chem
from July 2003 to July 2006. He was the general manager of Henan XLX
from July 2006 to April 2016, and has also been the chairman of Henan XLX
since July 2006. In February 2003, Mr. Liu was awarded the “Provincial Safe
Production Advanced Worker” by Safe Production Committee of Henan
Province and Personnel Bureau of Henan Province for his outstanding
performance in safety work. In April 2004, he was awarded the “Henan
Province Labour Model (Advanced Worker)” and in 2005, he was awarded
the “Henan Province Outstanding Private Enterprise Entrepreneur” by
the People’s Government of Henan Province. He was also the winner of
“National Labour Day Medal”in 2009 issued by All China Federation of Trade
Unions, and was awarded the “China Petroleum & Chemical Outstanding
Private Enterprises Entrepreneurs Innovation Award”in May 2014. In 2015
he was awarded the "Henan Economic Celebrity of the year 2014" and
“Model Worker of China”. Mr. Liu graduated from Xinxiang Broadcasting
and Television University in July 1986 with a Diploma in Arts. In 2006, he
completed EDP (Executive Development Program) from Guanghua School
of Management, Peking University. In 2010, Mr. Liu was awarded the
qualification of “Senior Economist” by the People’s Government of Henan
Province and the EMBA degree from Tsinghua University. Mr. Liu is the
controlling shareholder and a director of Pioneer Top Holdings Limited, a
substantial Shareholder.
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MR. ZHANG QINGJIN CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Aged 50, is principally in charge of overall management and day-to-day
business operations of our Group. Mr. Zhang was appointed as an executive
Director on 27 March 2015. Mr. Zhang was the deputy general manager
of Henan XLX from November 2006 to July 2011, and was the executive
deputy general manager of Henan XLX from July 2011 to April 2016, and
then he has become the general manager of Henan XLX since April 2016.
He has over 20 years of experience in the chemical fertiliser industry. He is
currently the vice chairman of China Nitrogen Fertiliser Industry Association.
Mr. Zhang joined Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory in July 1987 and held various
positions, including unit head of equipment and facility department, unit
head of production and technical department, section head of equipment
and facility upgrade and department head of technical upgrade in Xinxiang
Fertiliser Factory. Mr. Zhang was appointed as the manager of the technical
centre of XLX Chem from August 2003 to July 2006. He was also the
manager of the technical centre of Henan XLX from July 2006 to November
2006. Mr. Zhang graduated from Zhengzhou Engineering College (currently
known as “Zhengzhou University”) in July 1987 with a diploma in chemical
equipment, and obtained the EMBA degree from Tsinghua University in
2009.

MS. YAN YUNHUA  CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Aged 46, is principally in charge of all financial matters within our Group.
Ms. Yan was appointed as an executive Director on 10 November 2006.
Ms. Yan obtained the "Accountant” certification from the Ministry of Finance
of the PRC in May 1997. She graduated from Xi'an Jiaotong University
in July 2003 with a degree in accountancy and obtained the “Senior
Accountant” certification from Henan Province Accountant Series Senior
Assessment Committee in December 2005. Ms. Yan obtained the EMBA
(Executive Master of Business Administration) degree from Guanghua
School of Management, Peking University in July 2009. Ms. Yan has 20 years
of accounting and finance experience. Ms. Yan is currently the executive
chairman of the Finance Research Committee of China Nitrogen Fertiliser
Industry Association and the vice chairman of Henan Provincial Association
of CFO. She joined Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory in December 1997 and held
various positions in Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory, including the deputy head
of finance division and the deputy chief accountant. She was also the chief
accountant in charge of finance of XLX Chem from 2003 to July 2006. She
was the deputy general manager of Henan XLX from July 2006 to April
2016, and has become the vice chairman of Henan XLX since April 2016
Ms. Yan was awarded the "Accountants Contribution Award”in the PRC in
2008, "Advanced Worker in Accounting of Henan Province” in 2009, and
“Labour Day Medal of Henan Province”in 2015. Ms. Yan is the controlling
shareholder and a director of Go Power Investments Limited, a substantial
Shareholder.
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Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretaries

EE  SHEEERQAUWE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
MR. LIAN JIE

Aged 42, has been appointed as a non-executive Director since
21 December 2011. Mr. Lian has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Bosideng International Holdings Limited and Stella
International Holdings Limited since 10 July 2013 and 1 February 2017,
both companies are listed on the SEHK; and has been appointed as the
president of Perfect World Co,, Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange) since 22 September 2016. He was also an independent
director of Bona Film Group Limited (delisted from NASDAQ Stock Market
with effect from 8 April 2016). He resigned as a partner of Primavera Capital
Group (a private equity fund which focuses on China) on 22 September
2016, and has served as a senior advisor to Primavera Capital Group
with effect from the same date. From 2009 to 2010, Mr. Lian served as a
managing director of Hong Kong Investment Banking, China International
Capital Corporation Limited, before which he held various positions in The
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc,, including as a managing director of Hong Kong
Investment Banking Division during 2001 to 2009. Mr. Lian owns a Master
of Business Administration degree of Tuck School of Business at Dartmouth
College. Nitro Capital Limited (a substantial Shareholder) is wholly owned
by Primavera Capital (Cayman) Fund | L.P, which in turn is within Primavera
Capital Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. ONG KIAN GUAN

Aged 49, has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
since 11 May 2007. He is also the chairman of the AC and a member of both
the RC and the NC. He is a practising member and a fellow of the Institute
of Singapore Chartered Accountants (formerly the “Institute of Certified
Public Accountants of Singapore”), and also a partner of Baker Tilly TFW LLP.
He has more than 20 years of professional experience in financial audits
of multinational corporations and public listed companies from diverse
industries. He is currently an independent director of Alliance Mineral
Assets Limited and the lead independent director of Serrano Limited,
both companies are listed on the SGX-ST, and also the lead independent
non-executive director of Weiye Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
SGX-ST and the SEHK). He was the lead independent director of China Haida
Ltd. (@ company listed on the SGX-ST) from October 2006 to April 2015, and
also an independent non-executive director of China Animal Healthcare
Ltd. (@ company listed on the SEHK) from December 2007 to June 2014.
Mr. Ong graduated from the Nanyang Technological University in Singapore
with a bachelor of Accountancy degree in May 1992.
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MR. LI SHENGXIAO

Aged 54, has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
since 11 May 2007. He is also the chairman of the NC and a member of
both the AC and the RC. Mr. Li has been a professor in Shaoxing University
since 2004, and is currently the Head of Regional Development Research
Centre in Shaoxing University. He has been the instructor of establishment
of small and medium enterprises in Zhejiang Province, Small and Medium
Enterprises Bureau in Zhejiang Province since 2006. Mr. Li has been
appointed as an independent director of Bank of Shaoxing Co,, Ltd since
November 2013. Mr. Li is also an independent director of Anhui Jiangnan
Chemical Industry Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange) and Zhejiang China Light & Textile Industrial City Group Co., Ltd
(a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange). Mr. Li graduated from
Hangzhou University (currently known as “Zhejiang University”) in July 1987
with a graduation certificate in politics. He then obtained a master's degree
in law from Hangzhou University in July 1990. He was awarded the “high
school outstanding youth teacher of Zhejiang Province”in September 1991.

MR. ONG WEI JIN

Aged 50, has been appointed as an independent non-executive Director
since 11 May 2007. He is also the chairman of the RC and a member of
both the AC and the NC. He is a partner in Harry Elias Partnership LLP (a
Singapore law firm). He is currently an independent director of Luzhou Bio-
chem Technology Limited and CFM Holdings Limited, both companies
are listed on the SGX-ST. Mr. Ong obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree
from the National University of Singapore in 1990, a Master of Business
Administration degree from University of Hull in 1993, and a Master of Laws
degree from the National University of Singapore in 1995.

FERKE

545 BZEE+FRA+T—BREZT
REVIFPITES - BT RIEREZESE
FURBZEESNHFMEESHKE -
FhER - TTFRTTAEIEER
ﬁﬁ X B Bl A4 I8 AR & 9 2 R AT

RHRLFET FE ST RNFREMTINT
ERNEERHIEFR NEFEAFEREE
Bl o ThEHEA-_T—=F1+— AETR
BIRITIRMDBRATNEIES - ThE
ﬁ%*@iﬁ%l%@ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁfim

FINBHR ST ETH AR FHTHE
%%ﬁ%@k@ﬁ@ Al(—RR LEFE
%Q%%iﬁ%@ﬁ)%%ﬁ%%oé%
ER—NANEFEAZ2FERMMAREGR
BT IREB)BURERE - FEHER— LI
TFELARBMMAEEZBELEN - 1§
R—NNL—FNAEER [NTE 4G
B F A BBk -

TACEE

505 BZEZEEFRAA+T— Eiﬁ?&
REIIERTESZ - BAARTMNEES

fM&%V?%@ﬂh%iﬁamﬁE°
18 /A Harry Elias Partnership LLP ( — X ¥ il
HEMEBNEBA - BRAEBMNE
VIR A BR A 7] &2 CFM Holdings Limited #)

BYEE  ZMRARIERIRZT LT -
FERER—NNTFEIINKEE T KEH
FOEB LB - R— LN =F% University

of HUIEB R THEERBBE B WK
— NN A FEF I E T KEB/IREEE
T8 o

REOED — T RFER 27



\<§ )

N0
TN
X“%

/\x»‘x»‘x MO (L

Directors, Senlor Management and Company Sé;:retarles

EE - sAAEEERAAME

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
MR. LI YUSHUN

Aged 56, is the deputy general manager in charge of the research and
development department of Henan XLX since 31 July 2006. Mr. Li has
more than 30 years of experience in the chemical fertiliser industry. He
joined Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory in August 1982 and was appointed as the
deputy factory head of Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory in 1993. Mr. Li was the
deputy general manager of XLX Chem from August 2003 to July 2006. Mr.
Li graduated from Zhengzhou Engineering College (currently known as
Zhengzhou University) in July 1982 with a major in chemical technology. In
2004, he was awarded “First in Third Prize for Adopting the Improved Water
Solution Full Circulation Method Urea Technology to Expand Production
and Reduce Wastage” by the People’s Government of Xinxiang. In
November 2006, he was awarded the “Second Prize in Integrated Treatment
and Environmental Protection Project for Zero Discharge of Waste Water
Produced in the Production of Nitrogen Fertiliser” by China Nitrogen
Fertiliser Industry Association. He was recognised as a “Model Worker of
Hehan Province”in April 2014

MR. WANG NAIREN

Aged 53, is the deputy general manager in charge of the sales and
purchasing of Henan XLX since 31 July 2006. He has more than 20 years of
experience in the chemical fertiliser industry. He held various positions in
Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory, including the office head of nitrogen fertiliser
plant and the deputy head and assistant to head of Xinxiang Fertiliser
Factory from March 1993. Mr. Wang was the deputy general manager of
sales and marketing department of XLX Chem from August 2003 to July
2006. Mr. Wang obtained a certificate of completion in master’s course of
business administration from Tianjin Institute of Finance and Economics
(currently known as Tianjin University of Finance and Economics) in June
2002.
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MR. ZHAO LIANZI

Aged 54, is the deputy general manager in charge of the strategy and
logistics department of Henan XLX since February 2012. He has almost
20 years of experience in the chemical fertiliser industry. He held various
positions in the Group, including the deputy head of Xinxiang Fertiliser
Factory from February 1999 to August 2000. He was the general manager
of JARFTFTMEAEI D BBR A A] from August 2000 to December 2003,
the general manager of A/ F/LMELMEEER A GIEA S R E] from
December 2003 to July 2010, and the assistant to general manager of
Henan XLX from July 2010 to February 2012. Mr. Zhao obtained a certificate
of completion in master’s course of business administration from Tianjin
Institute of Finance and Economics (currently known as Tianjin University of
Finance and Economics) in June 2002. In 2007, he completed EDP (Executive
Development Program) from Guanghua School of Management, Peking
University.

MR. WANG PINGBIAO

Aged 46, is the deputy general manager in charge of the production
department of Henan XLX since 29 April 2016. Mr. Wang has more than 20
years of experience in the chemical fertiliser industry. He joined Xinxiang
Fertiliser Factory in July 1992 and held various positions, including the
deputy director of technical transformation of Xinxiang Fertiliser Factory
and the deputy head of nitrogen fertiliser plant. He was the head of )i/ g
DELMEEBR AR ZH A 7] from January 2005 to September 2008,
the head of JA] F/LELMEREBR AT =2 from September 2008 to
January 2010 and the head of jm /Tﬁ/UL/UftHEﬁﬁﬁ P45 A A] since
October 2010. Mr. Wang graduated from Zhengzhou Engineermg College
(currently known as Zhengzhou University) with a tertiary certificate in
June 1992, and obtained a master degree in Executive Master of Business
Administration from Tsinghua University in 2008.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
SOON YUK TAI

Aged 50, has been appointed as one of the joint company secretaries of the
Company since 1 September 2012. Ms. Soon is a director of the Corporate
Services Division of Tricor Services Limited, a global professional services
provider specialising in integrated business, corporate and investor services.
She is a Chartered Secretary and a fellow of both The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Soon has extensive experience in a
diversified range of corporate services and has been providing professional
services to a number of companies listed on the Main Board of the SEHK in
Hong Kong and the Growth Enterprise Market of the SEHK.

TEO MENG KEONG

Aged 48, has been appointed as one of the joint company secretaries of
the Company since 1 September 2012. Mr. Teo is a senior manager of the
Tricor Evatthouse Corporate Services Division of Tricor Singapore Pte. Ltd,,
and has over 19 years of experience in corporate secretarial practice and
business consultancy. His area of exposure includes advisory and assistance
in compliance matters of both public and private limited companies, and
business advisory to foreign investors including application of various
licenses to expedite setting up of businesses.
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During 2016, the Company continued to strengthen its efforts in
maintaining investor relations, and analyst reports and roadshows became
the main focus for work promotion, so as to truly serve as a bridge for
effective communication between the Company and the capital market.
The Company also listens attentively to various suggestions and proposals
from the capital market with regards to the Company's operations and
management in a proactive, sincere and humble manner, so as to optimise
the Company’s operational management quality, enhance the Company’s
profitability and Shareholders’value and maximise their interests.

TIMELY, RIGHTEOUS, FAIR AND ACCURATE INFORMATION
DISCLOSURE

The Company has been in strict compliance with the information
disclosure principles for listed companies by making timely, righteous, fair
and accurate information disclosure, which improves the transparency of
the Company, establish a smooth communication channel and enhance
its interaction and communication with the capital market. In 2016, the
Company published more than 50 announcements. Such publications
have objectively and comprehensively disclosed information regarding the
results, operating performance, financial information, dividend payment,
poll results of shareholder meetings and certain other voluntary disclosures.
The Company’s website (www.chinaxlx.com.hk) is also an important
channel for its information disclosure and important platform for investors
to obtain information on the Company.

MULTIPLE-CHANNEL, COMPREHENSIVE INVESTOR
RELATIONS ACTIVITIES

The Company continued to conduct comprehensive communication with
capital market through various communication channels including results
announcement conference, press conference, large roadshow activities,
one-on-one investor meetings, investor forums, site visits by investors,
communicating its development philosophy and strategies, growth
progress and latest updates and results on operation and management, and
sharing its understanding and expectation on the industry and the market.
Further, the Company also developed various user-friendly promotion and
communication platforms such as website, WeChat public platforms and
other formats, with their contents covering industry policies, information of
listed companies in the industry, corporate news and announcements.
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Investor Relations
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Meanwhile, according to the needs and styles of analysts and different
investors, the Company flexibly and proactively arranged corporate
senior management to participate in various investor relations activities.
During 2016, the Company’s senior management including the Chairman
of the Board and the Chief Financial Officer participated in plenty of
investor activities to fully communicate with the capital market, which
realised multi-channelled communications. In 2016, beside holding press
conferences after interim and annual results announcements, the Company
also attended various investor forums organised by a number of investment
banks and funds, conducted one-on-one meetings and conference calls
regularly, and made interactive communication with almost 500 investors
and analysts throughout the year. Meanwhile, we attach great importance
to investors’ onsite visits, and arranged over twenty plant visits to the
headquarters of the Group in 2016, so as to gradually give investors and
analysts a better idea of the business and operations of the Group.

STEADY AND CONTINUOUS SHAREHOLDER RETURNS

The Company attaches great importance to the Shareholders’ views on its
dividend payout. The Company determines its dividend payout every year
with reference to the Company’s financial status, long-term development
needs and potential investment opportunities. When we were listed on the
SGX-ST in 2007, we promised to the Shareholders that our dividend payout
ratio for each of the 3 years from 2007 to 2009 would not be less than 20%
of our net profit after tax, and we have kept our promises. Even after the
period of promise, we are still keeping the dividend payout ratio at above
20%.
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EEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance principles and processes in managing the
business and affairs, so as to improve the performance, accountability,
and transparency of the Group. The Board sets appropriate policies and
implements corporate governance practices appropriate to the conduct
and growth of the Group's business.

The Company has applied the principles as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board has reviewed its
corporate governance practices and considers that the Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code, except for the
deviation of code provision A.2.1 for the period from 1 January to 25 April
2016. Key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
as well as the details of the foregoing deviation are summarised below.

A THE BOARD
A1.  RESPONSIBILITIES AND DELEGATION

The primary role of the Board is taking leadership and
control of the Company to protect and enhance long-term
Shareholders’ value. It sets the corporate strategies of the
Group, and sets directions and goals for the management.
The Board also supervises the management and monitors

performance of these goals to enhance Shareholders’

value. The Board is responsible for the overall corporate
governance of the Group.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Group are delegated to the executive Directors and
the management. Each executive Director has accumulated
sufficient and valuable experience to hold his/her position
in order to ensure that his/her fiduciary duties can be carried
out in an effective and efficient manner.
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The Board has established an internal framework to ensure
that the type of material transactions which required Board's
approval is consistently applied throughout the Group.
Matters requiring Board's approval include:

Overall Group business and budget strategy

ii. Capital expenditures, investments or divestments
exceeding certain material limits

iii. All capital-related matters including capital issuance
and redemption

iv. Significant policies governing the operations of the
Company

V. Corporate strategic development and restructuring

Vi Risk management strategy

Vil. Any major corporate activities involving changes in

Shareholders'rights and risk profile

Regular meetings of the Board are held to deliberate the
strategic policies of the Company including significant
acquisitions and disposals, review and approve annual
budgets, review the performance of the business and
approve the public release of periodic financial results.

All Directors are from time to time furnished with
information concerning the Company to enable them to be
fully cognizant of the decisions and actions of the Company’s
executive management. The Board has unrestricted access
to the Company’s records and information. Any Director may
request for independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon reasonable
request made to the Board.
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Senior management members are available to provide
explanatory information in the form of briefings to the
Directors or formal presentations at Board meetings, or by
external consultants engaged on specific projects.

The Board has formed specialised committees namely the
AC, the NC and the RC (collectively the “Committees”)
to assist in carrying out and discharging its duties and
responsibilities efficiently and effectively. The Committees
function within clearly defined terms of references and
operating procedures, which are reviewed on a regular
basis. The effectiveness of each of the Committees is also
constantly reviewed by the Board.

The company secretary(ies) of the Company (the “Company
Secretary(ies)”) and/or his/her representative(s) attend(s)
all Board meetings and meetings of the Committees to
ensure that Board procedures are followed and applicable
rules and regulations are complied with. Draft minutes of
meetings of the Board and the Committees are circulated to
Directors and the Committees members, as the case may be,
for comments within a reasonable time after each meeting
and the final version of minutes are available for Directors’
inspection.
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follows:

A E=gaAEamaT -

Executive Directors: HITEE .
Mr. Liu Xingxu (Chairman of the Board and 2 WA (Ef%ﬁ%fﬁ
Member of the NC) IEEZRE
5)

(Chief Executive Officer)
(Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Zhang Qingjin
Ms. Yan Yunhua

%E)g/i\f'ﬁi (B/E#TTE)
SRELLT (BEHFE)

Non-executive Director: FHTESE -
Mr. Lian Jie FRRAeE
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUHBITEE .
Mr. Ong Kian Guan (Chairman of the AC, Member of TEREE (FEZE2E
the RC and the NC) - FINE
B8 RIES
ZEEHE)
Mr. Li Shengxiao (Chairman of the NC, Member of FEREE (IBEZEEF
the AC and the RC) A %Vi"z:
B2 REH
ZEEKE)
Mr. Ong Wei Jin (Chairman of the RC, Member of TAELCEE (FHZEE23
the AC and the NC) B ERE
B8 RIS

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board
has met the requirements of Listing Rules 3.10 and 3.10A
of having three independent non-executive Directors
(representing at least one-third of the Board) with one of
them possessing appropriate professional qualifications,
accounting and related financial management expertise.
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A2.  BOARD COMPOSITION A2. EEEBER
The composition of the Board as at 31 December 2016 is as RZE—REF+ZA=4—



A3.

The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the business requirements and
objectives of the Group and for the exercise of independent
judgement. The independent non-executive Directors
bring different business and financial expertise, experiences
and independent judgement to the Board and they are
invited to serve on the Committees. Through participation
in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflicts of interests and/or serving on
the Committees, the independent non-executive Directors
have made contributions to the effective direction of the
Company and provided adequate checks and balances
to safeguard the interests of both the Group and the
Shareholders.

The biographical details of the Directors and the relationship
between Board members, if any, are set out in the section
headed “Directors, Senior Management and Company
Secretaries” of this annual report.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent in light of the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Liu Xingxu had been the Chairman of the Board and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since the
incorporation of the Company. This deviated from the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which stipulates that the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.
However, the Board had considered such structure beneficial
to the Group as the Board believed that Mr. Liu, who has
extensive experience in the industry, would provide the
Company with strong and consistent leadership and visions,
and also allow for effective and efficient planning and
implementation of business decisions and strategies. He also
ensured timeliness of information flow between the Board
and the management.

A3.
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On 26 April 2016, the Company announced that Mr. Zhang RZE-—RFOAZ+RX

Qingjin, an executive Director, took up the role as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, while Mr. Liu remained as
the Chairman of the Board with effect from 26 April 2016. The
Board considered that such segregation of the roles of the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company was principally necessitated by an increase in the
scale of the Group's operations, and the resultant separation
of the duties of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer would
enable a more timely management of the Group’s affairs and
further reinforce the Group's development.

B ARBEIEM BITES
RESAEEREIARRER
HITE R ﬁ%%é%
REFGIFR B-_T—
FUAZH/RBERER - é
FERR ARAEFEX
FEEFEATERGN D BE
TERAKEZERBEKR
HFTR - Et R EE SR
TERBNOBESEBE &
it B AR B FH S —
IR ANEEER o

Since then, the Company has complied with the code 1&g - AREIRFEFRIEX
provision A.2.1, with Mr. Liu focusing on the overall strategic FEA2GEWBRE - K&
planning and business development of the Group as the ERESSIRIEINEAE
Chairman of the Board, whereas Mr. Zhang being responsible BB B B AR B R RS

for the overall management, administrative functions and
day-to-day business operations of the Group as the Chief

B’ MERELEER/REARAE
FHATERRASENER

Executive Officer of the Company. BE THRIERATES
4 o

In addition, the Directors are of the view that the balanced N BEERAEEFEZHA

composition of executive Directors and non-executive HHERNITE S RIEATT

Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) EE(REBN I ERITES)

on the Board and the existence of AC, RC and NC (comprising
all or a majority of independent non-executive Directors)
in overseeing different aspects of the Company’s affairs,
are adequate safeguards to ensure a balance of power and
authority.
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A4.

A5.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and processes of appointment and removal
of Directors are laid down in the Constitution.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company, whereas the Company has
issued a letter of appointment to each of the independent
non-executive Directors and the non-executive Director. All
Directors are appointed for a specific term of 3 years. They
are also subject to retirement and re-election in accordance
with the Constitution at least once every three years at an
AGM.

Pursuant to the Constitution, Ms. Yan Yunhua, Mr. Lian Jie
and Mr. Ong Kian Guan, being the number nearest to but
not less than one-third of the Directors who are subject to
retirement by rotation, shall retire by rotation at the 2017
AGM. The above three retiring Directors, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the 2017 AGM. The
Board recommended the re-appointment of these retiring
Directors standing for re-election at the 2017 AGM. The
Company’s circular, sent together with this annual report,
contains detailed information of these retiring Directors
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT FOR
DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director receives induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that
he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he/she is sufficiently aware
of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

A4.

A5.
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EERRE

The existing Directors are continually updated with legal
and regulatory developments, and the business and market
changes to refresh their knowledge and to facilitate the

REESHBERESRINER
PR B RIARER R H5
BHEF  UEMREFHHA

discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefings BLRBYEITERENEE -
and professional development to Directors are arranged AABBERETERABES
whenever necessary. In addition, reading materials on new RESBENREEEE -
or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to the gEAh - RRRIT R IRAE A
Group are provided to Directors from time to time for their RAEBENEEEEZRER
studying and reference. B FT 1 3k B B ) B B A R

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Directors
have participated training as follows:

Mr. Liu Xingxu, Ms. Yan Yunhua, Mr. Zhang

TEEMERSE -

E-_FT—XF+ A
=—t+t—HLEFE EFE2
INTRHEE -

W

BIEBELE  BRE

Qingjin attended training sessions conducted ZEx - RESLED
by the Company relating to directors’ duties EHARRBIHETHE M
and responsibilities under the Listing Rules, the EWRA - AEDER
Companies Act and other applicable laws and H @ mEERER
regulations. BHTNEERBLEBE

All Directors (being Mr. Liu Xingxu, Ms. Yan Yunhua,
Mr. Zhang Qingjin, Mr. Lian Jie, Mr. Ong Kian Guan,
Mr. Li Shengxiao and Mr. Ong Wei Jin) received
regular briefings and updates from the Company
Secretaries/Company’s management on the Group’s

HIEFIRRAR
EREF(ANZEE
A BREXL

REZELE  FRRK
£EFREREEF
EREERERCE

business, operations and corporate governance £)EHERARWE S

matters. ANEIEEEWREM
REBEER  &&
g3 Em%ﬂﬂ’]?ﬁ)l
NEF -

Mr. Liu Xingxu, Ms. Yan Yunhua, Mr. Zhang Qingjin,
Mr. Ong Kian Guan Mr. Li Shengxiao and Mr. Ong
Wei Jin attended relevant seminars organised by
professional firms/institutions.
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- Mr. Liu Xingxu, Ms. Yan Yunhua, Mr. Zhang Qingjin, - QEMABLE - BRAE

Mr. Ong Kian Guan Mr. Li Shengxiao and Mr. Ong Wei Tt - RESEAE -
Jin read technical bulletins, periodicals and other TERELE TER
publications on subjects relevant to the Group and EERTRCEER
on their responsibilities and obligations under the FERNEE BB E
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. RLA K ET iR B K A8
HEEHRTEINES
WBE RE MR
o2 - BT R HE
it R T4 o
A6.  DIRECTORS ATTENDANCE RECORDS A6. EBHFERCHE
The attendance records of each Director at the meetings EEEREBE_ZT—RF
of the Board and the Committees and the general meeting +ZA=+—HLEFEARAR
of the Company held during the year ended 31 December AIRITHNESEg% %8
2016 are set out below: EERLBRRARGHEEL
BREAINT -
Attendance of Meetings
BELRERY
Remuneration Nomination  Annual General
Board  Audit Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Ezg ENZEE yHzSS R%ZEE  KRRBEEAE
No. of Meetings Held 9 5 1 1 1
EEVR
Name of Director
B2
Executive Directors: HITEE :
Mr.Liu Xingxu el 9 N/ATEF NATNEFR 1 1
Ms. Yan Yunhua BEExt 9 NATEH N/ATE N/ATER 1
Mr.Zhang Qingjin REGLE 8 NAZER NAZNER NARER 1
Non-executive Director: FHITEE:
M. Lian Jie R2iE w NATER NANER NATER 0
Independent non-executive Directors: BV FHTEE -
Mr. Ong Kian Guan TRRRE 9 5 I 1 '
M. Li Shengxiao SHERESE 9 5 1 1 1
Mr. Ong Wei Jin TRCEE 9 5 1 1 1

hHEOED —T—~FFE 4




with the independent non-executive Directors without

TREBIFRITESET

the presence of executive Directors during the year under TREgH g LWEHIT
review. BFIE -

While the Board considers Directors’ attendance at the BAEESRARETLESE
meetings of the Board and the Committees to be important, $ MEEENgERE
it should not be the only criterion to measure the Directors' CEETEREBEEER
contributions. The Board also takes into account the Iﬁﬁ’ﬂuﬁ—%ﬁ - T A2 JE A B
contributions by Board members in other forms including EREFEXNECEMIE
periodical reviews, and provision of guidance and advice on MER  BEREAEETR

various matters relating to the Group.

SIATE B A R AR R 45 ol
K o

A7.  MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS A7.  ETEZFRSNELESTE
The Company has adopted the Model Code (Appendix 10 PiN/NS TR Y A (G )
to the Listing Rules) as its own code of conduct regarding R EBIFE%10) - T’Fﬁ'jﬁ B8
Directors’ dealings in the Company's securities. The Company ERETARAESFEED
has made specific enquiry of all the Directors, and the 11/RSFR - $ TEﬁFﬁﬁ
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model %%T’Eﬁ BgEHw =58
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2016. RERBEZT—RF+=

The Company has also established written guidelines on no

A=+—BLEEN—H#
SFEAESFR) -

ZIS’AETD’_FEEJLE*A%‘WEE

less exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees (REAREBEEEANRER
Written Guidelines”), governing securities transactions N/ EEBEENRNEES )
by the relevant employees who are likely to possess inside TRAFBEBEHF —EEHIE
information of the Company and/or its securities. No incident sI(MEEE®EESI)) - BfE
of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by SR S EE AR YE <F I B 168 3
relevant employees was noted by the Company during the BER -BE_T—RE+=

year ended 31 December 2016

A=+t—RHILFE  AR7F
VEEREEREREBERMS
ETREEMESINESF -

In case when the Company is aware of any restricted period WERARMBEANEBE

for dealings in the Company’s securities, the Company will %EKR AlFE F R EIH - K

notify the Directors and relevant employees in advance. RAIKEETBENEERE
BES -
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A8.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board as a whole is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. The Board has reviewed and
monitored the Company's corporate governance policies
and practices, the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the
Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and the Employees Written Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees, namely, the
AC, the RC and the NC, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. All the Committees have been established
with defined written terms of reference, which are available on
the websites of the SEHK (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.chinaxlx.com.hk). All the Committees should report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

All the Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances,
at the Company’s expenses.

B1.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The AC comprises a total of three members, being the three
existing independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Ong Kian Guan, Mr. Li Shengxiao and Mr. Ong Wei Jin.
The chairman of the AC is Mr. Ong Kian Guan, who possesses
the appropriate professional qualifications, accounting and
related financial management expertise as required under
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. None of the members of the
AC is a former partner of the Company’s existing external
auditor.

A8. 1bF

JASTRIBY ST R E D3 1E
%@5']9’]&%% /DH‘*H& ° §$
SR RERAAAIMDE
ERBERER EERS
BEREMNEII RFESHE
BR - ARAIMETEER
EERTHBERLER - 2
EFAIREEEZEmIESIAE
S URARRFREEER
SFRIR A EERARE AN
WEERAEST -

EEEZET

%%Afﬁﬂizm%$A§i
g DHAEZEZES FME
BEgkiERLEg BEUEER
NAEBHEEHE - TEER
YWEZEEeHEH THERATETN
EMBERE - FHEURB A
(www.hkexnews.hk) & &R 7]
(www.chinaxlx.com.hk) § Ui B 5 o 7
EZEEgARNEESWREREM
TER BRI SR o

FEZEeERERDERINE
TREMNRE  WAESEBERT
REZBERATESRKBUYEXER
BHBARQFHRE o

Bl. BEHRZEEE

%ifyi/\ = EE = /\f%ﬂiﬁ:\
Rk BI=RIB BB IEHR
TEEITERLE  TER
RERTECKE - BEE
Aazﬁﬁzkﬁﬁi 4
WA _EWRAIZE310Q) 6T
HEMHEE i%éﬂ =k
MIEBAMGEERER - HIE
BEZLZEEKEAEARTR
EINEBIZERBMAI BT A A ©

RELOED —TRFEH 43




Corporate Governance Report
EERBE

\ / N\ / \ / \ / \ / \ / \ / \ / \ / \ \ / / / N\ / \ / \ / \ /
(X )Xo ) X )U Xo )b Xo ) X0 )U X )b X )U X |
N A A AL UA WUAL AL UAL UALYY

The main duties of the AC are reviewing the financial
information and reports of the Group and considering any
significant or unusual items raised by the financial officers
of the Group or the external auditor before submission to
the Board; reviewing the relationship with and the terms
of appointment of the external auditor and making the
relevant recommendation to the Board; and reviewing the
Company’s financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit function.

The Company has in place a whistle-blowing policy for
employees of the Group to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters. The AC constantly receives updates from
the external auditor pertaining to the latest changes to the
accounting standards and issues which have a direct impact
on financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the AC has held 5
meetings. Details of individual attendance of each member
at the meetings are set out in section A6 above. The AC has
performed the following major works during the year ended
31 December 2016:

- Review and discussion of the annual financial
statements, results announcement and report for
the year ended 31 December 2015, the related
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group, and the relevant audit findings;

- Review and discussion of the interim financial
statements, results announcement and report for
the six months ended 30 June 2016, and the related
accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group;
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- Review and discussion of the financial results for
the first quarter ended 31 March 2016 and the third
quarter ended 30 September 2016 respectively;

- Review of the independence of the external auditor
and recommendation of its re-appointment for the
year ended 31 December 2016

- Review and discussion of the effectiveness of the
financial reporting system, the risk management
and internal control systems and the internal audit
function;

- Review and discussion of the continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2016
and recommendation of the relevant renewals;

- Review and discussion of the significant issues on
the financial reporting, operational and compliance
controls;

- Review of the arrangement of whistle-blowing
policy; and

- Review and discussion of Ernst & Young LLP’s audit
plan for the year ended 31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the external
auditor has met the AC twice and discussed with the AC on
issues arising from the audit and financial reporting matters.
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The AC, having reviewed all non-audit services provided
by the external auditor of the Company, was satisfied that
the nature and extent of such services would not affect the
independence and objectivity of the external auditor. The
AC recommended that Ernst & Young LLP be nominated for
re-appointment as the Company's external auditor at the
2017 AGM. There is no disagreement between the Board and
the AC regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditor.
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B2.  REMUNERATION COMMITTEE B2. ¥MZEE
The RC comprises a total of three members, being the three FTMEESRAR=RAKE

existing independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Ong Kian Guan, Mr. Li Shengxiao and Mr. Ong Wei Jin. The
chairman of the RC is Mr. Ong Wei Jin.

All aspects of remuneration, including but not limited to
Directors' fees, salaries, allowances, bonuses and benefits
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in kind, will be covered by the RC. Each RC member will AL BAMEY N - 1§
abstain from voting on any resolution in respect of his own 2H %’r@ﬂ? BEEBE - &F

remuneration package.

The principal responsibilities of the RC include reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure and the remuneration
packages of Directors and senior management (i.e. the

MEZE8emEBmERER
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A

model described in the code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG EEz(BIRMCEE RS
Code is adopted). The RC is also responsible for establishing BI &9 <F BIER 3228 B.1.2(0) i) 16§
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration PRI MER) - FMEZE B =75
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of BEMGERABHMIE &
his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her own BB EZRAENRERT

remuneration, which remuneration will be determined LA B (R 18 4 25 =5 o EL (T {r] Bt
by the Board with reference to the performance of the B AR ERFEERH ) F

individual and the Company as well as the market practice
and conditions.
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In setting remuneration packages, the RC will take into
consideration the pay and employment conditions in
comparable companies within the industry. The RC will
also review the remuneration packages of the independent
non-executive Directors and the non-executive Director to
ensure that they are commensurate with the contributions
and responsibilities of the Directors. Each of the executive
Directors entered into a service contract with the Company,
which covers each of their terms of employment. The
Company will submit the quantum of Directors' fees of each
year to the Shareholders for approval at each AGM.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the RC has held
1 meeting. Details of individual attendance of each member
at the meeting are set out in section A6 above. At the said
meeting, the RC reviewed the remuneration framework
for the Directors, key executive staff, top five highest paid
employees and immediate family members of the Directors
for the year ended 31 December 2015 and the remuneration
proposal for the year ended 31 December 2016, by reference
to the Group's performance and profitability as well as the
remuneration level of certain listed corporations within the
industry.

Pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code,
the annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management by band for the year ended 31 December
2016 is set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)
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Number of individuals

FsEE (AR%T) AB
500,000-700,000 2
700,001-900,000 3

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements contained in this annual
report.
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non-executive Directors. The chairman of the NC is Mr. Li
Shengxiao.
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The principal responsibilities of the NC include reviewing REAZEENIEBAEBRE
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, BTRNEETNERE - A
knowledge and experience) of the Board on an annual basis H AKX (BEREE - HMH
and recommending any changes to the Board; identifying Ks8I HE) - WL ERE

qualified and suitable individuals to become Board members MESSRLERZ el
and selecting and making recommendations to the Board HEHEERITETESEK

on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

BMAL AHERERER

assessing the independence of independent non-executive ATHEEESERRLAES
Directors; and making recommendations to the Board SRREES B IEH

on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

The NC has established and implemented processes
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including taking into consideration the attendance records F(BEERESENEEE
at the meetings of the Board and the Committees for EEMNLELE) - UER
monitoring and evaluating the performance of the Board REHEEESBEEMNERIR -

as a whole and effectiveness and contribution of individual
Directors.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of
other significant offices held by them. Where a Director has
multiple directorships, the NC will evaluate whether or not
the Director is able to carry out and has been adequately

BRIEAREREENER -

BEZRAMNARMRERH
BEMEEEMERBRBEH
HE - MR —BEERKH
E%%“ﬂﬁﬁéi AR

carrying out his/her duties as a Director. For the year ended B g n$ 1E ZEFEELRE
31 December 2016, the Board is satisfied that each Director S 2 DEITEERE

has allocated sufficient time and resources to the affairs of
the Company.
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B3.  NOMINATION COMMITTEE B3. REZEESE
The NC comprises a total of four members, being the REEZEGHAHLMNEKE
Chairman of the Board, namely Mr. Liu Xingxu, and the MRk EEgXEEIEE
three existing independent non-executive Directors, namely T R=RBEELIENT
Mr. Ong Kian Guan, Mr. Li Shengxiao and Mr. Ong Wei Jin. BEETRREE  TERSE
Accordingly, a majority of the members are independent ERFRICHEA A - K



In selecting suitable candidates for directorships of the
Company, the NC may make reference to certain criteria
such as the Company’s needs, the integrity, experience,
skills and professional knowledge of the candidate, and the
amount of time and effort that the candidate will devote
to discharge his/her duties and responsibilities. External
recruitment professionals might be engaged to carry out
selection process when necessary.

The Company also recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance and hence the purpose of the Board diversity.
To comply with the code provision A.5.6 of the CG Code,
a Board diversity policy was adopted by the Company
pursuant to which the NC is responsible for monitoring the
implementation of the Board diversity policy and assessing
the Board composition under diversified perspectives
(including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and industry and regional experience). The NC
shall report its findings and make recommendations to
the Board, if any. Such policy and objectives, if any, will be
reviewed from time to time to ensure their appropriateness
in determining the optimum composition of the Board.

The NC considered an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board is maintained and has not set any
measurable objective implementing the Board diversity

policy.
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held 1 meeting. Details of individual attendance of each
member at the meeting are set out in section A6 above.

=t—BIEFE EEHEE
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At the said meeting, the NC: (i) reviewed the structure, B E R L E g Z T 1B E SR
size and composition of the Board to ensure that it has a J:YA6ED o E’\J:L o
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to REZEE (\BRIEES

the requirements for the business of the Group; (i) assessed

IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is accountable to the Shareholders and is mindful of
its obligations to furnish timely information and to ensure full
disclosure of material information to the Shareholders in compliance
with statutory requirements and the Listing Rules.

The Directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2016

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements. The
management has provided such explanation and information to
the Board as necessary to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial information and position of the Group
and put forward to the Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems have
a key role in the identification and management of risks that are
significant to the achievement of the Group's business objectives.
The process of business risk management has been integrated
throughout the Group into business planning and monitoring
processes. The Company’s management continuously assesses the
likelihood of risk occurrence, provides treatment plans, monitors
the risk management progress, and reports to the AC and the Board
on all findings. The management would also report to the AC and
the Board on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems.

The AC ensures that a review of the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems covering all material
internal controls (including financial, operational, compliance
and information technology controls), with respect to the design,
implementation and monitoring of such systems, is conducted
annually and put forward to the Board for consideration. In this
regard, the AC reviews the audit plans and the findings of the
external and internal auditors, and ensures that the Company will
follow up on the auditor’s recommendations raised, if any, during
the audit process.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the Group's risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss. The Board, with the assistance of
the management and the AC, has the overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives,
and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the interests
of the Company’s shareholders and the Group’s assets.
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Based on the reports submitted by the external and internal
auditors and the various management controls put in place, the
Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems for the year ended
31 December 2016. With the concurrence of the AC, the Board
considered that the Group's risk management and internal control
systems maintained by the management are effective and adequate
to address the financial, operational and compliance risks of the
Group throughout the year ended 31 December 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board has also
received assurance from the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company that (i) the financial records have
been properly maintained and the financial statements give a true
and fair view of the Company/Group’s operation and finances; and (ii)
the Company/Group have put in place and will continue to maintain
reliable, comprehensive and sound systems of risk management,
internal control and corporate governance that will withstand the
scrutiny of any audit and review by the external auditor.

The Company has implemented control procedures throughout the
year ended 31 December 2016 to ensure that unauthorised access
and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The primary functions of the Company’s internal audit include
assessing if adequate internal control system is in place to protect
the funds and assets of the Group and to ensure compliance
with the internal control procedures; assessing if operation of
the business processes under review is conducted efficiently and
effectively; and identifying and recommending improvements to
the internal control procedures, where required.

The Board with the concurrence of the AC is satisfied with the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions.

52 China XLX 2016 Annual Report

EIMB Ko Y #B A 2R P 4R 2 H) ¥R
EUREERNSREIEEHE
B EERCRAKEEE_T
—RETZA=t+—HIEFENR
RETE R NBEE R G R BRI
T c KERZESRE  EF
ERREEEMERNAEER
fREENMAMEERRRBE T
—RNETZA=T—BIEFERIA
BREFSEERNEENITG - &
BERA R o

BE_ZT-—R"Ft+-A=t—HL
FE EFeNCRIARAERE
HITEMNEFEMBENRE  ®E
FEOR () M Re iR 2 2 RIRE BT
BREERATHRBARET, XK
SENEERMBER - i) AR
A/ REE B ERI A EER
FAs%  2ELRRBRORRERE
AEBESE M B REVA RS - AR A
EONEZBEE T ERBE R RE
FIRIZE -

REEZZE—R"F+=-HA=1+—H
IFEBEFE  ARFIEEITERRR
Fr o AHERER S AR AR AU &
FAANEHEES °

R EBEX

ARFREBEZN T ERE B IET
ZREBBROHNIEZ RS -
REAREENELMEE - UK
REBBEIERE AR ERNZE
BEERRRT SBME KItE
Y+ Rk BRI R ok SR ES PR AR
RIE (EmA) ©

Exe(KERZBERB)EMAXN
SENEE  ABBER MY ERE
BEMEIR - ABERRER 18
FIEt8 REEN TR -



F. COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Teo Meng Keong of Tricor Evatthouse Corporate Services (a
division of Tricor Singapore Pte. Ltd.) and Ms. Soon Yuk Tai of Tricor
Services Limited, both of which companies being external service
providers, have been engaged by the Company as its joint Company
Secretaries.

Their primary contact persons at the Company are Ms. Yan Yunhua,
the Chief Financial Officer of the Company and an executive
Director, and Mr. Zhu Weiwei, the Head of Investor Relations of
the Company. The biographical details of Mr. Teo and Ms. Soon are
set out in the section headed “Directors, Senior Management and
Company Secretaries” of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, both Mr. Teo and Ms.
Soon have taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training.

G. EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor's Report”of this annual report.

The fees paid/payable to Ernst & Young LLP, the Company’s external
auditor, in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2016 are analysed below:
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SN BB AR %5 £ F& 7 Tricor Evatthouse
Corporate Services (Tricor Singapore
Pte. Ltd. B9 %) #0) VSR BA 58 %5 A4 K2 O
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HEfEARIME -
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THERBEEL - REERFERE
MEEFFHINAFRIES
SREBBRARWE] —& -

RBEE-T-—R"F+-A=t+—H
HFE  REERBRLEIBETH
PR/ NREIEBE RS o

SMNERZ BN R A B AT A

RABINEZEEIEHBRE—T
—RNETZA=t+—HLEFEAR
A R E R E E1E L RO B
FNANEHROBLAZBENRS £
RBE-_ZT-R"EF+_A=1t—H
IEFE BRSNS RS T
BN FARR BN E AT &
KERTEVEBPANERDOMNLT

Fees paid/payable
BN E A
Type of services provided by the external auditor (5$'000)
SMER R B A AR A AV AR AS B IR CErhnsk+7c)
Audit services
ER
- Audit fee for the year ended 31 December 2016 493
HE-_T R F+-A=+—BLFENEZER
Non-audit services
F B IRTE
- Tax consultation fee for the year ended 31 December 2016 10
HE-T AT +-A=1+ - AULEEHBBENER
TOTAL: 503
HBET
|
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Corporate Governance Report

TEELRRE

H.  COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS H HEERRRREENER

The Group recognises the importance of transparent and timely
disclosure of corporate information, which enables Shareholders
and investors to make the best investment decision. Price sensitive
information will be publicly released before the Company’s
disclosure of any of such information to any group of investors or
analysts. Financial results and reports will be announced or issued
within the prescribed periods under the statutory or regulatory
requirements.

In line with continuous obligations of the Company pursuant to the
Listing Rules, the Board's policy is that all Shareholders be informed

AEBERLXEERHELER
BRENERME - HAERRERE
FEEHRERERTE - ERBRE
BN A R B FHEMIRE EH DT
BERHBEEMZEZERRINA
o > MRS RAEMBEHIOETE K EE
EHMEIR NAT R B A D kB
$ o

REEARRRIRE ETHRANRE
TE EXZENBRERDBER

of all major developments that impact the Group. Information is BT EREENFABEERER o
disseminated to the Shareholders and investors on a timely basis $/& AIBIAIA T 77 2 E R M AR R
through: KEEZMER
i Announcements, financial reports, circulars and news T:_t%z“ﬁﬁiﬁlﬁﬂ%“fﬁ 8t
releases published on the website of the SEHK; ERE - BRI
i Financial reports prepared and issued to all Shareholders; i 72 BB AR R AR I ) 1P 2%
RS
i, Press releases on major developments of the Group; i, BEAEEERERNIE
(I
iv. Notices of and explanatory memoranda for AGM and EGM,; V. % B F K AR R RIR
and FHBENHARESE &
. the Company’s website at www.chinaxlx.com.hk at which V. XA B B9 A8 Ik (www.chinaxix.

the Shareholders can access information of the Group,
roadshows organised by banks and plant visits.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend general meetings to ensure
high level of accountability and to stay apprised of the Group's
strategy and goals. Notices of general meetings will be published
on the websites of the SEHK and the Company. The chairmen of the
Committees are normally available at general meetings to answer
any question relating to the work of the Committees. The external
auditor shall also be present at AGM to answer questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.
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Besides, for putting forward any enquiries to the Board, Shareholders
and investors may send written enquiries to the Company. The
Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries. Shareholders and investors may send their written
enquiries to the following:

Address:  17/F, Yat Chau Building, 262 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Head of Investor Relations)

Fax: (852) 2521 9955
Email: weiwei.zhu@chinaxlx.com.hk
Inquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

SHAREHOLDERS'RIGHTS

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution shall be proposed at general meetings on each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors, for Shareholders’' consideration and voting.

1. CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to Article 47 of the Constitution, the Directors
may whenever they think fit, and shall on requisition in
accordance with the statute, proceed with proper expedition
to convene an EGM.

Pursuant to the Companies Act:

(a) Shareholders holding 10% or more of the paid-
up capital of the Company which carries the right
to vote at general meetings as at the date of the
deposit of the requisition, may request the Board
to convene an EGM. The written requisition must
specify the objects of the meeting, be signed by
the Shareholders concerned and deposited at the
registered office of the Company for the attention of
the Board or the Company Secretaries;
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” Corporate Governanﬁcé Réboft
1 %M\Aﬁd:

12.

The Board shall proceed to convene an EGM within
21 days of the deposit of such written requisition.
Such EGM shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such written requisition; and

If the Directors do not within 21 days after the date of
the deposit of the requisition proceed to convene an
EGM, the Shareholders who deposited requisition, or
any of them representing more than 50% of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves, in the
same manner as nearly as possible as that in which
meetings are to be convened by Directors, convene
an EGM, but any EGM so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of 3 months from that date.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

In general, subject to the paragraph below, no resolution
may be proposed at a general meeting (whether it is an EGM

or an AGM) if such resolution is not included in the notice
convening the general meeting. However, if the proposal

is to amend an existing resolution set out in the notice

convening the general meeting and such amendment

is within the scope of the notice, such amendment may
be made if approved by the Shareholders by ordinary
resolution.
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On the requisition in writing of either (i) any number of
Shareholders representing not less than 5% of the total
voting rights of all the Shareholders having at the date of the
requisition a right to vote at the general meeting to which
the requisition related; or (ii) not less than 100 Shareholders
on which there has been paid up an average sum, per
Shareholder, of not less than $$500, the Company shall be
under a duty to:

(a) Give to the Shareholders entitled to receive notice
of the next AGM notice of any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting; and

(b) Circulate to the Shareholders entitled to have notice
of any general meeting sent to them any statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at that meeting.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be given, and
any such statement shall be circulated, to the Shareholders
entitled to have notice of the meeting sent to them by
serving a copy of the resolution or statement on each such
Shareholder in any manner permitted for service of notice of
the meeting, and notice of any such resolution shall be given
to any other Shareholder by giving notice of the general
effect of the resolution in any manner permitted for giving
him/her notice of meetings of the Company. The requisition
shall be deposited at the registered office of the Company at
least 6 weeks before the meeting.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Shareholder must provide his/her
full name, contact details and identification, in the originally signed
written requisition, notice or statement (as the case may be), in
order to give effect thereto. Information of the Shareholder may be
disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made
any changes to the Constitution. An up-to-date version of the
Constitution is available on the websites of the SEHK and the
Company. Shareholders may refer to the Constitution for further
details of the rights of Shareholders.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings shall be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules, and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the SEHK and the Company after each general
meeting.
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EERE

The Directors are pleased to present their report to the Shareholders
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year, a discussion on
the Group's future business development, and the description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are set out in the
Chairman’s Statement and the Management Discussion and Analysis of this
annual report. The financial risk management objectives and policies of
the Group are set out in note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.
In addition, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the Financial Highlights of
this annual report. Discussions on the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations and relationships with its key stakeholders that have a
significant impact on the Group are included in the Chairman’s Statement,
Investor Relations and Corporate Governance Report of this annual report
and in this Directors' Statement.

The Group places much importance on environmental protection, energy-
saving and emission reduction, continuously processes environmental
transformation of production systems, promotes the implementation of
clean production, and continuously formulates and improves a series of
regulation policies to improve our environmental management, laying a
solid foundation for future development. Please refer to the separate 2016
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report of the Group, sent
together with this annual report, for further details of the Group's ESG-related
risks, environmental policies and performance and other ESG information.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 and the Group's
financial position at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 84 to 193 of this annual report.

No interim dividend was paid during the year. The Directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend of RMB4 cents (2015: RMB8.3 cents) per
share in respect of the year to the Shareholders whose names appear
on the Register of Members on 2 June 2017. Subject to the approval of
Shareholders at the 2017 AGM, the final dividend will be paid on 22 June
2017 in HKS.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out on page 194 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

There were no movements in the Company’s issued capital and convertible
bonds during the year. Details of the Company’s share capital and
convertible bonds are set out in notes 33 and 31 to the financial statements,
respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Constitution or
the laws of Singapore, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF SHARES

Neither the Company, nor its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold its
equity securities during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
amounted to RMB49,538,000 of which RMB40,000,000 has been proposed
as a final dividend for the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for less than 20% (2015: less than 20%) of the total sales for the
year. Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 47%
(2015: 53%) of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to 15% (2015: 17%).

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any Shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's
five largest suppliers.

MBERRE

AEBRBERERREENGEEER
EERAEME (N HEACTIBHLE
ZETBRR ) B AN FREFE 194 8 o

BRAR TR ES

ARRFH B BEITIRA R AR R EHFRAF
B I\ E) o AR T A N AR E 5
BN RIE R MR 33 31 ©

BrBEERE

BRI (R A R FEM AL H) ADEME
) FOAR I EE TR B REIRS - BUEAR
RABEERLAIARARREZRERN

BE  BOsiHERSD
RABREMBARNAFEREREE -
RO ERERAES o

A2 IR
RZF—R"F+ZA=1T—0H &AR7EZ
Al o0 Ik s (AR 1B R RDE BV IR UR e =1

>

) E ANRE495380007T 0 B ARE
40,000,000 L EAVEAANF [E 1235k 3 R BiR%
é\ o

[

i3

EFREFRHAER

REEFERN HETFTAEBERAZHEAER
PEAFERHEERE IR 20%(ZE—H
F DR 20%) o AEBERAZRRARER
FEAMEAFTFEREBE%(ZF—1
T 53%) + i EH A A S AR AL
15% (ZZ—F4F : 17%) °

EENFEMNEMEZTHE A S ERARE
(BESMAEB AR RADEHITRAN 5% A
FEIBEREASERE R ABERT
B EER o

HECEL —T—RFFH 59



I 9I0:010 9109010910910 910: 910910910910 9109109109101
N OZNG 2NN 07NN 7N 72NN ZN 07N NN NN 7N (
TN /TN /0N /TN /TN /TN /TN . TN /TN /0N /TN /TN /0N /TN /TN /TN
(X JUX X IJDUXIJUX DX IDUX DX DX DX IUXIDUX DX IUAX DX ICX DX DX I XD XX
H /4
Directors’ Statement

EEHRE

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
RMB319,000 (2015: RMB427,000).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Company has complied in material respects
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Company.
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DIRECTORS =

The Directors during the year are: REFHEFLT :
Executive Directors: PITES

Liu Xingxu 288

Zhang Qingjin RE®

Yan Yunhua BaaE
Non-executive Director: FHITES :

Lian Jie B2

Independent Non-executive Directors: BYFHITES
Ong Kian Guan TR

Li Shengxiao TER

Ong Wei Jin FRi-

In accordance with Articles 89 and 90 of the Constitution, Ms. Yan Yunhua,
Mr. Lian Jie and Mr. Ong Kian Guan will retire by rotation and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the 2017 AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors and considers them to be
independent.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND COMPANY SECRETARIES

Biographical details of the Directors, the senior management of the Group
and the Company Secretaries are set out on pages 24 to 30 of this annual
report.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ENABLE DIRECTORS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

Neither at the end of nor at any time during the year was the Company a
party to any arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is,
to enable the Directors or their respective spouses or minor children to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years, unless terminated in accordance with
the provisions of the service contract by either party giving to the other not
less than six months’ prior notice in writing.

The Company has issued a letter of appointment to each of the
independent non-executive Directors and the non-executive Director for
a term of three years, unless terminated by either party giving to the other
not less than three months’ prior notice in writing.

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2017 AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors' remuneration is subject to approval by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group. Details of the Directors’
remuneration are set out in note 9 to the financial statements.

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

During the year, the five individuals with the highest remuneration in the
Group are all Directors and senior management of the Group. Details of the
highest paid individuals are set out in note 10 to the financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

As set out in Article 147 of the Constitution, a permitted indemnity
provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the
benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year.
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DIRECTORS’' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed "Continuing Connected
Transactions” and in note 40(a) to the financial statements, no Director nor
a connected entity of a Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of or at any time during the
year under review.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company in Shares, as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 164 of the Companies Act and Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the SEHK
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS
3y

EENRS - RERSRNERS

BIFERERS | — 8RB BHRRME
40(a) TR RSN - REIBFEAEE B RFR
EARE EFAEZNREEEMER
ARRSHEERMB AR LHAEE
EBMEBEANEARS  ZHHAR
TEEKEEEEEAMES °

EERFETHRAESRKRMAES

R-E—XRE+-_A=+—H FFEIAK
NEIEBITEA BRI A LE N IE
NENESE 164 1§ R EFH KBS 5BIE 352 1§
HARRFENECMARNER - SiBE
TR B S AT E AR ESF R AN A
AR B TRy RS

Number of ordinary shares interested

BEESZNEERYE
Approximate
percentage’ of the
Company'’s issued
Corporate share capital
Name of Directors Personal interests interests Total interests (AR AT B BIT
EEpE EARER NEERE HmER REANOEIH
Mr. Liu Xingxu 600,000 360,207,999 360,807,999 36.08%
Y 5t (Note Fff & (a))
Ms. Yan Yunhua 300,000 277,085,000 277,385,000 27.74%
B@Ert (Note Bt & (b))
Mr. Ong Kian Guan 100,000 - 100,000 0.01%
FERELE
# The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31 December
2016.

ZADIEEAEEN EBRHABRUARARR T R"F+T _A=+—HHNZBTROHEE -
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Notes:

(@) These shares were held by Pioneer Top Holdings Limited ("Pioneer Top"), an
investment holding company established in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").
Mr. Liu Xingxu beneficially owned 42% of the equity interest in Pioneer Top,
and held the remaining 58% of the equity interest in Pioneer Top in trust for 7
beneficiaries (including Mr. Zhang Qingjin) under a trust agreement dated 26
July 2016. Pursuant to the trust agreement, Mr. Liu Xingxu is irrevocably granted
the absolute discretion to exercise the voting rights and the rights to the day-to-
day management of Pioneer Top.

(b) These shares were held by Go Power Investments Limited ("Go Power”), an
investment holding company established in the BVI. Ms. Yan Yunhua beneficially
owned 12.74% of the equity interest in Go Power, and held the remaining 87.26%
of the equity interest in Go Power in trust for a total of 1,463 beneficiaries under
a trust agreement dated 26 July 2016. Pursuant to the trust agreement, Ms. Yan
Yunhua is irrevocably granted the absolute discretion to exercise the voting
rights and the rights to the day-to-day management of Go Power.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company nor their associates had or was deemed
to have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which has been recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 164 of the Companies Act
and Section 352 of the SFO, or which has been notified to the Company
and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors has any interest in a business which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group under the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed.

OPTIONS

The Group has no share option scheme.
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@) % % B% 17/ Pioneer Top Holdings Limited
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XXX X)L
Directors’ Statement
EEHRE

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

On 27 November 2011, the Company entered into the Subscription
Agreement with Nitro Capital Limited (“Nitro”), pursuant to which Nitro
agreed to subscribe and pay for the convertible bonds of an aggregate
principal amount of approximately RMB324 million due the fifth anniversary
of the date of issue by the Company which bear interest of 4.5% per annum
(the "Bonds”). The Directors were of the view that the issue of the Bonds
can provide additional funds for expansion of the Group’s plant IV and
Xinjiang project, and general working capital purposes. As the Company
intended to engage long-term strategic investor to help further improve its
corporate governance and shareholder base in the long-term perspective,
the Directors also considered that Nitro can help bring in more insights
from the investors’ perspective and leverage the extensive resources to
explore more expansion opportunities for the Company.

As all the conditions for completion of the subscription and issue of the
Bonds under the Subscription Agreement (the “Bonds Issue”) were satisfied,
the completion of the Bonds Issue took place on 21 December 2011, and
the net proceeds received by the Company were approximately RMB322
million. Nitro was entitled to convert their Bonds into Conversion Shares, at
any time on or after 21 December 2011 and up to the close of business on:
(i) the fifth business days before 21 December 2016 (both days inclusive)
unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled as provided in the
terms and conditions of the Bonds; (i) a date no later than 10 days prior
to the dated fixed for redemption thereof if the Bonds had been called for
redemption by the Company before 21 December 2016; (iii) the deemed
conversion date pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Bonds if the
Bonds had been called for mandatory conversion; and (iv) the day prior to
the giving of notice requiring redemption by Nitro if such notice had been
given. Assuming full conversion of the Bonds at the initial conversion price
of approximately RMB1.84 per Share, the Bonds will be convertible into
176,000,000 ordinary Shares.
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Prior to the original maturity date of the Bonds of 21 December 2016,
the Company was approached by Nitro about extension of the maturity
date of the Bonds as Nitro had noted the prices at which the Shares were
trading and the possible further downward pressure on the market price
of the Shares if the Bonds were to mature and be converted into Shares
in the immediate future. In consideration of the Company agreeing to the
extension, Nitro agreed to lower the annual interest rate of the Bonds. As
the Company shared the same concerns with Nitro, the Directors believed
that it would be in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole to defer the
conversion of the Bonds and the potential disposal of Shares following such
conversion to a later time, while lowering the interest rate of the Bonds.

On 14 December 2016, the Company and Nitro entered into the
Amendment Agreement to, among other things, extend the maturity date
and lower the interest rate of the Bonds. The completion of the Amendment
Agreement was conditional upon, amongst other things, approval of the
SEHK having been obtained for the listing of, and permission to deal in,
the ordinary Shares to be allotted and issued by the Company (the “New
Conversion Shares”) upon conversion of the Bonds as amended and
restated under the Amendment Agreement (the “Restated Bonds").

The completion of the Amendment Agreement took place on 20 December
2016 upon the satisfaction of the conditions thereof. The Restated Bonds
due 21 December 2018, which bear an interest rate of 2% per annum
subsequent from (and including) 20 December 2016 to (and excluding)
21 December 2018, were issued by the Company to Nitro. No additional
fund was raised by the issue of the Restated Bonds. Nitro was entitled to
convert their Restated Bonds into New Conversion Shares, at any time
on or after 20 December 2016 and up to the close of business on: (i) the
fifth business days before 21 December 2018 (both days inclusive) unless
previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled as provided in the terms
and conditions of the Restated Bonds; (i) the deemed conversion date
pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Restated Bonds if the Restated
Bonds had been called for mandatory conversion; and (iii) the day prior to
the giving of notice requiring redemption by Nitro if such notice had been
given. Assuming that the Restated Bonds will be converted in full at the
conversion price of approximately RMB1.84, an aggregate of approximately
176,000,000 ordinary Shares will be issued.

Further details of the Bonds Issue are included in note 31 to the financial
statements and in the announcements of the Company dated 28
November 2011, 19 December 2011, 21 December 2011, 14 December
2016 and 20 December 2016.
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Directors’ Statement

EERE

Save as disclosed above, no other equity-linked agreements that willor may B EX A BEEI - FRINFLEBAR

AL AT A R T BB B A AR
TR MR GY © RERAAL]
STHS & R AT B BUA R A BT R DY ER

result in the Company issuing Shares or that require the Company to enter
into any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing Shares
were entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end

of the year. iz o
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES FERRARKRGREBEROES

AND UNDERLYING SHARES

R-ZE—RFE+-A=1t—H RBREARQHA
RIFRBEF 8GN E 7 MG IR E
BeIFAFENERERM - TIEFFTR
ARATD BT RABREA D BB 5% A

As at 31 December 2016, the following parties had interests of 5% or more
in the issued Shares and underlying shares of the Company according to
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 88 of the Companies Act and Section 336 of the SFO:

EEvRELS
LONG POSITIONS
HR
Approximate
percentage of
Number of ordinary shares/
Number ofissued  underlying shares underlying shares
ordinary shares upon conversion over the Company'’s
interested of the convertible issued share capital
Name of substantial HERERW bonds ERAT B BT
Shareholders Capacity 28T BRTARESK Totalinterests ~ ARZ AL EAY
TERRER 514 HERYE HERROEE BE: HEROYBEIL
Pioneer Top (Note Ffi5E (a))  Beneficial owner 360,207,999 - 360,207,999 36.02%*
EnEAA
Go Power (Note Fff5F (b))~ Beneficial owner 277,085,000 - 277,085,000 27.71%*
EnEAA
Nitro (Note P 3F (0) Beneficial owner - 176,000,000 176,000,000 14.9796*
EnEAA

The percentage represents the number of issued ordinary shares interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31
December 2016.

ZADEREERN BT ERREERARR AN E—R"F+ A=+ —HBHNEETRHEE -

** The percentage represents the number of underlying shares interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31
December 2016, as enlarged by the number of shares supposed to be issued after full conversion of the convertible bonds.
ZADLIEHEERENEBROEERUARGNR - Z—REFT+T_A=+—HNEBTROHEE - MARBDBEITROEE LN
BHERABRESERBET I RONEBBERX
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Notes:

(a) Pioneer Top is an investment holding company established in the BVI. Mr. Liu
Xingxu beneficially owned 42% of the equity interest in Pioneer Top, and held
the remaining 58% of the equity interest in Pioneer Top in trust for 7 beneficiaries
under a trust agreement dated 26 July 2016, including 7% for Mr. Zhang Qingjin,
an executive Director and the Company’s Chief Executive Officer; 7% for Mr.
Li Yushun and 7% for Mr. Wang Nairen, the Company’s senior management;
7% for Mr. Ru Zhengtao, 7% for Mr. Zhu Xingye and 7% for Mr. Shang Dewei,
the Company's employees; and 16% for Mr. Li Buwen, the Company’s former
executive Director. Mr. Liu Xingxu has the absolute discretion to exercise the
voting rights held by Pioneer Top in the Company in accordance with the trust
agreement. This interest held by Pioneer Top has also been disclosed as the
interest of Mr. Liu Xingxu in the above section headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests in Shares".

(b) Go Power is an investment holding company established in the BVI. Ms. Yan
Yunhua beneficially owned 12.74% of the equity interest in Go Power, and held
the remaining 87.26% of the equity interest in Go Power in trust for a total of
1,463 beneficiaries under a trust agreement dated 26 July 2016. Ms. Yan Yunhua
has the absolute discretion to exercise the voting rights held by Go Power in the
Company in accordance with the trust agreement. This interest held by Go Power
has also been disclosed as the interest of Ms. Yan Yunhua in the above section
headed “Directors’and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares”.

(©) Nitro is an investment holding company established in the Cayman Islands and is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Primavera Capital (Cayman) Fund | L.P

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, no person, other than
the Directors whose interests are set out in the section headed “Directors
and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares” above, had an interest or a short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company that
was required to be recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 88 of the Companies Act and Section 336 of the SFO.

1

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance were entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the year.
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the overall maintenance, labour and management costs to the
Group of maintaining such facilities. Pursuant to the agreement, the
price for the supply of electricity is determined on the basis of usage
rate as recorded in the relevant meters with reference to the price
set out by the PRC government or relevant authorities; and the price
for supply of water and steam is determined on the basis of usage
rate as recorded in the relevant meters with reference to the actual
costs plus a 10% mark-up.

The Utilities Supply Agreement has a term commencing from 1
January 2015 up to and including 31 December 2016. The Group

I%IHW%EE@\\H&)\ © Al R
AEBEEZSTRIENBREE
ANREEKA - RIEZHE - &
HNEEERRSE P BT8R A
I35 E MBS IR IR AR RE R SRR 8% M0
ERAREE  KREAREERR
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SRRCSRHIE A REETE -
IKE R BB E
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FEIRR B —
BEE

has set the annual cap for the income received by the Group from E—RFE+ZA=1+T—RH(BEZ
XLX Chem Group under the agreement at RMB7,000,000 for FY2016 H) - REB D MAEBIREZ T
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Directors’ Statement
EERE
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS BFEBEEXRS
During the year, the Group had the following continuing connected ~ RAFE » REEE#ETU T RHERER
transactions, and has complied with the disclosure requirements of Chapter 5 WE B EMHARNE AERNFRRR
14A of the Listing Rules. E °
As at 31 December 2016, Mr. Liu Xingxu, Ms. Yan Yunhua and Mr. Zhang EA T E-XE+-_A=+—8" %
Qingjin (being executive Directors) and Mr. Li Buwen (being a former BBEE BRELITRLRRES L
executive Director who resigned on 27 March 2015) collectively held an ( MITEF) RFELXERE(ERZ
aggregate of approximately 11.8% interest in XLX Chem, and together are ~ E—RAF=A -+ HEHENRIAITES)
the largest shareholder of XLX Chem and have the largest influence through HEFBBLEMEIE R 118% =
their shareholders' rights on the major decisions in XLX Chem. Therefore, i 18 & @ RO E OME TH SRR &
XLX Chem, its subsidiaries and associates (collectively “XLX Chem Group”) BERRENELBEMINEZRTE
are deemed as the Company’s connected persons under Rule 14A07 ofthe BB EARFZE - EIt - RIE LWHREIE
Listing Rules. 14A07 1 - 8 AME T~ HHE A7) K B
ENA(HBA [ LEMEIER]) HHR
RARNEEEAT ©
NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS TERRIFBEAERS
() UTILITIES SUPPLY AGREEMENT ) REBREAHERGS
The Group entered into the Utilities Supply Agreement on 13 rEEER_ZE—NE+—H+=
November 2014 with XLX Chem Group, pursuant to which Henan H @/L\L/UTKI%I RIS KE M7k
XLX agreed to supply water, electricity and steam to XLX Chem A ER G - B ﬂ@é/bﬁ;/bﬁ
Group. This arrangement helps the Group to improve the utilisation BrbEME TR E 4 FE*%
of its utilities facilities, and the additional income received from e T EAELEEIRES KEE
providing such utilities to XLX Chem Group can be used to reduce EARMBREAE jﬂiﬁ/upu{t



For the year ended 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount
received by the Group from XLX Chem Group for the sales of
water, electricity and steam amounted to RMB1,436,102 and has
been accounted for as other income in the Group’s consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

In consideration of the abovementioned benefits to the Group, the
Utilities Supply Agreement was renewed on 30 December 2016 with
a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2017 and ending
on 31 December 2019 (both dates inclusive).

EQUIPMENT PURCHASE AGREEMENT

The Group entered into the Equipment Purchase Agreement on
13 November 2014 with XLX Chem Group, pursuant to which
XLX Chem Group agreed to supply equipment, including pipes,
containers and high-pressure containers, to Henan XLX for the
Group's production. Accordingly, the Group benefits from reliable
and timely delivery of equipment and cost effectiveness. Pursuant to
the agreement, the prices for equipment purchases are determined
by the Group’s internal qualification and tendering procedures with
potential suppliers of equipment, which vary depending on the
product type, quantity and quality specifications as required by
Henan XLX.

The Equipment Purchase Agreement has a term commencing from
1 January 2015 up to and including 31 December 2016. The Group
has set the annual cap for the amount paid by the Group to XLX
Chem Group for purchases of equipment under the agreement at
RMB33,000,000 for FY2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the aggregate amount
paid by the Group for the purchases of equipment from XLX Chem
Group was RMB26,136,238 which has been included in spare parts
inventories in the Group'’s consolidated statement of financial
position.

In consideration of the abovementioned benefits to the Group, the
Equipment Purchase Agreement was renewed on 30 December
2016 with a term of three years commencing from 1 January 2017
and ending on 31 December 2019 (both dates inclusive).
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lease paid by the Group to XLX Chem Group at RMB186,600 in
respect of the General Lease Agreement (i.e. RMB2,239,200 as the
annual cap for FY2016).

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the lease paid by the Group
to XLX Chem Group under these agreements was approximately
RMB2,239,200 which has been accounted for as general and
administrative expenses in the Group’s consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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The Group entered into the General Lease Agreement on 21 August AEBER-_ZE—=ZFNAZ+—
2013 with XLX Chem Group, pursuant to which XLX Chem agreed BEELEMETSRBR L — KA
to lease certain living quarters with an aggregate area of 138,134.89 EHzE Bt LEMEIRE
square meters located at XLX Chem West Courtyard Living Quarters, A mLELNHESE TEEER
Xiaoji Town, Xinxiang City, Henan, China (47 Bla] =8 ¥7 48 /)N 5 B 138,134.89F R A VB [& - 4%
DEME TR A )& R ) to Henan XLX. The living quarters include [& Rz 7 Hp B A] g R T /N B R0 &
industrial kitchens, canteens, staff dormitories, warehouses and ME I AEER - £EFEBET
apartments, which can provide the general staff of Henan XLX with ¥*BHE- -RE -BIBE BER
convenient residential facilities and reduce the time required for /NG %/T@/L\L/D—E\I?ﬁfﬁ
daily work commute. Pursuant to the agreement, the monthly lease EAEERERRD BT TERD
amount is determined with reference to prevailing market rates of FrEkfE - RIEZW=E BAMESR
similar premises in Henan Province. The General Lease Agreement B EE AU ENISRETE
has a term commencing from 19 August 2013 up to and including B —MRHEEHZENFHE_-Z
18 August 2016. — =N \A+tNLBRAKB BEE_ZT
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In order to continue to take advantage of the strategic location of BB R A AN B A E TR
the accommodation and catering facilities of XLX Chem, which are ERIOEBOME TERE NERGR Eﬂzﬁl']
in proximity to the Group’s production factories, the General Lease BRUBEED  —MEEHERZ
Agreement was renewed on 18 August 2016 with a term of three T-R"ENATNBEHR =%
years commencing from 19 August 2016 and ending on 18 August —R~ENATNBRE_ZT-NF
2019 (both days inclusive). The Group has set the fixed monthly NATNBLE(BEERERB) A
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GENERAL ACCOMMODATION AND CATERING AGREEMENT

The Group entered into the General Accommodation and Catering
Agreement on 13 November 2014 with XLX Chem Group, pursuant
to which Xinxiang Xinlianxin Hotel Co., Ltd. (“XLX Hotel"), an
associate of XLX Chem, agreed to provide accommodation and
catering services to Henan XLX for general staff and guests located
in Xiaoji Town, Xinjiang City of Henan Province, the PRC. Accordingly,
the Group can take advantage of the strategic location of XLX
Hotel's accommodation and catering facilities which is located at the
Group’s staff residential area and is nearby the Group’s headquarters
and factory site in Henan Province. Pursuant to the agreement, the
rates for accommodation and catering services are determined with
reference to prevailing market rates of 3 other similar premises and
services in the same province or nearest city.

The General Accommodation and Catering Agreement has a
term commencing from 1 January 2015 up to and including
31 December 2016. The Group has set the annual cap for the
service expenses paid by the Group to XLX Chem Group under the
agreement at RMB10,000,000 for FY2016.

XLX Hotel has ceased to be an associate of XLX Chem since 30
November 2015. For the year ended 31 December 2016, no
transaction contemplated under this agreement was carried out.

LIFTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

The Group entered into the Lifting Services Agreement on
13 November 2014 with XLX Chem Group, pursuant to which
Xinxiang Xinlianxin Lifting Equipment Co., Ltd. ("XLX Lifting”), a
subsidiary of XLX Chem, agreed to provide lifting services to Henan
XLX. This arrangement enables lifting equipment and machines to
reach the Group's production base promptly upon request. Pursuant
to the agreement, the fees for lifting services are calculated based
on the market price of similar services in the nearest city comparing
with at least 3 other vendors.
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planning and operation. Pursuant to the agreement, the fees for
lifting leases are calculated based on the market price of similar
leases in the nearest city comparing with at least 3 other vendors.
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The New Lifting Lease Agreement has a term commencing from 1 nRHERENHRE T —
January 2015 up to and including 31 December 2016. The Group F—A—B8F%H - Eﬁfg—/\i
has set the annual cap for the income received by the Group from +ZA=+—B(8#E%A) - &%
XLX Chem Group under the agreement at RMB3,230,000 for FY2016 B M AEERIEZ ?ﬁ?/L\L/L\

ETEREWEMBEA - & =F
MBRFENFE LREE/ARE
3,230,000 7T °

XLX Lifting has ceased to be a subsidiary of XLX Chem since BE-ZE—hF+—A=1+H" D&

30 November 2015. For the year ended 31 December 2016, no O # E Tﬁﬁ'ﬁ/uL/ufEIE’J B

transaction contemplated under this agreement was carried out. BAR - BE-_ZT—-—XRF+=-H
=+—RHIEFE  RpZEETILE
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November 2014 with XLX Chem Group, pursuant to which Henan H B0 /L\ﬂSI'i BT FrmEi
XLX agreed to lease machinery and equipment (on an as-needed EipaE - Bt - TmoELREME
basis) to be used by XLX Lifting. The lease of lifting machinery EWERE(REEEE) TLE
and equipment increases the flexibility in the Group’s production DR o RNEBEFE R MW LF



The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions and confirmed that these continuing
connected transactions have been entered into:

) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) according to the relevant agreement, governing them on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

Ernst & Young LLP, the Company's auditor, were engaged to report on the
Group's continuing connected transactions in accordance with International
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference
to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Ernst & Young LLP have issued an unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the SEHK.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the bank loans and other borrowings of the Group are set out in
note 29 to the financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 33 to 57 of this annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 46 to the financial
statements.
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Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital was held by the public at the date of this report.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS ON FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Companies Act requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for

RBARREFSHNAFEN MIBEESA
B MARETHBEH  ARFINEET

RAEE R ZE LD 25% HRARALTHE °

EERMBHRRARENEE

RAVEREEFANSEM B EFEREY

each financial year. These financial statements should give a true and fair view ~ § ¥k - ZEM B HRERBEEE R R T
of the financial position of the Group as at the end of the reporting period of ~ FIFRAREBE R EFE R MRS E BV ET

a particular year and on the financial performance of the Group for the year
then ended. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors should:

BAR A SEEE%Z B EFEOMBE
B EREZFVHHRE EFE

(a) select and apply consistently appropriate accounting policies, and (@) hERERBEREENSEECE -
make prudent, fair and reasonable judgement and estimation; WIEH A - ’&$&§@E’]#U i &
(e
(b)  report the reasons for any seriously deviation from accounting (b)) ERBEERMEEM ST EFROR
practice; and Y3
(©)  prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless itis ~ (¢)  AFFELE ‘;&fﬁ%ﬁﬁ‘%ﬁﬁ 23

inappropriate to assume that the Group could continue to operate.

The Directors are responsible for the proper keeping of accounting records
in order to secure the assets of the Company and the Group. The Directors
are also responsible for adopting reasonable measures to prevent and
check any fraudulences and irregularities.

3E{E“‘“$Elﬁﬁ FREEERTRE

EXAEYERTFEREHE  AREARQ
AIMAKENEE i%ﬂfﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁmé}ﬁ
Gt 0 01 LE R B EATREE R RETTR

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY EEREFBMER
As at 31 December 2016, there were 6,542 (2015: 6,665) employees in the RZE—RXF+-_A=+—H8 ~A£E

Group. Staff remuneration packages are determined in consideration of B65RZ(ZE—RHF 1 6665%)EE ©
market conditions and the performance of the individuals concerned, and B THMFBEEEREM R NMABEAR

are subject to review from time to time. The Group also provides other
staff benefits including medical and life insurance, and grants discretionary
incentive bonuses to eligible staff based on their performance and
contributions to the Group.
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AUDITOR

Ernst & Young LLP have expressed their willingness to accept re-
appointment as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Xingxu Yan Yunhua
Director Director

27 March 2017
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Statement by Directors
EER

N

We, Liu Xingxu and Yan Yunhua, being two of the Directors of China XLX &% - ZIEEREREE - EAFELEDN
Fertiliser Ltd., do hereby state that, in the opinion of the Directors, {EEBRARNEPAREBESE @ 2
i KEENER

(i) the accompanying statements of financial position, consolidated i) BEM B IRRR « R BREEE

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, EEKEE  FEEREHRK
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated e emeE RER M - KEZ%
statement of cash flows together with the notes thereto are drawn EEMARMEEAREEMAR

up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the RZE—RF+= H =+—H E’JJL'U?
Group and of the Company as at 31 December 2016, and the results, N ARBEZZT-—R"F+=A
changes in equity and cash flows of the Group for the year ended =+—H tiﬁzﬁﬁlaﬁ%,\ -
31 December 2016; and nFHREEREMER ;

(i) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to (ii) RARRMZEE HE  BEEGRY

believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when BEBABERR A AMEIE D AR
they fall due. BEEE -

On behalf of the Board REEFE

Liu Xingxu Yan Yunhua ) )

Director Director 21918 Bz

27 March 2017 —E—+F=RA=++H
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BERE

e
EY:

To the members of China XLX Fertiliser Ltd.
(Incorporated in Singapore with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements of China XLX Fertiliser Ltd. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) set out on pages
84 to 193, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements of the Group are
properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore
Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the “Act”) and International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs") so as to give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of the
consolidated financial performance, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group for the year then ended.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing ("ISAs") issued by International Auditing and Assurance Standards
Board (“IAASB"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory Authority
("ACRA") Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and
Accounting Entities ("ACRA Code") together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Independent Auditor”
B BE RS
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled our responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF GOODWILL

As at 31 December 2016, the goodwill allocated to the coal mining cash-
generating unit ("CGU") is carried at RMB25,361,000, representing 0.29%
of the total non-current assets of the Group. Management determined
the recoverable amount of this CGU based on value in use calculations
using cash flow projections covering a 31-year period. Based on the annual
impairment testing, no impairment charge was recognised during the
financial year.

As disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements, the cash
flow projections included key assumptions on budgeted gross margin, raw
material price, commodity price and discount rate. Management estimated
the budgeted gross margin based on the average gross margin achieved
in the year immediately before the budget year adjusted for expected
efficiency improvements and expected market developments. The raw
material and commodity prices are based on forecast price indices. The
discount rate used take into consideration the specific risks relating to the
CGU. We determined this to be a key audit matter because the impairment
assessment was complex and involved significant management judgement.
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As part of our audit, we checked that the cash flow projections were
based on approved management budgets that reflected business plans.
We involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us in assessing
the valuation method used by management and evaluating certain
key assumptions used in the cash flow projections. We evaluated the
assumptions used by comparing the budgeted gross margin to historical
data, comparing the raw material price and commodity price to external
observable data, and assessing the reasonableness of the discount rate
used by the management. We assessed the sensitivity of the value in use
balance to changes in the respective assumptions. We also assessed the
Group’s disclosures on the key assumptions and adequacy of the sensitivity
analysis in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT OF COAL MINING RIGHTS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group performed
impairment assessment on the coal mining rights of RMB95,099,000,
representing 1.07% of the total non-current assets of the Group.

The impairment assessment involved significant management assumptions
and estimation that are affected by future market and economic conditions.
Management determined the recoverable amounts of coal mining rights
based on value in use calculations using discounted cash flows. The
estimation of recoverable amounts of the coal mining rights is dependent
on macro-economic assumptions of future coal prices, future coal output,
discount rate used in the cash flow projections and projection on operating
costs. Management reviews the useful lives of coal mining rights annually
taking into consideration the actual coal output and the estimated coal
mine reserve. The estimation of the coal mine reserve is an inherent industry
risk due to the technical complexity in assessing the coal quantity and the
subjective management judgements involved in the estimation. Based on
the impairment test, management assessed that the coal mining rights
were not impaired as at 31 December 2016. As impairment assessment
of the coal mining rights are inherently complex and judgemental, we
determined this to be a key audit matter.

As part of our audit, we involved our internal valuation specialists to assist us
in assessing the valuation method used by the management and evaluating
certain key assumptions used in the impairment analysis. We compared
future coal prices and internal assumptions to historical data as well as the
economic and industry forecast. We also assessed the reasonableness of the
discount rate used by the management. We assessed the sensitivity of the
coal mining rights balance to changes in the respective assumptions. We
also have assessed the adequacy of the disclosure made on the impairment
assessment of coal mining rights in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor”
B BE RS

eport

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and IFRSs, and for devising and
maintaining a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide
a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised
and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true
and fair financial statements and to maintain accountability of assets.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors’ responsibilities include overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BE RS

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY HiEEMERRENRE
REQUIREMENTS

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Actto  BIR A - EEBERBRZERNIEXE
be kept by the Group have been properly kept in accordance with the RREZEARHATESBERENE R

provisions of the Act. Hithal gk -

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent  ANBYZEBAMENETEE G ARE

auditor’s report is Yong Kok Keong. 58 -

Ernst & Young LLP RAKERTENSEHE AT

Public Accountants and Chartered Accountants HEDIAI RS AT
One Raffles Quay One Raffles Quay

North Tower, Level 18 North Tower, Level
Singapore Singapore

27 March 2017 —ET—+F=ZA-++H
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Consolldated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
ﬁé?ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ@éﬁ q&ﬁﬁ% Year ended 31 December 2016 B E = F—NF+=H=+—HILFZF

2016 2015
—RE —E—hHF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR® TR ARETT
REVENUE KA 6 5,710,698 5,788,181
Cost of sales SHE AR (4,687,090) (4464611)
Gross profit EF 1,023,608 1,323,570
Other income and gains HAYIA Kz 6 69,985 80,699
Selling and distribution expenses SHE RO HEMATZ (435,334) (347,186)
General and administrative expenses —MRATB (318,612) (317,496)
Other expenses HAbFz (33,192) (33,181)
Finance costs B TR AR 8 (266,366) (228,190)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBLAD R R 7 40,089 478216
Income tax expense FTiSEiF 2 11 (11,054) (69,945)
Profit for the year F R T 29,035 408,271
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Efth2EW A~ (EE)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) tobe  REREHFEEFHIEE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BamENEMEE
periods: WA (E518)
Available-for-sale investments: A HERE
Change in fair value NF(ELE) 18 505 (1,097)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FREMEHE
FORTHE YEAR WA (E5E) 505 (1,097)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FRAZEBALE
THE YEAR 29,540 407,174
]
Profit attributable to: FEMRRF
Owners of the parent [SYNSIEZSPN 30,120 408,780
Non-controlling interest IR (1,085) (509)
29,035 408,271
]
Total comprehensive income attributable to:  fE{h 2R ALR%E
Owners of the parent ISTNEIL PPN 30,625 407,683
Non-controlling interest FERE R M A (1,085) (509)
29,540 407174
]
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO B A TEERER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BFEANELEERER
PARENT
Basic and diluted (RMB cents per share) EARET(ARESD) 13 2.56 3476
T
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w‘x’%ﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁfﬂﬁ 37 December 2016 R =E—NF+=-H=+—H

2016 2015
—NE —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bk AR¥ TR ARETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB L& 14 8,201,521 8,013,765
Prepaid land lease payments Taft T E IR 15 374,414 190,949
Goodwill S 16 25,361 25,361
Coal mining rights TR A A 17 95,099 99,514
Available-for-sale investment AMEHERE 18 6,708 7,500
Prepayments SEU NN 19 126,416 182,592
Prepayments to a related company ST REE AR
COREIRP/SE] 22 - 44,000
Deferred tax assets RAERIRE E 32 23,801 19,714
Total non-current assets IERMB)EEAEEE 8,853,320 8,583,395
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 18 4,185 3,680
Prepayments JERFB 19 355,913 241,184
Deposits and other receivables e N EA R FIR 19 432,578 492,256
Inventories & 20 449,505 453,921
Trade and bills receivables 2 5 EMGRIE
N & uﬁzm?ﬁ 21 75117 66,281
Due from related companies LN PO 22 9,146 2430
Income tax recoverable Emﬁl@ﬁﬁfﬁm 1,076 12,898
Pledged time deposits [REEECTEE=N 23 226,349 397,884
Cash and cash equivalents Re kBESEED 23 512,806 581,355
Total current assets MENVEELERR 2,066,675 2,251,889
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables B 5 ERHIR 24 185,577 140,229
Bills payable ANE S 25 655,020 998,738
Accruals and other payables JEEtE R R EM
FERT /I8 26 1,195,987 1,193,612
Due to related companies JERTRAE A R 22 4,391 8,805
Income tax payable FER TS HL 191 4
Deferred grants EEREAL 27 5,979 4,536
Loan from a non-controlling interest FEPE R MR B K 28 24,750 -
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 51 E3R7T & HALE TR 29 756,156 890,168
Bond payable JERTRE & 30 200,000 -
Total current liabilities MEN B BT 3,028,051 3,236,092
Net current liabilities FmEAaE (961,376) (984,203)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES A& ER AT E & 7,891,944 7599,192
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Consolidated Statement of Financial P05|t|oh

=1 Jﬁ%ﬂﬁfﬂ% 37 December 2016 R =ZE—NF+=-H=+—H

2016 2015
—RE —RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B ARETT ARETT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Loan from a non-controlling interest RS E R 28 75,250 -
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5T 88877 R E &K 29 3,601,386 3,568,783
Deferred grants EXEREEL 27 48,804 49450
Deferred tax liabilities BEHIREE 32 56,791 63,165
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R H A
IR 26 226,752 116,777
Bonds payable JERREES 30 600,000 800,000
Total non-current liabilities JEMB B R 4,608,983 4,598,175
Net assets FEE 3,282,961 3,001,017
T
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the RATHEE AELRES
parent
Share capital [N 33 881,124 881,124
Convertible bonds AR E S 31 322,436 322436
Revaluation reserve EhFEE 505 -
Statutory reserve fund EERES 34 285,412 275,880
Retained profits RE = 1,546,310 1,521,577
3,035,787 3,001,017
Non-controlling interest FEIEIRRE RS 247,174 -
Total equity “arEny 3,282,961 3,001,017
|
Liu Xingxu Yan Yunhua
2% 8 B
Director Director
EF EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity
ﬁ’%%ﬁ?&%@] R Vearended 31 December 2016 AR F—NF1—HA=+—HIFFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KRARENER
Available-
forsale
investment
revaluation
reserve Non-
lsued  Comvertble  A[HEHE Statutory Retained controlling
capital bonds  REBE  reservefund profits Total interest — Total equity
BEARE  WRRRES e EThE:  REEN B FARER s
(note 33) (note 31) (note 34)
(sE3s) (W30 (MsE3)
Notes RMB000 RMBI000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB(000
i ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETr ARETT ARETH
A1 January 2015 R-2-1%-A-H B4 3046 07 2900 41008 2674955 (149 2673456
Profitfor the year ERgt - - - - 408,780 406,780 (509 40871
Other comprehensive loss ortheyear:  EREHZEEE
Changein fairvalue of an AHHERENTE
avalable-forsale investment 28 - - (1097) - - (1097) - (1097)
Total comprehensive income/{loss) ERZERA/ (BE)
for the year ] - - (1097) - 408780 407683 (509) H7174
Acquisiion ofa non-controling interest  WEEME R AFEER
of a subsicliary R 4(0) - - - (702) (6323) (7025) 2008 (5017)
Transfer to statutory reserve fund SRTETER gl - - - 4740 [7400) - - -
2014final dividend paid ENZS-IE
RERE, - - - - 600000 (60000 - (60000)
Convertible bonds nterest AERERTIE 31 - 145% - - (1459%) - - -
Payment of convertible bondsinterest AT ERFIE - (145%) - - - (145%) - (145%)
At 31 Decernber 2015 RZZ-1%
TZR=1-H 881,124 320436 - 275880 1521577 3001017 - 3001017
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ﬁé%é%iﬂ% Year ended 31 December 2016 Bl —E—NF+ - H=+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADTERAEL
Available-
for-sale
investment
revaluation Non-
Issued ~ Convertible reserve  Statutory  Retained Total  controlling
capital bonds  AEHER reservefund profits interest  Total equity
BEARE  TRRES EAEMRE AERGE  RERR ar FeREs s
(note33) (note 31) (note 34)
(WiE3)  (WaE31) (Kt34)
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
GERl ARETT ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARMTr ARMTn ARMTn ARETR
A1 anuary 016 R-2-7E-A-H 881124 32243 - uE80 15N5TT 3001017 - 3001017
Profit for the year ERgEH = = = = 30,120 30,120 (1,085) 29,035
Other comprehensive incomefor the year: ~ FRE 2 EMNEE -
Changeln far value of an AHERENTE
available-for-sale investment £ - - 505 - - 505 - 505
Total comprehensive income(loss) En2ERA/ (BE)
forthe year ke - - 505 SN NS (108 2950
Disposal of partial interest inasubsidiary ~ HEMBARD /L
without oss of control MEEEHELEE 40 = = = = 101,741 101,741 248,259 350,000
Transfer o statutory reserve fund E LRy Y ¥ - - - 9532 9532) - - -
2015final dividend paid BFZE-RERHRE - = = = (83,0000 (83,000 = (83,000
Convertible bonds nterest AERERTIE 31 - 14,59 - - (14,59) = = =
Paymentof convertible bondsinterest TR AR ERFIS - (14,59%) - = - (14,59%) - (14,5%)
At31 December 2016 RZE-AF
+-A=t+-H 881,124 322,436 505 285412 1546310 3,035,787 247,174 3,282,961
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
MEBESRER  voarended 31 December 2016 BFE = F— 4= H=+—F 1 FE
2016 2015
—EB-AF —T-RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bk AR¥ TR ARETIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES &E&EZHHEESRE
Profit before tax FRA AT A 40,089 478216
Adjustments for: KR
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEft T E I
payments By 7 8,610 4,436
Amortisation of coal mining rights TR A 5 7 4,415 3,721
Depreciation of items of property, plant W - BB REE
and equipment HEHE 7 522,118 385,063
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant ~ HEWE - K=
and equipment HAEIE B 8BS R 7 2,424 17,294
Impairment loss of an available-for-sale AHEERE
investment KR EEE 7 792 1,021
Amortisation of deferred grants IR RO 5 6 (5,943) (4,605)
Interest income BN 6 (15,705) (25619
Finance costs IR IDN 8 266,366 228,190
823,166 1,087,717
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,(38GhN) 4,416 (113,113)
Increase in trade and bills receivables H 5 W IE & R
el (8,836) (29921)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments FER IR A, (3 h0) (101,937) 17,031
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and other g M E A REW R TE
receivables B (En) 59,678 (143,701)
Movement in balances with related BN 4B
companies (11,130) (39,329)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills B 5 e FE N ER
payables Fggm, i) (298,370) 136,628
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and other FERTE A R EAES
payables FIEEIN G 162,978 (75,053)
Cash generated from operations R EE
NIRRT RE 629,965 840,259
Government grants received EUEB AT AR AL 27 6,740 16,186
Interest paid 2R E 8 (278,081) (299,460)
Interest received 2 E 15,705 25,619
Tax paid 2RHIE (9,506) (72,277)
Net cash flows from operating activities K EEIR M E S 364,823 510,327
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Consolldated Statement of Cash Flows
MEBEESRER voorended 31 December 2016 BE = F— 4= H=+—F I FE
2016 2015
—RE —RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR® TR ARETT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES R &EZERESHE
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEWZE - FE
plant and equipment HABIEE TS RUE 20,440 2434
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEYE  KE
equipment L (723,500) (1,271,552)
Acquisition of a non-controlling interestina U BEF1 & A 7]
subsidiary IR 46(c) = (5017)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W B AR 36 - (94,442)
Acquisition of prepaid land lease payment i iBUEE T B 2 B1ULEE
through acquisition of a subsidiary TER A ER K 35,37 (61,000) -
Additions of land use rights NE T AR 15 (91,842) -
Decrease in pledged time deposits EHIRE AE R 171,535 96,380
Net cash flows used in investing activities SEEBMARS
TREFEE (684,367) (1,272,197)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RiEEZHHEESRE
Dividend paid on ordinary shares BT E AR S 12 (83,000) (60,000)
Payment of convertible bonds interest XA AR E B 31 (14,596) (14,596)
Proceeds from issue of a long-term bond BTRARMEES
PRISHIA - 600,000
Repayment of a long-term bond BERARERS o (250,000)
Proceeds from loans and borrowings B MAERATEF0R 2,064,545 1,876,678
Proceeds from a loan from a B AR R ERE
non-controlling interest of a subsidiary KRET1S 58 100,000 -
Capital injection from a BBl e 3
non-controlling interest of a subsidiary AE 46(a) 350,000 -
Repayments of loans and borrowings BEERRER (2,165,954) (1,442,246)
Net cash flows from financing activities REEEFTIS
REenEFRE 250,995 709,836
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERBESEZEY
EQUIVALENTS WA (68,549) (52,034)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FURE RESEFED
of year 581,355 633,389
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESRREZEEY
AT END OF YEAR 512,806 581,355
]
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH AND RERAESEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS REERD AT
Cash at banks and on hand and cash and RGBSR K
cash equivalents as stated in the Frit 2 $R1T1F 3K
consolidated statement of financial ERekEE
position MR EEBY 23 512,806 581,355
T
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Notes to Financial Statements
EJJZ%*E‘IEE BﬁH 371 December 2016 R —EFE—~NF+=-H=4+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

China XLX Fertiliser Ltd. is a limited liability company incorporated in
Singapore on 17 July 2006 under the Singapore Companies Act and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
registered office of the Company is located at 80 Robinson Road, #02-00,
Singapore 068898. The principal place of business of the Group is located
at Xinxiang High Technology Development Zone (Xiaoji Town), Henan
Province, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The principal activity of
the Company consists of investment holding. Particulars of all the Group’s
subsidiaries are disclosed in note 46.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Group and the Company had net current liabilities of approximately
RMB961 million and RMB16 million, respectively as at 31 December 2016.
After taking into account the available unutilised banking facilities, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and financial obligations as and
when they fall due, and accordingly, are satisfied that it is appropriate to
prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to restate the values of assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise and to
reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current assets and liabilities,
respectively. The effects of these adjustments have not been reflected in
these consolidated financial statements.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the "Act”),
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs”) (which include all
International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs") and Interpretations) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB") and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for available-for-sale investments, which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all
values in the tables are rounded to the nearest thousand ("RMB’000") except
when otherwise indicated.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2016. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e, existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(@) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 2.1 HmEEE(E)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (CONTINUED) REEE (48)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described in the accounting policy for subsidiaries
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained and
(i) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

All intra-group balances, income and expenses and unrealised gains and
losses resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated
in full.

Consolidation of the subsidiaries in the PRC is based on the subsidiaries’
financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs. Profits reflected in
the financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRSs may differ from
those reflected in the PRC statutory financial statements of the subsidiaries,
prepared for PRC financial reporting purposes. In accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations, profits available for distribution by the PRC
subsidiaries are based on the amounts stated in the PRC statutory financial
statements.
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2.2 CHANGESIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations
Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
IAS 16 and IAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation
Amendments to Agriculture: Bearer Plants

IAS 16 and IAS 41

Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of [FRSs

Cycle 2012-2014

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the
IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Consolidation Exception

Except for the amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28, amendments
to IFRS 11, IFRS 14, amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41, amendments to IAS
27, and certain amendments included in the Annual Improvements 2012-
2014 Cycle, which are not relevant to the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements, the nature and the impact of the amendments are described
below:
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 EBIFBERNEBHREE (&)
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)
@  Amendments to IAS 1 include narrow-focus improvements in (@) R ERE 1B ABIEE
respect of the presentation and disclosure in financial statements. %i%ﬁﬁ& ERARUBHRERZEHMNR
The amendments clarify: W o REFBEES -
(i) the materiality requirements in IAS 1; (i) R EREIRAZE
K%ﬁm ;
(i) that specific line items in profit or loss and the statement of (i BEEWBEKARAZEE
financial position may be disaggregated; BB R DTTAIR
(i) that entities have flexibility as to the order in which they iy ERBRERMBHBERMTZF
present the notes to financial statements; and FIEBEEE &
(iv)  that the share of other comprehensive income of associates vy FHAEZETAEEEESA
and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method ﬂ BENE 2 EMEEE N
must be presented in aggregate as a single line item, and mWAAETR—IHE2W
classified between those items that will or will not be Iﬁﬁ']ﬁ'r—fﬁj{?—fﬁ\ﬁﬁ
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. HfAEF BT ERE -

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply ~ Ib4N - ZFEFIEFMBMRAKR LB S
when additional subtotals are presented in the statement of  ¥RFEINNETZHRIE o HHEEFTH AL ER
financial position and profit or loss. The amendments have had no BBz REKEBARTE -

significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 clarify the principle in IAS 16 and
IAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are
generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part)
rather than the economic benefits that are consumed through the
use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be
used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be
used in very limited circumstances to amortise intangible assets. The
amendments are applied prospectively. The amendments have had
no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group as
the Group has not used a revenue-based method for the calculation
of depreciation of its non-current assets.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle issued in September
2014 sets out amendments to a number of IFRSs. Details of the
amendments are as follows:

IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations: Clarifies that changes to a plan of sale or a plan of
distribution to owners should not be considered to be a new
plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original
plan. Accordingly, there is no change in the application of
the requirements in IFRS 5. The amendments also clarify that
changing the disposal method does not change the date
of classification of the non-current assets or disposal group
held for sale. The amendments are applied prospectively.
The amendments have had no impact on the Group as
the Group did not have any change in the plan of sale or
disposal method in respect of the disposal group held for
sale during the year.

96 China XLX 2016 Annual Report

2.2

S ERERNSBRIKE (&)

R ERE 16 R LB ST
BIZE 38R IR T A BRI S5 2ER
169 R BB ET RS 385 AV R
Bl MR R EES(HRE
ER—9) FTEEMEERNSE
X MAERERFEREEMEEN
R o B WEIATEERAR
WEME  BERE&HE - MENE
IEERNBERT AAEEERE
B o ZEBRIARERIEA - A
A B EFE A AT B HIE
MEBEEMNINE  WZFBEIAT
SHAEBMNY B AREEEE
R E -

R-F—MEALABRBN -F—=
FE_T-NFBHERMBERE
A FRECES I BRA B RS
RAMZIAEE] o EETFIBIT

B B 75 3R 5 2 I 5B 5 SR 4
BIAMBHERIEREEEM
RIEEE  BEMAAHE
B DB NRE S
SRAMOLEE - M2
[RETEIHVIERR - F it - B
MR EERIFESHAEAE

SRR AR - %
BELEAE - BT R

BIZERAURLENIE
mMEBEESHERAN DA
B - ZFEFHREHE
17 ZFBRTHAREEYL &
EXFE ARFALEE
FANAELEN L ERE
HHEBIRHETRL A
BT -



A AN AN AN AN A AN AN A AN AN A N A AN AN AN AN
NTONTONZON 7ON 7ONON ZON 7ON 7N 7ON ZON 7ON 7 ON 7ON7ON 7ON 7ON 7ON 7ON 70N, /1
) (X)X XD A A DA IUAXI XD UX I XD XD XD XD XD XD XD XD XD X T XD

23 CEEMERERERER

AREBYRRZEVBHRRPEATIIE
M 1E 1 R AR F R] S B 7T BIFR B 75

2.3 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that have
been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 15

IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 7

Amendments to IAS 12
Amendments to IAS 40
IFRIC Interpretation 22

Annual Improvements
Cycle 2014-2016

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions®

Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts?

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers?

Leases?

Disclosure Initiative'

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses'

Transfers of Investment Property’

Foreign Currency Transaction and Advance

Consideration?
Amendments to a number of IFRSs'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
¢ No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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2.3 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be applicable to
the Group is as follows:

The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 in June 2016 that address three
main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a
cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the classification of a share-
based payment transaction with net settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order to meet the employee’s tax obligation associated
with the share-based payment; and accounting where a modification to
the terms and conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes
its classification from cash-settled to equity-settled. The amendments
clarify that the approach used to account for vesting conditions when
measuring equity-settled share-based payments also applies to cash-
settled share-based payments. The amendments introduce an exception
so that a share-based payment transaction with net share settlement
features for withholding a certain amount in order to meet the employee’s
tax obligation is classified in its entirety as an equity-settled share-based
payment transaction when certain conditions are met. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that if the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-
based payment transaction are modified, with the result that it becomes
an equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the transaction
is accounted for as an equity-settled transaction from the date of the
modification. The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 January
2018.The amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

In June 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9, bringing together
all phases of the financial instruments project to replace IAS 39 and all
previous versions of IFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The
Group expects to adopt IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. During 2016, the Group
performed a high-level assessment of the impact of the adoption of IFRS
9. This preliminary assessment is based on currently available information
and may be subject to changes arising from further detailed analyses or
additional reasonable and supportable information being made available to
the Group in the future. The expected impacts arising from the adoption of
IFRS 9 are summarised as follows:
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2.3 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)

(a) CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT

The Group does not expect that the adoption of IFRS 9 will have a
significant impact on the classification and measurement of its financial
assets. It expects to continue measuring at fair value all financial assets
currently held at fair value. Equity investments currently held as available for
sale will be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income as
the investments are intended to be held for the foreseeable future and the
Group expects to apply the option to present fair value changes in other
comprehensive income. Gains and losses recorded in other comprehensive
income for the equity investments cannot be recycled to profit or loss when
the investments are derecognised.

(b) IMPAIRMENT

IFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments recorded at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, lease
receivables, loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are
not accounted for at fair value through profit or loss under IFRS 9, to be
recorded based on an expected credit loss model either on a twelve-month
basis or a lifetime basis. The Group expects to apply the simplified approach
and record lifetime expected losses that are estimated based on the present
value of all cash shortfalls over the remaining life of all of its trade and
other receivables. The Group will perform a more detailed analysis which
considers all reasonable and supportable information, including forward-
looking elements, for estimation of expected credit losses on its trade and
other receivables upon the adoption of IFRS 9.
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2.3 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency between
the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor's interest in that associate or joint venture. The amendments are
to be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates and joint
ventures. However, the amendments are available for application now.

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The
principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for measuring and
recognising revenue. The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total
revenue, information about performance obligations, changes in contract
asset and liability account balances between periods and key judgements
and estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under IFRSs. In June 2016, the IASB issued amendments
to IFRS 15 to address the implement issues on identifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent and licences
of intellectual property, and transition. The amendments are also intended
to help ensure a more consistent application when entities adopt IFRS 15
and decrease the cost and complexity of applying the standard. The Group
expects to adopt IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and is currently assessing the
impact of IFRS 15 upon adoption.
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2.3 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)

IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 Leases, I(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, |(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives
and I(SIO)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to
recognise assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-
term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise
a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e,,
the right-of-use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless the
right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment property in IAS 40.
The lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the
lease liability and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required
to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the
depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees will also be required
to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such
as change in the lease term and change in future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine those payments.
Lessees will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the
lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting
under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting under IAS
17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification
principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019 and is
currently assessing the impact of IFRS 16 upon adoption.
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2.3 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and
non-cash changes. The amendments will result in additional disclosure to
be provided in the financial statements. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2017,

Amendments to IAS 12 were issued with the purpose of addressing the
recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses related to debt
instruments measured at fair value, although they also have a broader
application for other situations. The amendments clarify that an entity,
when assessing whether taxable profits will be available against which it
can utilise a deductible temporary difference, needs to consider whether
tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits against which it may make
deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary difference.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance on how an entity should
determine future taxable profits and explain the circumstances in which
taxable profit may include the recovery of some assets for more than their
carrying amount. The Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1
January 2017.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. For items that are traded in active markets, the fair value is determined
by reference to quoted market prices. For items with no active market, the
fair value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques, such as the
discounted cash flow analysis. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the services are
received.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation
of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity

interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration

FEIRE ) 82 SRR BRI B AT
ERR - HRREENRE 2 AARE

classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair ~ AR FEFE @ A FEZBHNBRIEM
value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified ~ #R & Wa TR o WE A RRE 2 HARE

as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the
fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December 2016. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

TEHFE  REGERNREANESE
g .

BE KUK E - AIFTEEANRE -
BRI R S & BN AR E L
RIS AR IBE T Iz A EZ B - 1
AT B R BRI B E R TREREFE L
ZF - MR EREMER ZENERE
EFEZAFE RiHEE - EEBEHR
Bam AR mEE R E R -

RAFERR - BB R ANMER A R
BEEEE - BEESFERERA -
8B E AR B RN B BRRREER A
BERER - Rl AT ETTIRN - A&
EEsFHEE—_T-R"FT-_A=1+—H
ZEBEITRER - BURERRINE
REBEHAEERE - HEKER MK
PERERPREHAMELEZ HRMEP X
BZAKERReELBNARSRSELE
Bl mimARBEMEENRREAR
DR EZFTEAEMME -

BELZEREEEcReELENCGRS
EEEMA) TRE BT HEE - WIR
TEABUV(REELEUE) ZATKRES
BIERERE(E - BIERRERE - L
MR RER IR S N ER IR A -

WEE I EERSELEM(IREESL
B AREMD - ZEBEMANEHLE
B BELRBARZBERARBER
HE  ABEELERE RZEBEREH
AR HERXGRREREELEN
EIELHEEREEE -

GEOBD —T <R 103

S7ON ONONZON 7ONZ7ON 7ON 7ON 7ON 7ON 7ON 7 ON 7ON 7ON 7 ON 7ON 7ON 7ON 7 ON 7O /1
JAX I X IUX AT X IR I AKX AR I AT UEAX DA DA IUX I AT XX I CAT X ICXD L
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTERHEE(E&)
(CONTINUED)
BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL (CONTINUED) ERSHNEE(8)



\M“ @fXTfXT@i@fXTFXTWfXTfXTfX

‘ L

/N

Notes to Financial Statements
Ejg%ﬁ% BﬁE 371 December 2016 R —FE—~NF+_-H=4+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

Non-controlling interest represents the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to owners of the parent, and are presented
separately in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position, separately from equity attributable to owners of the
parent.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. In such
circumstances, the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
parent.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTERHEE(E&)
(CONTINUED)
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED) NERTE (8)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:
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Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for F—H - ERNBREESGEREZRED
identical assets or liabilities HHRE R FHE)

Level2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level FIHZ - ERBATEFEMSEERKR
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is HAER (EESHEE) ZEE
observable, either directly or indirectly BWABBRMERE

Level3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level ~ SB=& - HEREAFEFEMSEEK

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on
a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY

The Group’s principal operations are conducted in the PRC. The directors
have determined the currency of the primary economic environment in
which each entity in the Group operates, ie., functional currency, to be RMB.
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Sales prices and major costs of providing goods and services including HIHEBEREKEER AN (BREELER
major operation expenses are primarily influenced by fluctuations in RMB. X ) FEX ARKREBEFE - XAEFEHF
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items ~ EfSEEFE AN B - Mt AS B8

included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency.

iz 2 HAB JIAREE S

g o

HECEY —Z— R FF% 105



\M“ @fXTfXT@i@fXTFXTWfXTfXTfX

‘ L

/N

Notes to Financial Statements
Ejg%ﬁ% BﬁE 371 December 2016 R —FE—~NF+_-H=4+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional
currencies of the Company and its subsidiaries and are recorded on initial
recognition in the functional currencies at exchange rates approximating
those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or
on translating monetary items at the end of the reporting period are
recognised in profit or loss.

For consolidation purpose, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations
are translated into RMB at the rate of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period and their profit or loss are translated at the exchange
rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. The exchange differences
arising on the translation are recognised in other comprehensive income.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or
loss.

RELATED PARTIES

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iif) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group

or of a parent of the Group;
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

or

(b)

0]

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The estimated useful lives and residual values used for
this purpose are as follows:
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useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in statement of profit or loss in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
(CONTINUED)

Construction in progress represents buildings and plant and machinery
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period
of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

COAL MINING RIGHTS

Coal mining rights are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses. A coal mining right is amortised on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life. The useful life of the
coal mining right is reviewed annually in accordance with the production
plans of the Group and the proven and probable reserves of the mine. The
coal mining right is written off to profit or loss if the coal mining property is
abandoned.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

Prepaid land lease payments are initially measured at cost. Following
initial recognition, prepaid land lease payments are measured at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. The
prepaid land lease payments are amortised on the straight-line basis.

The amortisation period and method are reviewed at each financial year
end. The amortisation expense is recognised in profit or loss.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication
that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when an
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group makes an
estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating
unit's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.
Where the carrying amount of an asset or cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down
to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified,
an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated
by valuation multiples or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and
forecast calculations which are prepared separately for each of the Group’s
cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five
years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied
to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for
assets that are previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to other
comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also recognised in
other comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting
date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the Group estimates the asset's or cash-generating unit's
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.
If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortisation, had no
impairment loss been recognised previously. Such a reversal is recognised
in profit or loss unless the asset is measured at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
INITIAL RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair

. . . Ra~ier
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale gm0

financial investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments
in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of
financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
(b) AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial assets
in listed and unlisted equity investments and debt securities. Equity
investments classified as available for sale are those which are neither
classified as held for trading nor designated as at fair value through profit
or loss. Debt securities in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss in other
income, or until the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest whilst
holding the available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and are recognised in profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (i) the variability in the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is significant for that investment or (ii) the probabilities of the
various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and
used in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
(b) AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its available-
for-sale financial assets in the near term are still appropriate. When, in rare
circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due to
inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets
if management has the ability and intention to hold the assets for the
foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category, the
fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its new
amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life
of the investment using the effective interest rate. Any difference between
the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the asset
is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in
equity is reclassified to profit or loss.

DE-RECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of
a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
DE-RECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and
to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future
cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(a) FINANCIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT AMORTISED COST

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not yet been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose
of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of
future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred
to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss
increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered,
the recovery is credited to other expenses in profit or loss.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
(b) FINANCIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT COST

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Impairment losses are not reversed.

(] AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that an
investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising the
difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation)
and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and recognised
in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective
evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that investment previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

(© AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement.
In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the
duration or extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its
cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale, impairment is
assessed based on the same criteria as financial assets carried at amortised
cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss
measured as the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised
in profit or loss. Future interest income continues to be accrued based
on the reduced carrying amount of the asset using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance income.
Impairment losses on debt instruments are reversed through profit or loss if
the subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
INITIAL RECOGNITION AND MEASUREMENT

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and bill payables, certain
accrual and other payables, loan from a non-controlling interest, amounts
due to related companies, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
bonds payable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

(a) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial
liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IAS
39. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses
on liabilities held for trading are recognised in profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition and
only if the criteria in IAS 39 are satisfied.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
(b) LOANS AND BORROWINGS

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in profit or loss.

(©) FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT AMORTISED COST

After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised, and through the amortisation
process.

DE-RECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in profit or loss.

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Convertible bonds issued by the Group are recognised and included in
shareholders' equity based on the terms of the contract. Transaction costs
are deducted from equity, net of associated income tax. The carrying
amount of the convertible bonds is not remeasured in subsequent years.
Convertible bond interest of 4.5% per annum is payable in cash annually
in arrears on the anniversary of the issue date (i.e. 21 December 2011) in
each year, commencing on the first anniversary of the issue date, which are
accrued and paid through the transfer from retained profits of the Group.

BONDS PAYABLE

Bonds payable are classified under loans and borrowings and recognised
initially at fair value. After initial recognition, bonds payable are
subsequently measured at cost because the effect of discounting would be
immaterial as their terms are relatively short.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including short-
term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted
as to use.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition
are accounted for as follows:

Where necessary, allowance is provided for damaged, obsolete and slow-
moving items to adjust the carrying value of inventories to the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)
has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an
outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the
provision is reversed. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a
finance cost.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are received from the local PRC government on a
discretionary basis as determined by the government. They are recognised
at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed. Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is recognised as
deferred capital grant on the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant
asset by equal annual instalments.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist
of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS — PENSION BENEFITS

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operates in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs as stipulated by the
PRC regulations to a pension fund managed by government agencies,
which are responsible for administering these amounts for the subsidiaries’
employers.

The Company makes contributions to the Central Provident Fund Scheme
in Singapore, a defined contribution pension scheme. Contributions to the
defined contribution pension scheme are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related service is performed.

Pension contributions are recognised as an expense as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the relevant schemes.

LEASES

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets
remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any
incentives received from lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured,
regardless of when the payment is made. Revenue is measured at the
fair value of consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The
following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is
recognised:

(a) SALE OF GOODS

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised upon the transfer of significant
risk and rewards of ownership of the goods to the customer, which
generally coincides with delivery and acceptance of the goods sold.

(b) INTEREST INCOME

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

(@ SUBSIDY INCOME

Subsidy income represents subsidies received from the government and
is recognised upon cash receipt and when all the relating conditions are
fulfilled.

(d) AMORTISATION OF DEFERRED GRANTS

Deferred grants are amortised and credited to profit or loss by annual
instalments over the expected useful life of the relevant assets the grants
are intended to compensate.

(e) COMPENSATION INCOME

Compensation income is recognised when the Group’s right to receive
payment is established.

(f) RENTAL INCOME

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease term.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INCOME TAXES

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items
recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

CURRENT TAX

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

- When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

3. TESTBEREE(E)

Frig®i

P8 B BIEE A RRIERR - BRERIR I
2 2 SN BT A B M0 TS BERE R A 26 DL
gb » AR ELA 2 FUR S o B AR
W2 -

BIEARL I8

REHERENRDHEREE G ENH
R(RBZE)  TERAEERLLAAERR
MIRBDAR M LB R MOE - BTHIR IR
BENMABATERB R E S

NS -
BB

EXEFRBDABBERZEEMRBENTE
B EL 5L B 75 R i B ROBREME R ¥R & A 1
HFTA B IEZRERT IR -

PrAMEE R ZEYSERRLHRAE
& MR TERAIRSIN -

- EERIBERED B IFBEEE
HORZHNEHRABELEENL
BEMEL MEXSHEET
MR ERBEN BRI EZE
53

- M LRMEAR  BERBRREE
EENRENERTERIEEEM
5 (e AR R E R
@ AREREEEAE T gEr
Rz mE -

HEOEDY —T R FFR 125



\M“ @fXTfXT@i@fXTFXTWfXTfXTfX

‘ L

/N

Notes to Financial Statements
Ejg%ﬁ% BﬁE 371 December 2016 R —FE—~NF+_-H=4+—H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)
DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

- When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

- In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

VALUE-ADDED TAX (“VAT")

The Group’s sales of goods in the PRC are generally subject to VAT at the
applicable tax rates of 13% (for urea and compound fertiliser segments) and
17% (for methanol segment) for PRC domestic sales. However, as part of
the government subsidies for the fertiliser industry, full VAT exemption was
given to urea and compound fertiliser sales in prior years.

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of VAT,
except:

- Where the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not
recoverable from the taxation authority, the VAT is recognised as
part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense
item as applicable; and

- Receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of VAT
included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of
financial position.

SEGMENT REPORTING

For management purposes, the Group is organised into operating
segments based on their products and the segment results are reported
directly to the management of the Company who regularly reviews the
segment results in order to allocate resources to the segments and to
assess the segment performance. Additional disclosures on each of these
segments are shown in note 5, including the factors used to identify the
reportable segments and the measurement basis of segment information.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3. TESTBEREE(E)

(CONTINUED)
CONTINGENCIES HAREIE
A contingent liability is: SARBELR

(a) a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group;

or

(b) a present obligation that arises from past events but is not
recognised because:

@ ABEAEMHMUREEENES U
EEHKERE —THERTEER
REMHSHRBEESRERER - MASE
BT em 2 mslt SR REHE
BEEHE
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0) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying 0) TARBEZALENZNE
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; TRREUBERBER : 3
or

(i) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised on the consolidated
statement of financial position of the Group, except for contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination that are present obligations and which
the fair values can be reliably determined.

DIVIDENDS

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of each reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
the asset or liability affected in the future periods.

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements:

INCOME TAXES

The Group has exposure to income taxes in Singapore and the PRC.
Significant judgement is involved in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are certain transactions and computations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for expected tax issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recognised, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s income tax recoverable, income tax
payable, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at 31 December
2016 were RMB1,076,000, RMB191,000, RMB23,801,000 and RMB56,791,000,
respectively (2015: RMB12,898,000, RMB4,000, RMB19,714,000 and
RMB63,165,000, respectively).

4. EARESFHERMEE

mAAEEGAMBRAFTEETEEFL
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RHFE

FriS®t

REBEFTINE KPR BEHNSE - &
EFSHBEESIRERHEH £AE
¥BBRIET  BETR P RFTEEGTEME
EREBMHTNETE - AEERESLEE
SNRTBRIHAR(EET - ERETEREEE
ZBE - WEZEEEIREHBERELY
PR SBIE - ZEERHTEED
EHRETHEEH RIRERBEME
AEBR-_ZE—ARF+A=+—HA/7
WEIFTSHR - ERFTSH - BEMRIBEE
MEERBAENEEESNAARE
1,076,0007C + A R #1910007TC + A R &
23,801,000 7T & A R # 56,791,000 ( = &
—HF : pRIAARE 128980007 * AR
®40007C © AR19714000 7T B A R
63,165,000 7C) °
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period are discussed
below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control
of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
occur.

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual
basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of
goodwill at 31 December 2016 was RMB25,361,000 (2015: RMB25,361,000).
Further details are given in note 16.

USEFUL LIVES OF PLANT AND MACHINERY

The cost of plant and machinery for the production of fertilisers is
depreciated on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets. Management estimates the useful lives of the production lines
to be within 8 to 15 years. Changes in the expected level of usage and
technological developments could impact the economic useful lives of the
plant and machinery and therefore depreciation charges could be changed
in line with revisions to the expected economic useful lives. The carrying
amount of the Group’s plant and machinery at 31 December 2016 was
RMB5,158,337,000 (2015: RMB4,947,091,000).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)
IMPAIRMENT OF COAL MINING RIGHTS

The carrying values of coal mining rights are reviewed for impairment
when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values
may not be recoverable in accordance with the accounting policy for the
impairment of non-financial assets in the section of summary of significant
accounting policies. The recoverable amounts of the coal mining rights,
or, where appropriate, the cash-generating units to which they belong,
are calculated as the value in use. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to estimate the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating
unit and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. At 31 December 2016, no impairment
loss has been recognised for the coal mining rights. The carrying amount
of the coal mining rights at 31 December 2016 was RMB95,099,000 (2015:
RMB99,514,000).

COAL MINE RESERVE

The estimation of the Group's coal mine reserve are inherently imprecise and
represent only approximate amounts because of the subjective judgements
involved in developing such information. There are authoritative guidelines
regarding the engineering criteria that have to be met before an estimated
coal mine reserve can be designated as “proved” and “probable”. Proved
and probable coal mine reserve estimates are updated on regular intervals
taking into recent production and technical information about each mine.
In addition, as prices and cost levels change from year to year, the estimate
of the proved and probable coal mine reserve also changes. This change is
considered a change in estimate for accounting purposes and is reflected
on a prospective basis in related amortisation rates.

The capitalised cost of the coal mining right is amortised over the estimated
useful life of the related coal mine reserve. The useful life is reviewed
annually in accordance with the production of the plants of the Group and
the proven and probable reserves of the coal mines. The carrying amount
of the coal mining rights at 31 December 2016 was RMB95,099,000 (2015:
RMB99,514,000).

4. EARESFHERMEE (K)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

4. EARSFHERMEE (K)

fhEt NEARIE = (%)

IMPAIRMENT OF AN AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT A ERERIE
The Group classifies a listed equity investment as available for sale and ~ ASEE EmRAKEESERAIHEE -
recognises movements of its fair value in equity. When the fair value ~ W EmKXAEREAFTEEZES - ERQT

declines, management makes assumptions about the decline in value
to determine whether there is an impairment that should be recognised
in profit or loss. At 31 December 2016, provision for impairment loss of
RMB1,613,000 (2015: RMB2,118,000) has been made for available-for-sale
investment. The carrying amount of this available-for-sale investment was
RMB4,185,000 (2015: RMB3,680,000). Further details are given in note 18.

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on its products, and has the following operating segments:

BETRE - BEEEREETRELRR
NEEREEREAREBRENER - ©
—E-RF+ZA=1+—8  mEEER
BARE1613000(ZZE—HF: AR
#2,118,0007C) E/ERATHHH &R E o 7]
HEEREZEREEEAAR 4185000 7T
(ZE2—hF : AR¥36800007T) ° #—
HEHIEHRMIEE 18 ©

5. RKEWER

EEMS  AREREEMSID HER
B - WA T ARG EDH

() Manufacture and sale of urea 0] FEREERE
(i) Manufacture and sale of compound fertiliser (i) HEERHEEESE

(ii) Manufacture and sale of methanol

(iv) Manufacture and sale of other products such as furfuryl alcohol,
crude methanol, liquid ammonia, ammonia solution and melamine

In the opinion of the directors, there were only limited operations in the
subsidiaries that are engaged in coal mining and the sale of coal and
the assets and liabilities were not material for the purpose of segment
reporting. Accordingly, a separate operating segment for the coal mining
business carried out by these subsidiaries has not been presented.

Except as indicated above, no operating segments have been aggregated
to form the above reportable operating segments.

132 China XLX 2016 Annual Report

(i) HEERHEETE

(v, HSENMHEHMER WS K
RRFE  RER  RARL=F
i

EERR - NERBREFAR MR R HE /T
BRAFERNEBTOER  REBER
BEHOMERMEALTEKN - Bt - I
BRI ED AR ZENB LR

PTAS & B IRFI RS o

B EXPTHRIN - WEZE D EE A G
bt A FR R AR 0 EE




AN AN A AN AN A AN AN VAN AN AN AN AN AN AN VAN VAN VAN VAN AN,
?%N@}/&%N%N@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@y&y%xﬁpﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁggﬁﬂ

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of gross profit. Group
financing (including finance costs), income taxes and other unallocated
items, as explained below, are managed on a group basis and are not
allocated to operating segments.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling
prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing market
prices.

ALLOCATION BASIS

Segment results include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items
comprise other income and gains, other expenses, selling and distribution
expenses, general and administrative expenses, finance costs and income
tax expense.

Group assets and liabilities cannot be directly attributable to individual
segments as it is impracticable to allocate them to the segments. Assets of
the Group are utilised interchangeably between different segments and
there is no reasonable basis to allocate liabilities of the Group between
different segments. Accordingly, it is not meaningful to disclose assets,
liabilities and capital expenditure by operating segments.

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

There is no geographical information presented as the Group mainly
operates in Mainland China only.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

5.
SEGMENT PROFIT INFORMATION D ERRAE R

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the segment profitis ~ NARIEFRRD ERNAEF]
the gross profit.

Compound
Urea fertiliser Methanol Others Elimination Total

Year ended 31 December 2016 R& BEE BE Hitr EIF] st
BE-E-—~E RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
+-A=1+-HLFE ARETRE AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥ETR AR¥ETz ARETx:
REVENUE KA
Sales to external customers HELIMBER 2,939,765 1,657,994 532,401 580,538 - 5,710,698
Intersegment sales HEEEE 273,336 11,230 2,266 6,366 (293,198) -
Total revenue HET N 3,213,101 1,669,224 534,667 586,904 (293,198) 5,710,698
Segment result SHLE 558,767 277,821 79,720 107,300 — 1,023,608
Reconciliation: i -
Interest income FIEUA 15,705
Unallocated other income RAOBEMBA

and gains Rllezs 54,280
Unallocated expenses AR (787,138)
Finance costs AR (266,366)
Profit before tax BRBEATE R 40,089
Income tax expense FSHREY (11,054)
Profit for the year FERET 29,035
Other segment information: Hihn &R :
Loss on disposal of items of HENE - HE

property, plant and equipment R EIE B EE 2424
Depreciation of items of property, 1% + = Rkt

plant and equipment REWE 522,118
Amortisation of prepaid land lease T 3T E

payments HIEHE 8,610
Amortisation of coal mining rights A& 5 BRI 4 4,415
Capital expenditure* BEART 824,580

]
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5.

SEGMENT PROFIT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

5. KeaMEs (@&

Compound
Urea fertiliser Methanol Others Elimination Total

Year ended 31 December 2015 K& EAHE il Hith Eakz] 5t
HE-T—RF RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
TZA=T—HILEE AEETFT  ARETR ARETrT ARETr ARETrT ARETR
REVENUE A
Sales to external customers HERIMEEP 3235610 1,765,700 547,935 238,936 - 5,788,181
Intersegment sales DEFEHE 401,771 9,745 1788 9434 (422738) -
Total revenue UGN 3,637,381 1,775,445 549,723 248,370 (422,738) 5,788,181
Segment result NEEE 886,805 351,140 68,092 17,533 - 1323570
Reconciliation: Bk -
Interest income FIEWA 25619
Unallocated other income AABEMBA

and gains e 55,080
Unallocated expenses AAERET (697,863)
Finance costs BT (228,190)
Profit before tax B ADE F 478216
Income tax expense IR (69,945)
Profit for the year FRET 408,271
Other segment information: HippHES
Loss on disposal of items of HENE - BE

property, plantand equipment  KREE B MEE 17,94
Depreciation of items of property, 1% R Rk

plant and equipment BEWE 385,063
Amortisation of prepaid land lease B L3 E

payments IR 4436
Amortisation of coal mining rights 1% i R 54 3,721
Capital expenditure* B * 1622414

|

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets including assets from the acquisition of a subsidiary.

* EXARBEREYE  BFELRELE
WEAESEREKRBHBRARNEE -
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6. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. WA - Hig AR W
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, after deductionof ~ WAIEHEEmIWHIRIEBERIE - RE K&

relevant taxes and allowances for returns and trade discounts.

An analysis of the Group's revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

PR FEREE -

REBEUA - B A R Uz 5 4740
T~

2016 2015
—E—REF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETIT
Revenue A
Sales of goods HEEMm 5,710,698 5,788,181
]
Other income and gain Hnl A R Uz
Bank interest income HRITRLEHA 15,705 25619
Net profit from sales of by-products SHE BIEmAV AL R 7,474 19,968
Amortisation of deferred grants (note 27) EIERERLEE S (MR 27) 5,943 4,605
Subsidy income HBhE WA 25,681 18,565
Compensation income AERE 10,373 9,774
Rental income HERA 2,787 1,932
Others Hth 2,022 236
69,985 80,699
]
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBEADRF
REBIRGRTADRF T

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging:

2016 2015
—RE —hEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR® T AREETIT
Cost of inventories sold? HETFERA 4,687,090 4,464,611
Depreciation of items of property, plant VI~ BE KiE
and equipment HEE 14 522,118 385,063
Amortisation of prepaid land TEf LA BRI 8
lease payments 15 8,610 4,436
Amortisation of coal mining rights RIS 5 17 4,415 3,721
Minimum lease payments under e T ER =N
operating leases: MRERSR
Land i 1,272 1,792
Buildings BT 2,239 2,239
Factories TR 1,000 3,450
4,511 7481
Auditor's remuneration ZEE 2 2,317 2522
Employee benefit expenses (including EEBRAAX (B
directors' remuneration (note 9)): == 5 ( PIEE9)) -
Salaries and bonuses %ﬁi& 349,114 341,614
Pension scheme contributions Wi.ﬁr%ﬁ K
(defined contribution scheme) (EERFRETED) 23,380 23677
Benefits in kind EWHe 26,331 25,889
398,825 391,180
Impairment loss of an AR ERE
available-for-sale investment* EONEREY =t 18 792 1,021
Unrealised exchange losses, net* REIRE ST
HER 24,398 12,484
Realised exchange losses, net* BRI HEE
ERRT 3,815 1,137
Loss on disposal of items of property, LEME - WE
plant and equipment* N EBIE B By~ 2,424 17,294
|
* Included in “Other expenses” disclosed in the consolidated statement of profit or * AFAGAEREMEARERATEREN
loss and other comprehensive income [EfFZ] -
# Included wages and salaries of RMB89,103,000 (2015: RMB52,719,000) disclosed # SFAREEEFASIRENTIERFEA

R#89103000L( - B —FHE: ARK
52,719,00070) : % - BB M #EIE B
ERBBOITER S AR 454,565,000 7T
(ZZ—AF : AR%316834,0007T) °

under employee benefit expenses and depreciation charges of RMB454,565,000
(2015: RMB316,834,000) disclosed under depreciation of items of property, plant
and equipment
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. MEMAEAE
The Group's finance costs are analysed as follows: REENIBELASHTAT :
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFIT
Interest on bank loans, overdrafts, other loans HWITEN - RITEZ -
and bonds payable (including government HihEFRmERES
loans) (BRBFER) HEMNFE 278,081 299,460
Less: Interest capitalised (note 37) W FBEAME (FEE37) (11,715) (71,270)
266,366 228,190
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rule, section
383(1)(@), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, for the year is as follows:

9. EEMe

RIE ETARRI - BAERFEGIFE383(1)@) »
(b) * (O M () B AR (WBEEENEER)
MPIE 2 B H A FREESHM T

2016 2015

—E-RF —T—hEF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥ TR ARETFT

Fees BE 800 800
Other emoluments: Hib< -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYAE 2,217 2,229

Performance related bonuses* EECLL - 8,044

Pension scheme contributions RN ET B 123 111

2,340 10,384

3,140 11,184

L]

In the prior year, certain executive directors of the Company were entitled to
bonuses which were determined as a percentage of the profit after tax of the
Group.

(a) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year were

* AI—4E  ARBEETHITESHRES
BEAREEBRBEEN B 0 L EEREA -

(@ BIUFHITES
FANTELIFRTES 2RI

as follows:

2016 2015
—E-KRF “T-RF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Ong Kian Guan TR 300 300
Li Shengxiao TER 250 250
Ong Wei Jin F R 250 250
800 800

T

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non-
executive directors during the year (2015: Nil).

FABERN TIBILIFRITE SR E BN
(ZFT—RF &)
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9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONTINUED)

(b) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND A NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

9. EEME
(b) HITEENR—BFHTES

Salaries, Pension
allowances and scheme
benefits in kind Performance- contributions Total
Fees ¥4 28  related bonuses* Bk$  remuneration
Year ended 31 December 2016 e RENAZ ZETEAL* HE LN @&
BE-E—RE RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
+ZA=1+-HLFE AR¥TT AR¥TT AR¥TT AR®TT AR¥T
Executive directors: HITESE:
Liu Xingxu el - 859 - 4 900
Yan Yunhua BiE - 679 - A 720
Zhang Qingjin RES - 679 - A 720
- 2,217 - 123 2,340
Non-executive director; FHTES
Lian Jie B2 = = = = =
- 2,217 - 123 2,340

Year ended 31 December 2015 (2 _E—-0fF

TZA=T—HIL¥E
Executive directors: HiTEE
Liu Xingxu 21%m - 863 3218 37 4118
Yan Yunhua BaE - 683 2413 37 3133
Zhang Qingjin ®E2(R-2—1F
(appointed on ZAZT+tBRZI)
27 March 2015) - 683 2413 37 3133
Li Buwen (resigned EHEN(AZT—RF
on 27 March 2015) AT REHE) - - - - -
- 2229 8044 m 10,384
Non-executive director: FHTES
Lian Jie RZ - - - - -
- 2229 8,044 m 10,384

*

Performance-related bonuses are based on the profit before tax of the Group for
each financial year.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the year (2015: Nil).

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors as

an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three (2015:
three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining two (2015: two) non-director,
highest paid employees for the year are as follows:

10. HEERSHFMES

AEBARFENRIERHNEERE=
Z(ZT—0F: =ZR)EE - HMEemNs
BER EXHE FEESBRE(ZF
—hF:MB)IFEETRHMESNH
THIFFIBIT -

2016 2015

—EB-XREF —T—REF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%TR ARETIT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REWFE 463
Performance-related bonuses Eviaal 1,200
Pension scheme contributions RN FH IR 74
1,742

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose remuneration
fell within the following bands is as follows:

MeETIHEZANFEERSHHE
BMgBEMT

Nil to RMB500,000 T E AR 500,0007T

AR#E 500001 TTE
AR 1,000,000 7T

RMB500,001 to RMB1,000,000

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the five
individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

AREFR - NEEY ER T L RSF
BEXNME  (FRIMAKRIMAREE
Ry B SR B S VB AR RE R D R 1B o
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The Company was incorporated in Singapore and was subject to income
tax at the rate of 17% (2015: 17%) for the year.

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of
tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to income tax
at the rate of 25% (2015: 25%). In prior years, one of the subsidiaries was
given the New/High Tech Enterprise Award as recognition of its innovation
and use of state-of-the-art equipment. This award brought this subsidiary a
tax concession of a lower income tax rate (i.e. 15%) for the years ended 31
December 2014, 2015 and 2016.

The major components of income tax expense for the financial years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015 are:

ARNBRFT B MRS - RAFEEIR
17%(ZF—1%F 17%) SRR R
WNFRIE o

A EAb I T7 R B M O TR IR IR AN &=
BRTEMBIRRITHFERE

RN BB B 2 B A AR B A b B AR BT S R
TR (T —FHF : 25%) BARNTRIE -
BEFE  HP—RWEBRAREZRS T

MhEEE - LB EERREH R EML
R BAMTRME o ZETREZIME A BRE

EZTWF ZF-AFRZTAF
Tt A=t RLEFEAZAREMREHR
B (B0 15%) MOBLTHEE

HE-_Z2—RNER-ZE—HF+=A
=t BUMBRFEERSHMASZ s TES

DT

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFIT
Current - PRC BNER -
Charge for the year FEBIE 18,504 85,671
Under/(ovenprovision in prior years BEFEREIR
(EBRERE ) 3,011 (6,037)
Deferred (note 32) RIEFIA (M93E32) (10,461) (9,689)
Total tax charge for the year REERIBF T 85 11,054 69,945
]
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11. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rates for the countries in which the Company and its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax charge for the year at the effective tax rate is as

follows:

11. F8% (])

REZERERNRAR T MEKNE A B A
T B BA TE B R 5T 5B BV BR AR A A RO 37
R R BRI R G E R B IAR ST H R
mr

2016 2015

—E—XREF ZE—RF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥ TR ARETFT

Profit before tax FR A A1 A 40,089 478,216

Tax at statutory tax rates REAER R EMNTIE 13,148 121,800
Adjustments in respect of current tax BT B 89 RNEATL 18

of previous periods {ER AT 3,011 (6,037)

Effect of a tax concession BMBESENTE (15,210) (58,114)

Expenses not deductible for tax AR 5,319 1,582

Tax losses not recognised RERBIEEE 4,874 10,725

Others HAtb (88) (an

Tax charge at the effective rate of 27.6% REBRE27.6%

(2015: 14.6%) (ZZ—HF 1 146%)

STEMFIERY

12. DIVIDEND

Proposed final dividend — RMB4.0 cents
(2015: RMB8.3 cents) per ordinary share

EALRE - BREER
AE%M
(ZZ2—h%F:
AREES3IS)

69,945
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREFIT
40,000 83,000

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

RENZZNRAREAFARABRER
IR ERITHBRCRIBFEANS LHt/E - 1A 1E

o

i

\
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares (inclusive
of mandatorily convertible instruments issued) of 1,176,000,000 (2015:
1,176,000,000), as adjusted to reflect the convertible bonds issued in 2011.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on:

) LX) X XD (XD XD (XD XD XD

13. BRRAEBEREZRSAEAERG
sRAER

EREAREERFCEIBREF AR LT
BRESEEABRGFRGH @ REHE
R =T ——FE BT RRESH
38 ML AN AE S5 501,176,000,000 B (BIFEE
BITHREIE R TR) (ZE—R%F:
1,176,000,000 %) T &S H °

IR R R D ERIA T B E

=] .
=4 -

2016 2015
—E-REF —T-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETFT
Earnings ZF|
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of ~ FIRFHE TAREA K #5E
the parent, used in the basic and diluted BFHEFA R LR
earnings per share calculation A AR & A 30,120 408,780
2016 2015
—E-AE —E—hF
Number of shares Number of shares
B EE iavEd=

g7y

Shares

At ESRERN LS 2T
= #E BT8R

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(inclusive of mandatorily convertible

instruments issued) for the purpose of (BIEEBEITREHIE
calculating basic and diluted earnings per AIAR T H)

share

1,176,000,000 1,176,000,000
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - WERRKE

31 December 2016 R-E—XRE+=-HA=+—H

Office
Otherfixtures equipment
and structures Plantand  and fumiture Motor  Construction

Buildings HEftEE  machinery BAZE vehicles  in progress Total

By MENREE REREE RERGR RE  HERIE #
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMB000

ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR ARETR

Cost A
At January 2016 RZE-E-A-H 1024708 1174414 6284876 263,823 79009 898385 9725215
Addions hE 4,642 15727 58,833 11,41 8406 633,889 732738
Transfers EE 43193 34,592 549,290 8017 - (63509) -
Disposals & (11,134) - (15,356) (1343) (1968) - (29801)
At31 December 2016 RZF-ETZA=1-R 1061400 124733 6877643 281,738 85447 897182 10,428,152
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE:
A1 January 2016 RZ5—"5-A-H 106,569 133112 1337785 104,831 29,153 - 1711450
Depreciation provided during the year ERIEARE 42,035 48,530 385,576 3,640 12337 - 522,118
Disposals & (1,39) (439) (4,055) (120) (927) - (6,937)
At31 Decernber 2016 REZ-RETZA=T-A 147,208 181203 1719306 138351 40,563 - 226631
Net carrying amount; ESE:
At31 December 2016 RZF—ETZA=1-H 914201 1043530 5158337 143,387 44884 897,182 820151

The Group has pledged plant and machinery with a net carrying value A& E 2 EHREFE A R 220,991,000

of RMB220,991,000 (2015: RMB245,546,000) to secure a bank borrowing ~ 7C(ZZ—H%F : AR 245,546,000 7T ) R

granted to the Group (note 29). F5 K e as DAREIRIX T AL B —IHIRTTE K
(Bf5E29) ©

RELED —F<EER 145




DG2]670]5670]80]102]00160]50]100]1091500150]100]001560100100]8%
Notes to Financial Statements
Eji%iﬁ%% BﬁH 37 December 2016 R —FE—NF+—H=+—H

\<
>< ‘ B ’
X

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED) 14. ¥ - BERRKRE(E)

31 December 2015 R-ZE-HF+=-A=+—H
Office
Otherfixtures equipment and
and structures Plant and furniture Motor  Construction
Buldings EEE  machiney  HAZRE vehicles— n progress Total
BT WEnREE RBRRER Rix& B RRIE h)

RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RWBO  RWBO  RVBOO  RMBOO  RMBOWO
ARRTTL  ARRTL  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR ARMTR  ARETR

Cost A
At January 2015 R-E-1%-A-H 646,163 87176 4326534 180991 49239 2,168891 8,048,994
Additions AE 2874 10553 61,360 35,755 31302 129,122 1437966
Acquistion of a subsicary (note 36) WEIHBAR (M) 3903 6207 6401 6 37 - 73310
Transfers &2 31,772 224281 1922641 47934 - (2566,628) -
Disposals HE ) (568) (32,060) (863) (1569) - (35064)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RE+-F=1-H 1024708 1174414 6,84876 263823 79009 898,38 972515
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE:
At January 2015 K-Z-1§-A-B 76351 Be4 106703 7848 21197 - 1341723
Depreciation provided during the year ERRERE 00 34403 283869 7370 9199 - 385,063
Disposals HE ) (165) (13137) (787) (1243) - (15.336)
At31 December 2015 RZE-RETZF=1-H 106569 133112 1337785 104831 29153 - 1711450
et carrying amount; HEE:
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RE+-F=1-H 918139 1041302 4947091 158992 49856 898,385 8,013,765
|
15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. FENT#BEERE
2016 2015
—E—XRF —ZE—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
{bFsa ARETT ARETTT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BrEEE 194,792 199,228
Additions NE 91,842 -
Addition through acquisition of a subsidiary  FEiBUEEHE R RIARE 35 105,000 -
Amortisation during the year FNEH 7 (8,610) (4,436)
Carrying amount at 31 December Wt+—-—A=+—8H
BAREE 383,024 194,792
Current portion included in prepayments T ATERFIE
EYBNEARE 19 (8,610) (3,843)
Non-current portion FERNERER 5> 374,414 190,949
]
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16. GOODWILL

16. BEE

RMB’000
ARBT T

Cost and net carrying amount at 1 January 2015 R=ZF—RHF— A —H 2K A MERE T 6,950
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36) WEEMTE & =) (Mt5E 36) 18,411
At 31 December 2015, 1 January 2016 and RZE—RF+=—H=+—H"
31 December 2016 ZERF-A-BK
—ZE—R¥+-_A=+—H 25,361
Cost: BRAR
At 1 January 2015 RZE—RF—H—H 6,950
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36) W BB B A R) (3T 36) 18,411
At 31 December 2015, 1 January 2016 and RZE-—hFE+-A=+—QH"
31 December 2016 _3—/\¢ A—BxK
— T R"F+-_HA=+—H 25,361
Accumulated impairment: REPRE ¢
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2015, RZZE—RHF—HA—H "
1 January 2016 and 31 December 2016 —E-RFTZHA=t+—8"
—E-RF-A—HK
—E-RXFT_A=1T—H -
Net carrying amount: ARENFE -
At 31 December 2016 RZF—R"FE+-A=1—H 25,361
At 31 December 2015 R-_Z—HFE+_A=1t—H 25,361

IMPAIRMENT TESTING OF GOODWILL

Goodwill acquired through business combinations amounting to
RMB25,361,000 (2015: RMB25,361,000) has been allocated to the coal
mining cash-generating unit for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the coal mining cash-generating unit has
been determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a 31-year period approved
by management. The pre-tax discounted rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 10.9% (2015: 9.36%).

TR BRI

FBEBE U AR 25361,000 T

(*?—ﬁi © AR 25361,0007T) BV
2 ERBHAFERSEESEMN - I
mﬁzfﬁ/ﬁua

HiERRERSELEEMNITKRESED
REAEEAEREEETE MEAEE
DEAKEEEI ANV BEE 75";%/E
BENFHENRS RERNFTE
AR MERAFEA109% (= — _?EEE:
9.36%) EVHTIR R IR o

HEOED T RFFR 147



OV VBB VW BB WTEETE BB
DRDDDRDDEDRDREDD DD DD DDA

e

AN

Notes to Financial Statements
Ejg%ﬁ% BﬁE 371 December 2016 R —FE—~NF+_-H=4+—H

16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)
ASSUMPTIONS USED IN THE VALUE-IN-USE CALCULATION

The following describes each key assumption on which management has
based its cash flow projections to undertake the impairment testing of
goodwill:

(i) BUDGETED GROSS MARGIN

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the future gross margin
is the average gross margin achieved in the year immediately before the
budget year, increased for expected efficiency improvements and expected
market development.

(i) RAW MATERIAL PRICE

The basis used to determine the value assigned to raw material price is the
forecast price indices during the budget year.

(iif) COMMODITY PRICE

The basis used to determine the value assigned to commodity price is the
expectation of future changes in the market.

(iv) PRE-TAX DISCOUNT RATE

The pre-tax discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific risks
relating to the relevant unit.
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17. COAL MINING RIGHTS

17. HIERRERHE

RMB’000
ARBT T

31 December 2016

Cost at 1 January 2016, net of accumulated

amortisation 99,514
Amortisation provided during the year (note 7) G E B S4B (BiEE7) (4,415)
At 31 December 2016 WZE—RF+-A=+—H 95,099
At 31 December 2016: RZE—RFF+ZA=+—1:

Cost [DEN 109,570

Accumulated amortisation RETHEGH (14,471)

Net carrying amount AREFE 95,099
31 December 2015 A—E—RE+=B=+—H
Cost at 1 January 2015, net of RZT—RF—HA—HHAR - MR RS

accumulated amortisation 39,594
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36) WEER B A =] (BMisE36) 63,641
Amortisation provided during the year (note 7) G E B4 B (BiisE7) (3,721)
At 31 December 2015 W_E-—RF+_-_A=+—H 99,514
At 31 December 2015: RZZE—hF+-A=+—8:

Cost B AR 109,570

Accumulated amortisation RETHESH (10,056)

Net carrying amount AREFE 99,514

|
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18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 18. TWHHERE
2016 2015
—E-AE —E-TfF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETIT
NON-CURRENT FRE
Unquoted equity investment, at cost: FEETRAIRE - LA
PRC s 6,708 7,500
CURRENT TE
Listed equity investment, at fair value: EWRAIEE - HBATE
Singapore o 4,185 3,680
|

The above investments in equity securities were designated as available-
for-sale financial assets and have no fixed maturity or coupon rate.

During the year, the fair value gain in respect of an available-for-sale
investment recognised in other comprehensive income amounted to
RMB505,000. In the prior year, impairment losses of RMB1,021,000 and
RMB1,097,000 were charged to profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, respectively.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s listed equity investment with a
carrying value of RMB4,185,000 (2015: RMB3,680,000) was classified as
a current asset because the directors of the Company had intention to
dispose of the investment in the forthcoming year. The market value of the
Group’s listed equity investment at the date of approval of these financial
statements was approximately RMB4,185,000. This listed equity instrument
is designated as available-for-sale financial asset and has no fixed maturity
date or coupon rate.

The Group's investment in an unlisted equity security represents a 15%
equity interest in the unlisted registered capital of Manas Biyuan Water
Supply Company Limited (“Biyuan”), a company registered in the PRC, and
was stated at cost of RMB7,500,000 (2015: RMB7,500,000) less impairment of
RMB792,000 (2015: Nil) because the directors of the Company consider that
the range of a reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the fair
value cannot be measured reliably. The Group has no control nor significant
influence over the financial and operating policies of Biyuan. The Group
does not intend to dispose of it in the near future.
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R-ZE—XRE+-_A=+—H KEEHE
HEAARE418500T( T —HEF:
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BEE EAARAERHENKER
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19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19. BANRIE - HERHMEWR
RECEIVABLES |
2016 2015
—RE —E—hF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B ARE T AREETIT
NON-CURRENT FRE
Prepayments for purchases of items of BEWE - BEMEE
property, plant and equipment TH B ®TEREIE 118,391 174,567
Prepayment for acquisition of an W ERE
available-for-sale investment HITET IR 8,025 8,025
126,416 182,592
]
CURRENT B
Prepayments: TERTFRIR
Advanced deposits to suppliers TENHER RS 341,572 230,946
Current portion of prepaid land A L EFIR
lease payments #IRIERER > 15 8,610 3,843
Others Hith 5,731 6,395
355,913 241,184
Deposits and other receivables: =& RHE A Y TR IE
Deposits b7 - 300
VAT recoverable FERUEER 357,925 416,025
Others Hth 74,653 75931
432,578 492,256
Total prepayments, deposits and TENFIA -« e
other receivables (classified as current) N H b R IE?@
(D¥ARANER) 788,491 733,440
T
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20. INVENTORIES 20. FE
2016 2015
—XE —FE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARMETFIT
Raw materials FEM R 181,210 196,063
Parts and spares U RERTH 60,020 61,492
Work-in-progress M 11,973 6,028
Finished goods BRI 196,302 190,338
449,505 453921
T
21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 21. EZEWRERERERE
2016 2015
—EB-AF —hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARMETFIT
Trade receivables B o rEWEIE 73,514 65,381
Bills receivable B ERE 1,603 900
75,117 66,281
]

Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on
terms of 30 to 90 days. They are recognised at their original invoice amounts
which represent their fair values on initial recognition. The Group’s bills
receivable are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on terms of 90
to 180 days. Trade and bills receivables are denominated in RMB.

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly payment in
advance or on credit for certain customers. Each customer has a maximum

B2 RN
BB - ZERYERS

KA E R 6%

RIE AR SN —RRIR30Z290HR

R T R

R ZEEARREENRERF QY

TE AEBRERKRRESRE R —KRN 0

o

2180 HNEE
BAARKEEE -

B 5 EAGE K R R

K%‘%Eﬁiﬁgﬁ R B IRRE B RTARK
CETEPHABRBEENS - 8EFE

credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding @fﬁﬁiﬁﬁ REESKEFHEERARD
receivables and to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed HAE) FE MR IB Y BRARIE § - DURVEE E R
regularly by senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the & ° BEIESRE B SR EIRE T HFEH -
fact that the Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified R E XAt - RAEEH)E 5 Y FIR
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group ~ AR AED BT M EEXEE
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these &AL ° $E.IME‘JEEZ%%§%%%—E
balances. A EA R HAMEERE
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

An aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

21. EBEZRWHREREBRRERE (&)

REBE 5 W IAR B R RA AR D
fr(RIEBEZEAH) W

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-hE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREETFIT
Within 1 month TE A AR 39,452 20,326
110 3 months 12 3@ A 10,289 32,163
3to 6 months 3Z61EA 14,617 9,513
610 12 months 621218 A 5,974 1,494
Over 12 months 1218 A A E 3,182 1,885
73,514 65,381

]

The aging analysis of the trade receivables that are not individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

AR R E B3k 2 5 EIRME R B 5 YK
THRRBRER DT

2016 2015
—E-XEF —T—hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETIT
Neither past due nor impaired REHAT AR RE 49,741 52,489
Less than 3 months past due WA E A AT 14,617 9,513
More than 3 months past due BHER3E A LA = 9,156 3,379
73,514 65,381

]

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.

REHTRARR B R RFREA S THNE
BRERTHENDMEFER -

BEEEME R AR IR RS T EAE
EFERIFFECHNBIEFPEHE - R
BBELR  NAREEFR/BARZT
TR ERE  RHEEERAEEX
BH) L EREARIDEAR AR 28 -
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21. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2016, the Group endorsed bills receivable accepted by
banks in Mainland China (the "Endorsed Bills") with an aggregate carrying
amount of RMB362,132,000 (2015: RMB133,092,000) with maturity ranging
from one to six months at the end of the reporting period, to certain of its
suppliers for settlement of the trade payables due to these suppliers (the
“Endorsement”). In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in
the PRC, the holders of the Endorsed Bills have a right of recourse against
the Group if the PRC banks default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the
opinion of the directors, all risks and rewards relating to the Endorsed Bills
have been substantially transferred upon the Endorsement. Accordingly,
the Group has derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Endorsed
Bills and the associated trade payables. The maximum exposure arising
from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Endorsed Bills and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Endorsed Bills is equal to
their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair values of the
Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Endorsed Bills are not significant.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group has not
recognised any gain or loss on the date of transfer of the Endorsed Bills. No
gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both
during the year or cumulatively. The Endorsement has been made evenly
throughout the year.
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22.

BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES

Particulars of the balances with related companies, in which certain
shareholders, executive directors of the Company are also direct/indirect
shareholders and directors, disclosed pursuant to section 383 of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance, are as follows:

22.

EFE QT NEER

HEBARNEHRNFES(ERAQAE
TR - TESENAEE BEREN
B2)RBEBEEARUEHI3SIHHFENT -

2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—HhF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt AR¥ T ARETFT
Due from related companies FEWNEEE R RFIE
Non-current: FEBNER -
Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co, Ltd.  JE[EOEBME TEE
BRAF] (i) - 44,000
Current; BNER :
Xinxiang Xinlianxin Lifting Equipment FTERTHCME L R S
Co, Ltd. BRAA] (i) - 2430
Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment ST O E M TR
Co, Ltd. BRATA (i) 9,146 -
9,146 2,430
|
Due to related companies ENEEARRIE
Current: BNER
Xinjiang Antai Shenzhou Fengtou Co, Ltd. #7588 &2 2441 £ 58
BRAT] (iv) (2,192) (2,355)
Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co, Ltd.  JAEOEBME TEE
BRAE W) (1,967) (6,105)
Biyuan 2R (vi) (232) (345)
(4,391) (8,805)
|
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22. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES 22. EEEQTNER(F)
(CONTINUED)

Notes: FaE -

(i) The prior year's balance represented prepayment for the consideration for the 0) L EEERERBE T T E R
transfer of the land use right from Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co,, Ltd. SEEEOEMEIEBRERARNL
under a land transfer agreement entered into between the parties. Further details AR ERMNRIE - E—LFBETH
are set out in note 35 and 40(a)(x). FABIE 35 & 40(a)(x) ©

(ii) The prior year's balance represented prepayments for lifting services from (ii) T EEARERERERGHZE AT
Xinxiang Xinlianxin Lifting Equipment Co,, Ltd. under a lifting services agreement. DELBEBRA TN M ERBIBN K
Further details are set out in note 40(a)(v). 18 o E— IR TIE I T 40)(v) ©

(iif) Balance represented prepayments for equipment purchases from Xinxiang (iii) REZEEEHS  aFgmo@EiMtT
Xinlianxin Chemicals Equipment Co., Ltd. under an equipment purchase FEARARRIERBHTAN RIEEREE -
agreement. Further details are set out in note 40(a)(iv). HE—EFIB TVE T 5E 40() (v) ©

(iv) Balance represented payable for equipment purchases from Xinjiang Antai (iv) HEARERBEREEE DR BT RSN
Shenzhou Fengtou Co,, Ltd. under an equipment purchase agreement. Further HEBRAFRIEERRBRERNTRIE - E—F
details are set out in note 40(a)(iv). B TR MR 40(a) (V) °

v) Balance represented payable for equipment purchases from Henan Xinlianxin v) ERRIEIRIBEREEE R B T E &M
Chemicals Group Co, Ltd. under an equipment purchase agreement. THREARAFEEREEMNTIE -

(vi) Balance represented payable for water supply from Biyuan under a water supply (vi) HEERTEIRIBK AL 3 B BROK L IR FE T

agreement.

The balances are unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-free and

A e

RS AEEN - MBEREMNRREAZF
A IREEEE QA TERS

the carrying amounts of these balances approximate their fair values.
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23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 23. BHERRSE/YURCIEE
TIME DEPOSITS LEE N

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—AhF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%TT AREFIT

Time deposits EHER 226,349 397,884
Less: Pledged time deposits for bills payable B SIENREE R E R

(note 25) Fa (FMIsE25) (226,349) (397,384)

Cash at banks and on hand RITEREIES 512,806 581,355

Cash and cash equivalents Re kBESEED 512,806 581,355

I

At 31 December 2016, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to RMB499,666,000 (2015: RMB572,441,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and six months depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit rates.
The bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

RZZE—RNF+_A=+—H '  UAE
B ENASER S RIBTEBKEIA
R#499666000L(ZF—HF : AR®
572,441,00070) ° ARBIWTA BHERE
HE® - Am - BIEPBRANAOINEE
FUHED R 45T - EEMMESERE - N
S B S R EITINE EEHIRTT
BARB S AHME -

RITIE R B BB TR M2 BN FI %
BEFI 8 - B RN T — B E A
A2 Rt A R - R T AR E A
SEAME - WIS BB BERF
EERERI 8, « BITRHBREEAERTIE
BRSBTS 3 A S R SRR AT o
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The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on
terms of 30 to 90 days. Trade payables are denominated in RMB.

25. BILLS PAYABLE

The Group’s bills payable had an average maturity period of 90 to 180 days
and were interest-free. Bills payable were denominated in RMB and were
secured by time deposits of RMB226,349,000 (2015: RMB397,884,000) (note
23).
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BB BRENTIEUAAREHE -

BARE

AEEMENEEFHR0E180BRE
B BARREE - EBNEBREAARKEE -
A LA TE BT SR R 85 226,349,000 T ( — &
—HF - AR¥ 397,884,000 7T ) HE R (B 5
23) °
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24. TRADE PAYABLES 24, EBEZEMNRIE
An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting B 5 & FRIE R B ¥ B K 89 AR the 0 A (1R
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BERZEEHE)WT :
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RhF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Within 1 month TE A AR 88,652 108,352
1to 3 months 12 318A 52,215 19433
3to 6 months 32 61EA 13,375 2,551
6to 12 months 62 1218 A 16,680 3,852
Over 12 months 1218 B 14,655 6,041
185,577 140,229
]




26. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. MESTERREMEARIE
2016 2015
—E-AE —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETIT
Current: TED
Accruals JEETE R
Accrued expenses JEETFISZ 100,209 123,721
Accruals for construction costs and BRERALEEDE
purchases of items of property, plant and B KR B
equipment ColiEag=dss! 415,538 575,665
515,747 699,386
Other payables EH e I8
Advanced purchase deposits from customers EPBENEERESR 558,816 381,419
VAT and other operating tax payables EEN R EM RN ETHIE 8,048 10,826
Tender deposits Kigize 28,516 26918
Others Hith 84,860 75,063
680,240 494,226
1,195,987 1,193,612
Non-current: IERED :
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R H MR 508
Accruals for construction costs and purchases BRERANREEME -
of items of property, plant and equipment R K #1E B
HEETE 225,911 116,412
Others Hit 841 365
226,752 116,777
I

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term of six

months.

HibENHBASRE  FHFHSNE
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27. DEFERRED GRANTS

27. IEFEFEEL

2016 2015
—E-XF —E—hF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt AR¥ TR AREFT
Cost: PR
At 1 January Rn—H—H 67,015 50,829
Received during the year AR 6,740 16,186
At 31 December W+-—A=+—H 73,755 67,015
Accumulated amortisation: REHEE -
At 1 January wn—H—H 13,029 8424
Amortisation during the year FREEE 6 5,943 4,605
At 31 December Wt+—HA=+—~ 18,972 13,029
Net carrying amount: BREDFE -
Current D 5,979 4,536
Non-current IERED 48,804 49,450
54,783 53,986
]

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, deferred grants related
to government grants were given to the Group for the construction of
production plants and installation and building of machinery to implement
energy-saving production methods and to reduce production cost. They
are amortised over the useful life of the related items of property, plant
and equipment. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies
relating to these grants. During the year, aggregate government grants of
RMBE6,740,000 (2015: RMB16,186,000) were received by the Group.

28. LOAN FROM A NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

RZE—RER_FE—RAF+_A=+—
H  AEBEEREBTEHEEBAERT
HWaEL - URREERE AR LS MR
2 BNAETHYREE A RIE
HEERA TIREEBYE  BE&&
BEEMAFEFRFHEE - AEE T E
HZEHUMEBANRBITIRGRIARS
HeRER BFERAEERFA K
AERB6740000( —E—HF : ARK
16,186,000 JT.) H# BL ©

28. FEREZEM

2016 2015

ZE-XF —E-hfF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%TR ARETFT

Loan from a non-controlling interest FEEIRIER E 100,000 -
Less: N

Current portion MENEB S (24,750) -

Non-current portion FERBIEB D 75,250 -

]

The loan from a non-controlling interest is unsecured and bears interest
at 4.75% per annum. The loan is granted for a term of three years from
30 August 2016. According to the payment terms of the loan agreement
between the parties, RMB24,750,000 is expected to be repaid within twelve
months after the end of the reporting period and is considered as current

liability as at 31 December 2016.
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29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 29. STRESBITREMER
BORROWINGS
2015
“3-1f
Contractual Contractual
interest rate Maturity RMB'000 interest rate Maturity RMBO00
aiE 3R ARETR A= gl NRBTT
CURRENT i)
Bank loans BITER
- secured - BER 1.85%to 2 2.26% 2017 261,150 315% 10 E452% 216 87873
ZE-tE E0F
- Unsecured - BER 400%t0 % 6.88% 2017 495,006 18%10Z721% 2016 602,295
“E-tF Z0E
756,156 890,168
NON-CURRENT k)
Bankloans BITER
- secured - RER 413% 2018 176,000 452% 018 178000
ZE-)\f ZENE
- unsecured - BEA 43%t0 2 6.88% 2018102021 3,421,750 413% 0 Z690% 01710201 3386238
Z5-N\F “ErfE
E8--F .
Loanfiom the govenment ~ BURFER
- unsecured - BAA Floating rate at 0.3% 2020 3636 Floatingrate at 03% 2000 4545
above the market k- Sak- 3 above the market “Z°%
prime lending rate prime lending rate
FERE03%M R ORI
mERBEEEENE mERESRENE
3,601,386 3568783
4,357,542 4458951
|
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29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 29. FTESBITREMER (&)
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
2016 2015
—E-RE —T—AEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETTT
Analysed into: DR
Bank loans repayable: JEEZERITER -
Within one year or on demand R — AP BN 756,156 890,168
In the second year ME_F 2,397,800 2,189,250
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=ZEFERF
(BIEEEMSE) 1,199,950 367,759
Beyond five years HBARF - 1,007,229
4,353,906 4,454,406
Other borrowings repayable: FEEEEADIERK -
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=ZFFRHEF
(BPREEEMSF) 3,636 4,545
4,357,542 4,458,951
|
Notes: B s
(@) The Group’s bank facilities amounting to RMB9,002,000,000 (2015: @) NEBE AR®9002000000m(=ZE—H
RMB8,468,545,000), of which RMB4,353,906,000 (2015: RMB4,454,406,000) had F 0 AR #84685450007T ) HY IR 1T RE B
been utilised as at the end of the reporting period, are unsecured. R HR AR¥ 435390600070 (ZF—H
F 0 AR 4454406000 70) REREHARD
B - TR o
(b) Included in secured bank loans are amounts of RMB259,150,000 (2015: (b) BEBEMETERARE 259,150,000 7T
RIMB285,873,000) and RMB178,000,000 (2015: RMB180,000,000) which are secured (ZZ—hF : ARM285873,0007T) RA
by a Standby Documentary Credit of RMB300,000,000 (2015: RMB300,000,000) R#178000000L(—E—RHF: AR
and certain of the Group's property, plant and equipment (note 14). 180,000,000 7T ) LA A R # 300,000,000 7T ( =
T—RF: AR3000000007T) ERAE
AEEERRANEEETYE  BER
RHSTEIRIR (FzE14) o
(© Balance of RMB420,419,000 (2015: RMB285,873,000) were denominated in United © ER AR 420419000( ZFE—HF ¢«

States dollars (“USD”) as at the end of the reporting period. All borrowings are in

RMB.
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30. BONDS PAYABLE 30. BEAREES
2016 2015
=L L —T-—wF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%TR ARETIT
Analysed into amount repayable: DT RENEE
Within one year —FA 200,000 -
In the second year REZF 600,000 200,000
In the third year RE=F = 600,000
800,000 800,000
]

The RMB bonds totalling RMB200,000,000 and RMB600,000,000 have a
maturity term of within one year and two years, respectively, and bear
fixed interest rates of 7% per annum and 6.7% per annum, respectively,
with interest payable semi-annually in arrears and annually in arrears,
respectively.

31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 21 December 2011, the Company issued RMB denominated convertible
bonds with a nominal value of RMB324,366,000. There was no movement
during the year. Convertible bonds interest of 4.5% per annum is payable
in cash annually in arrears on the anniversary of the issue date (i.e., 21
December 2011) in each year, commencing on the first anniversary of the
issue date, which is accrued and paid through the transfer from retained
profits of the Group. The bonds are convertible into ordinary shares of the
Company at the option of the bondholder at the initial conversion price
of approximately RMB1.84 per share any time after the issuance of the
convertible bonds. While the convertible bonds bear interest at 4.5% per
annum, the Company may, at its sole discretion, elect to defer the interest
pursuant to the terms of the convertible bonds.

Unless previously redeemed, purchased and cancelled or converted, all the
convertible bonds outstanding shall be converted into ordinary shares of
the Company on the fifth anniversary of the date of issue. On 14 December
2016, the Company and the bondholder agreed to extend the maturity
date to 21 December 2018 and reduced the interest rate to 2% per annum.

% B A R #200,0000007C & A R
600,000,000 7T B9 A R ¥ (&5 E| EAF B3 9 7
B—FRRME - 5 FIEE T FFE 7%
Ke7wstB BTN RIGEEREER
HARS AT »

31. WREH

NZEBE——F+-_A=-+—H ARQRFAE
BHTEEA AR 324366000 THIAAR
BETEMARRES - NEREARRRKRE
FEB WESE) o FHEK 4500 RKRESH
EREF(B%TRBE—RFMR) BT
BH(BIZE—F+=-HA=+—H)&
FURESBRFELN  BBAEEAEER
BRMERET R - RARESFHAR
AFTR AT R EH BT BER IR TR Y15
EREOARK 1 4T BESFER AL R
I% c AR AT IREFIE T F45%5TE - 1R
BRI R ESFGK - AR ] 2 EEIEE
BIRLER S -

FRoBEWRED - BE RBEHERIN - F
BREEVHRRESERHITAYNER
EEFERBARNAREBEK - RZF—KX
FH+ZA+THIAB - ARBEEBESFFHAA
AE#IBHEERE_ZE-N\E+_H
—+—B XEEFRREE2% -
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31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)

The convertible bonds are redeemable at the option of the holder of
the convertible bonds only upon the occurrence of a winding-up (any
step taken by any person at the sole election of the Company not under
direction of any third party, including judicial or regulatory) with a view to
the voluntary winding-up or dissolution or administration of any group
companies (including but not limited to a members’ voluntary solvent
winding-up), or any group companies cease or threaten to cease to carry
on all or substantially all of its business or operations) at a redemption price
which shall be equivalent to the aggregate of the outstanding principal
amount of the convertible bonds together with a redemption premium of
8.0% per annum on the outstanding principal amount, up to the date fixed
for redemption. In the opinion of the directors, the Company is able to defer
or control the redemption of the principal, the payment of bond interest
and other cash payments to the bondholder. Accordingly, the convertible
bonds are classified as equity instruments.

During the year, bond interest of RMB14,596,000 (2015: RMB14,596,000) was
accrued and paid to the bondholder.
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32. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are as

follows:

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

32,

N

I SERLIE
AERREERABREMNEEZ BN

Fair value
adjustments
arising from
acquisition of
subsidiaries
U i — =X B R Withholding
ARIEEN tax Total
AR EFAE FENBIE FH
(note a) (note b)
GETY) (Ff=EDb)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR AR¥ TR AR® TR
At 1January 2015 R-—E—RF—H—H 8,680 40,222 48902
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 36) UsBE I~ 71 (P 5E 36) 15,288 - 15,288
Deferred tax credited to profitor IR ARFT ARIELE
loss during the year (note 11) FHIE (FsE11) (1,025) - (1,025)
At 31 December 2015 and at Eé_%—ﬂi‘f’:ﬂz‘f’—ﬁ
1 January 2016 MRZF—RF—H—H 22,943 40,222 63,165
Deferred tax credited to profitor ~ FREEmIRET ARELETIE
loss during the year (note 11) (fzE11) (1,024) (5,350) 6,374)
At31 December 2016 R_E—RF+-_A=1+—H 21,919 34,872 56,791
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32. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 32, RIERIIE (M)

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS B IEBEE

Loss available

for offsetting
against future
taxable profits Deductible
K SH AR temporary
ey |l ) differences Total
RIEEE AHSERES #at
(note ¢)
(PffaE )
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®T T AR®TT
At 1 January 2015 E—hF—H—H 4510 6,540 11,050
Deferred tax credited to profitor ~ FREIBZIRFT A RPEERIE
loss during the year (note 11) (FFsE11) 4,083 4581 8,664
At 31 December 2015 and at RZZE—RF+=—HA=1+—H
1 January 2016 MR ZZE—RF—H—AH 8,593 11,121 19,714
Deferred tax credited to profitor ~ FRFEIB R AREEFLITE
loss during the year (note 11) (f=E11) 2413 1,674 4,087
At 31 December 2016 R_ZB—Ft+_-_H=+—H 11,006 12,795 23,801
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32. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 32.
Notes: BHeE
(a) Deferred tax liabilities arising from fair value adjustments upon acquisitions of (@)
subsidiaries represent the deferred tax liabilities on the fair value uplift of the net
tangible assets owned by the subsidiaries, arising in 2011 and 2015. The deferred
tax liabilities are amortised to profit or loss over the estimated useful lives of the
coal mining rights.
(b) Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied (b)
on dividends declared to foreign investors from foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China for earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland
China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. The Group made provision for
deferred tax liabilities on withholding tax at 5% of the forecasted dividend pay-
out of the earnings of all its PRC subsidiaries because the directors believe that
the PRC subsidiaries would not pay out all their earnings as dividends.
(@} At the end of the reporting period, the Group had estimated tax losses of @

RMB31,794,000 (2015: RMB27,988,000) arising in Singapore that can be used
to offset against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. The Group had estimated tax losses arising in the PRC of approximately
RMB112,141,000 (2015: RMB85,583,000) that will expire in three to five years.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the tax losses
amounted to RMB90,307,000 (2015: RMB69,595,000) as in the opinion of the
directors, it is uncertain whether sufficient future taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

ERER IR (&)

WE—KMBRAREEN R TEARME
EHRERAREER T ——FR=F
—HFELNBARMERELEEFE
EINEEENIEAE - BREKEAETIA
IRTEFI SRR SHE A iR e i 8y -

REBEPECEMBRE T LF
TZA=t+—H%ZKEET B AL
MINEREDERBIMEEETIROBLE
EHERU10% A TEFNBIA © fin o B A i £
BIMEEEH RERERA] ARG - B
REMEMBXRATe @A - AEFHERK
Hoe B B8 2 A 69 P A M) B FROB SR AR
BHY 5% BUEIETR IR B [EAH R TR B
AREERATEMEAR TG /ERE
ERIERRBIRE -

WMEBMK AEEGHETNEELED
REBEEA AR 794000m( ==
—HF: AR®279880007T) 0 Al AR
EBARIEEBEB 2 RBEF - K&
EfE TR EEENBEEBNAAR
11214100 (Z T —HF: AR
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* Equivalent to Singapore dollars (“SGD”) 174,480,000

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as and when
declared by the Company. All ordinary shares carry one vote per share
without restrictions. The ordinary shares have no par value.

34. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

In accordance with the Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise Law applicable
to the subsidiaries in the PRC, the subsidiaries are required to make
appropriations to the Statutory Reserve Fund (the “SRF"). At least 10% of
the after tax profits as determined in accordance with the applicable PRC
accounting standards and regulations must be allocated to the SRF until
the cumulative total of the SRF reaches 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered
capital. Subject to approval from the relevant PRC authorities, the SRF may
be used to offset any accumulated losses or increase the registered capital
of the subsidiaries. The SRF is not available for dividend distribution to
shareholders.
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REtRBECEDZSFMB AR EMERDN
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. B®RA
Number of ordinary shares Amount
LERYE +H
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T NS
Issued and fully paid BEITREE 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 881,124* 881,124*



35. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION

OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 15 April 2016, the Group acquired a 100% equity interest in Xinxiang
County Runcheng Trading Co., Ltd. (‘Runcheng”) from a related company
of the Company (the “Runcheng Acquisition”). Runcheng is engaged in
leasing of land. The Runcheng Acquisition forms part of the Group's strategy
to construct a new production base, adopt advanced coal gasification
technologies, and produce fine coal chemical products. The consideration
of RMB106,000,000 for the Runcheng Acquisition was in the form of cash.

The Runcheng Acquisition was accounted for as the acquisition of assets
and liabilities rather than business combination because Runcheng has
not carried out any significant business transaction prior to the date
of acquisition. The net outflow of cash and cash equivalents from the
Runcheng Acquisition has been reflected in the consolidated statement
of cash flow as part of the cash flow movement of the individual assets
acquired.

35. EBRUWEHBLRBRBEE
RZE-AR"FEATHEA  AREEH

—HEEARKENBRENEZER
A ([ ) 100% &9 % #E ([ R 3 U B8 =
H]) o MR TELES T MHSER - B
W EEEAEBEAMNEEREM - F
AFOERIE  EREEREIER
KB —3 o o BRKESEREARE
106,000,000 TTAIR A A ©

AR R B 2 BT RETTEREAR
MR ER S - Btz EBRESREES

WHEE ERE EMIEXBE O o HllEE
%IEEPFEWIEi&EE%—J—F%M//HJﬁME
RBARTEENEERS RN —3 D
fﬁﬁ/\,iv?./:.\ EE//HJE%EF'
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35. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION 35. BRWENRBARWEEE

OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED) (%)
The net assets acquired in the Runcheng Acquisition were as follows: s ETEEVS R FEEDNT ¢
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
WERERNATEE
RMB‘000
AR® T
Prepaid land lease payment TEf LR EFOR 15 105,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEEY 1,000
Assets acquired W& E 106,000
Satisfied by cash IBE AT 106,000
|

An analysis of cash flows in respect of the Runcheng Acquisition was as BHKESENRSRESNAOT ¢

follows:

Note RMB’000
¥ &E AR¥ T
Cash consideration R RE (106,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired g E’\Jﬁ@&ﬁ@%ﬁ% 1,000
Prepayment to the related company in last year 2= F B~ & FIE 22 44,000

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents fﬁﬁ&ﬁ%?ﬁ%mﬁ@%ﬁ
included in cash flows from investing activities 7 AR E EEIEIR &R (61,000)

|

The above cash consideration in respect of the Runcheng Acquisition T BEBEBERNEETEREREAR
of RMB105,000,000 was partly settled by a prepayment to a related 105,000,000 75 B = F B & 77 BT K
party of RMB44,000,000 paid in the prior year. The remaining amount of A K #44,000000 T #& & - %R AR
RMB61,000,000 represented net outflow of cash and cash equivalents ~ 61,0000007Ci§R & kIR & FE YR L F
included in cash flows used in investing activities in the consolidated B ERMRGEREERERREEEM
statement of cash flows. A& °
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATION

In the prior year, on 26 March 2015, the Group acquired a 100% equity
interest in Manas Tianxin Coal Co,, Ltd. ("Tianxin") from an independent third
party. Tianxin is engaged in coal mining and sale of coal. The acquisition was
made as part of the Group’s strategy to secure a stable supply of coal for
its production process and reduce the effects of any volatility in coal prices
against the production costs of the Group. The acquisition consideration
was in the form of cash, with RMB37,210,000 paid on the acquisition date
and the remaining RMB57,232,000 paid on 30 September 2015.

The fair values of the identified assets and liabilities of Tianxin as at the date
of acquisition were as follows:

36. ¥EKE6f

RE—FE R_ZE—RHF=ZA-1+~
B AEBB—RBYE=HREHBHET
KIREEBREE R AKX 100% i
B o RIRIE B R IRFARREREE - i
THE BN E BIREE — 2P AR A E R
EHEREEHERBEAEBNEEN
KRR AR R EREE RN E - Wi
RETIURSF - ARE 37,210,000 7TTHA
I BE H B S  K #R 58 A R 57,232,000 7T
R_ZE—RFHLA=+HI -

RS B AR AT B B E R B AN D
FELR -

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition

TR UK B B 52
HAFE

RMB ‘000
ARMT T

Property, plant and equipment Y - BB LB 14 73319
Coal mining right IR 17 63,641
Inventories FE 170
Other receivables H A EYGIR 251
Pledged deposit [REGEEER 2,551
Other payables H At ERTRIR (48613)
Deferred tax liabilities BERIAR G 32 (15,288)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAEST A EREE R ERRE 76,031
Goodwill on acquisition WEER R R 16 18411
Satisfied by cash AR & 1T 94,442
|
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents ReMReFEYIRLFE
included in cash flows from investing activities st AR EEEFTSIRE R (94,442)
|

The above cash consideration in respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary
of RMB94,442,000 represented net outflow of cash and cash equivalents of
the same amount included in cash flows used in investing activities in the
consolidated statement of cash flows.

Since the acquisition, Tianxin contributed a loss of RMB3,123,000 to the
Group’s consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2015. Had the
acquisition taken place at the beginning of the prior year, the revenue of
the Group and the profit of the Group for the prior year would have been
RMB5,788,181,000 and RMB405,487,000, respectively.

FiEBEKRE - MNBRFNERESREA
¥ 94,442,000 iR 2R & LIRS EE
MR FE  BERGAREREREK
BEEBARESR -

R 2 T—RF+-_A=+—
HIEFERMRRAEBELRE R FIFEEE
BARE31230007C  fHUEER F—FF
LT Bl E—FEAREB W MEF
15 Bl A& A R85 5,788,181,000 7T & A R
405,487,000 JT. ©
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37. NOTETOTHE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
) INTEREST CAPITALISATION

During the year, the Group capitalised interest expense of RMB11,715,000
(2015: RMB71,270,000) to property, plant and equipment (note 14).

(b) ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH ACQUISITION OF A

SUBSIDIARY

During the year, the consideration of the Runcheng Acquisition of
RMB105,000,000 was partly settled by a prepayment to a related party of
RMB44,000,000 paid in the prior year.

38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had outstanding operating
lease agreements for buildings, and plant and machinery in Mainland
China. Future minimum rentals payable of the Group under non-cancellable
operating leases at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

37. HZEREREBRMEE
FTEFRERS
A BRI

RARFEER > REBRYE  BENMERE
MEXREFBRAS A AR 11,7150007C
(ZZE—RF: AR¥71,2700007T) (K
14)

®) EBKEMNBARKEEE

RAFER  BRKBEAERBARE
105,000,000 7T 205 /1 2= F B3 F A KA
E#E 44,000,000 TLAEE o

38. REHNZTH

RERR - NEERHERBES KE
TET  BERESNELEHO0E - R
ER BRI ARG ERLY - AL
BENORRKERSNT

2016 2015

—E—XRF ZE—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETTT

Within one year —FR 77,155 79,405
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FFEERF

(BREEEMF) 86,212 155,359

After five years FHFLA L 38,833 40,054

202,200 274818

|
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39. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 38 above,
the Group had the following capital and other commitments at the end of

the reporting period:

39. TRIE

B £ P RE 38 FTAF Al A0 48 ‘= FH H0 AR S -
ZRES BN FA SR BRI A DA TS B AN B H b e

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETFT
Capital commitments BN
Contracted, but not provided for: EHEEESEIEE
Buildings B 212,026 238,119
Plant and machinery T R i B3 218,544 486,733
Coal mines R0 27,606 27,134
Land use right s A - 61,320
458,176 813,306
|
Other commitments H A dE
Purchases of raw materials BB R M 497,696 565618
I
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. BEIXRS
@  Inaddition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial @ BRTELSEVHEHREAEME D i
statements, the Group had the following transactions with related WS » REBERFERNERBEES
parties during the year: TR S -
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RE
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
Bt ARETR AREFT
Sales of electricity, water and steam to: * AT RBIHEKE
& 0
— Henan Shenzhou Heavy Sealing — A EE N ER
Co, Ltd." HEEBR AR - 917
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin Lifting — FBTOEAS
Equipment Co, Ltd. * mERRAR - 19
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals — ¥ LEMET
Equipment Co, Ltd. * JEARAF 170 197
~ Xinxiang Yuyuan Chemicals Co, Ltd. — T ERET
BRAR]! 554 710
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin Hotel Co,, Ltd. * — B TLE D
EEBRAR - 357
— Henan XLX Jingmi Fengtou Co, Ltd.* — ARLNBMER
HBAAR AR 712 -
Service fee income for provision of MIATARREFAH
calibration and testing services to: ARIGe RS & A
WA (i
— Henan Shenzhou Heavy Sealing — At E R
Co, Ltd.* HEEBR AR - 14
- Xinxiang Yuyuan Chemicals Co,, Ltd. * — T ERIET
BRAR 14 29
Sales of spare parts inventories to: FAATARIEEERS
“EFE - (i)
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin — T LEMET
Chemicals Equipment Co,, Ltd * RIBEER AT 12 _
Purchases of spare parts inventories from: MATAREBEER
THER: (iv)
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin — T LEMET
Chemicals Equipment Co, Ltd * FEARATF] 20,368 15,782
- Xinxiang Shenzhou — TN
Anti-corrosion Installation Co, Ltd * ZRAMR AR 1,160 -
- Xinjiang Antai Shenzhou Fengtou — 2L RSN
Co.Ltd.* HEARAR 4,608 -
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) (continued)

40. BEIXRZ ()

(@) (%)

2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—h%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B AR® T AREETIT
Service fee expenses for provision of RERERBIZNT
lifting services from: AT RAR RS E R
X : v)
—~ Xinxiang Xinlianxin Lifting — FrETROAE
Equipment Co, Ltd.* mEARAR" - 3,277
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals — T @ MET
Equipment Co, Ltd. * JEAR AT - 4,778
Operating lease expenses to: KERNFAZT (vi)
— Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group — A ELEMET
Co, Ltd. SEBR AR 2,239 2,239
Catering and accommodation expenses to: BB AR T : (vii)
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin Hotel Co, Ltd. — TP CE D
EEARNR - 4,765
Operating lease income from: LERLWARE (viii)
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin Lifting — ST OE
Equipment Co, Ltd.* mEARAR" - 3,230
Purchase of raw materials from: EMEEER (ix)
~ Xinxiang Yuyuan Chemicals Co, Ltd. * — T ERET
BRAT - 6,036
Prepayment for the purchase ofaland use ~ FARBEE T (FAE 2
right from: TERRRR ¢
— Xinxiang Xinlianxin Chemicals — ¥k @ LME T
Equipment Co, Ltd. ? AR AT x) - 105,322

‘ These companies are subsidiaries of Henan Chemicals Equipment
Co., Ltd., which has common shareholders with the Company. The
Company'’s executive directors and executive officers have certain
equity interests in Henan Chemicals Equipment Co,, Ltd.

* The amounts represent gross sales of by-products. Loss incurred from
these sales amounting to RMB594,000 (2015: profit of RMB457,000) is
included in net profit from sales of by-products (note 6).

ZERR/ABLEIREBERA
AIMME AR - WL TR R
HARBHBRRIER - AR FH
BITEERTBRAENTEIET
RBARARIEAE TRIE -

* ZEERRIEMNIEER
Fo ZESHEEENBBARKE
594000 7T ( —ZB—FE FEMAR
¥ 457,00070) ThEt ASHE &I E &
KA (MisE6) ©
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(a) (continued)
Notes:

(i) The sales of electricity were made according to the unit cost of
electricity announced by the Henan Province Development and Reform
Committee (AR A ERMMEZ B ). The sales of water and steam
were made according to mutually agreed terms with reference to the
sales contract between the parties.

(if) The service fee income was received according to mutually agreed
terms with reference to the service contract between the parties.

(iii) The sales of spare parts inventories were charged based on muturally
agreed terms with reference to the sales contract between the parties.

(iv) The purchases of items of property, plant and equipment were charged
based on the mutually agreed terms with reference to the sales contract
between the parties.

(v) The service fee expenses for the provision of lifting services were
charged based on mutually agreed terms with reference to the service
contract between the parties.

(vi) The operating lease expenses for the year were charged at a fixed
monthly amount of RMB186,600 (2015: RMB186,600).

(vii) The catering and accommodation expenses were charged based on
mutually agreed terms with reference to the service contract between
the parties.

(viii) In the prior year, the operating lease income was charged based on
mutually agreed terms with reference to the rate of usage.

(ix) In the prior year, the purchases of raw material were charged based
on the mutual agreement between the parties with reference to the
contract.

() In the prior year, the consideration was determined with reference to
the property valuation report issued by an independent professional
property valuer in the PRC.

Certain of the related party transactions above constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.
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) RHEBERBHORE EMFHLT)
RIFRTEE HIE T EH R IHE
ZAGRIER

(vi) FEKLEBRNOAZDIREBETAA
R#186600L( —T—HE : A
R 186,600 7T ) U ER °

wi)  BERERADBRERBEOETE
77 UL 9 TE 2 IR FRURER

(viii)

FOREHEERATIRETT W
ERE2E LR -

[
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Compensation of directors and key management personnel of the

40. BEIXRZ ()
b)) AEBEFTLIZEEEABNH

Group: i -
2016 2015
ZE-RF —T—hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREETFIT
Directors fees EE=ikn 800 800
Salaries and bonuses e MIEAT 5,759 14,127
Contributions to defined contribution plans FHARFGETEIRE RS 313 262
6,872 15,189
]
Comprise amounts paid to: BEINFTIIALTHEE :
— Directors of the Company — NABEE 3,140 11,184
— Other key management personnel — HihxZEEBRAER 3,732 4,005
6,872 15,189
I
Further details of the directors remuneration are included in note 9 to these EXMeE - LHBEERN LS BE@E
financial statements. FFEO ©
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41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Available-for-sale

41. EDEIRHNERMIAE

REBEHRHAKR FEeRITANKREER
T~

TREE

2015
“I-1fF

Available-for-sale

Loansand financial assets Loansand financil assets
receivables e Total fecelvables g Tota
SR RERGE ERLE & e AR it
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB1000 RMB000 RMB(000
i AEBTR AR®T T AR¥T T ARHTT ARETR NEBFT
Avalable-forsaleinvestments ATt ERE 18 - 10893 10893 - 11180 11180
Trade and bl receivables B RITEREYRE b 75,117 - 75117 66,81 - 66281
Depostisand other eceivables & REMENEE 19 74,653 - 74,653 7631 - 76231
Due from related companies ~ EMEE LA FIFUR 2 9,146 - 9,146 2430 - 2430
Pledged time deposis BERER B 226,349 - 226,349 3978%4 - 3097884
Cash and cash equivalens ReRALEEN JE| 512,806 = 512,806 581,355 - 581,355
898,071 10,893 908,964 1124181 11180 1135361
|
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES THEaRE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
RBERAIRNERMEE

2016 2015
—B-AF —hF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
liEsg ARBT T ARETFT
Trade payables E 5 ENFIE 24 185,577 140,229
Bills payable i ANEE 25 655,020 998,738

Financial liabilities included in accruals T AJEETE A R AM
and other payables JERE IEE’J%F\EEE 26 855,875 918,144
Due to related companies FERTBRE A RIFIA 22 4,391 8,805
Loan from a non-controlling interest #%Hﬂgﬁl%ﬁ 28 100,000 -
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5B 3R77 K HALE TR 29 4,357,542 4458951
Bonds payable FERREES 30 800,000 800,000
6,958,405 7,324,867

|
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42,

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments,
other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably approximate to fair
values, are as follows:

Carrying amounts

AREFEE

ETMITANAFERAFEE
B
AEENERTAERRERXFES
EREERIN REERAHERNT

42,

Fair values

ATE

2016 2015 2016 2015
—E—XRE —E-hE —E—XRF —E-hE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETIT AR¥T T AREETIT
Financial asset EEEE
Available-for-sale investment — A] fit (HE&E 4,185 3,680 4,185 3,680

The carrying amount of financial liabilities approximate to their fair value.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents,
pledged time deposits, trade and bills receivables, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from/to related companies, trade and bills
payables, a loan from a non-controlling interest and financial liabilities
included in accruals and other payables approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. The corporate finance team reports
directly to the chief financial officer and the audit committee. At each
reporting date, the corporate finance team analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs applied in
the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial
officer. The valuation process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for interim and annual financial reporting.

I

TRAEBEZFRmERIEATE-

KRERENML AelkReFEY 2K
HERFR  BHRUGKBARBRER
e RHEMBYIR - U ENBIER
FFE - ESRNFIENRENREE - JFE
iR ER - FE AR ER R EMENR
Bee@BE A FEERERMERS -
TR EHEIMSREEEA -

AEBNDERERIIAVHRIEES
BEETESRIAZATENBER
B  CEREMERANEFVTERE
REEQER NERHAH  CXHBE
BoTeR T ANEBEZHUEETERR
HENERFEREZ - AEREFRVBE
EH ML - BB IR FEM B ERT
5 HESEMEROIELZESEFH

-~ B8
=A N
7 PR ©
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42. FAIRVALUE AND FAIRVALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the
amounts at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair value of the non-current portion of other payables, a loan from a
non-controlling interest, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and
bonds payable have been calculated by discounting the expected future
cash flows using rates currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance
risk for non-current other payables, loan from a non-controlling interest,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and bonds payable as at 31
December 2016 was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair value of the listed equity investment is determined by direct
reference to its price quotation in an active market at the end of the
reporting period.

The fair value of the unlisted equity investment was not disclosed because
they cannot be reliably measured as the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair values.
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42. FAIRVALUE AND FAIRVALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
Group’s financial instrument:

ASSET MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE:

As at 31 December 2016

42. ETMTANAIFERAIFER
% (&)

ATERE

TREJIAEE TR TANAFEFER
i

RATFE B EE
R-ZEB-R"E+=ZA=+—H

Quoted prices

in active markets
EEERmEL
HR{E

(Level 1)
(8—#%)
RMB’000
AR¥ TR

Available-for-sale investment

AHHERE

4,185

As at 31 December 2015

Quoted prices
in active markets

HEERTE L

HERE
(Level 1)

(-
RMB’000

AR®T

A ERE

Available-for-sale investment

3,680

During the year, there were no transfer of fair value measurements between
Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer into or out of Level 3 (2015: Nil).

LIABILITY MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE:

The Group had no financial liability measured at fair value as at 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015.

RAFER > F—REE _RERER
FEFEEA  TES=HQFEFEN
BASEL(ZFT—0F: 8)-
BAFEFENAE

RIE—RNERZE—RF+_A=+—
B AEBYEZATFEFENSRE

F o
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and
the use of financial instruments. The key financial risks include credit
risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies and procedures for the management
of these risks, which are executed by the chief financial officer and finance
manager.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group's exposure
to the above-mentioned financial risks and the objectives, policies and
processes for the management of these risks.

(a) CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial
instruments should a counterparty default on its obligations. The Group's
exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade and other receivables.
For other financial assets such as cash and cash equivalents, pledged
time deposits, available-for-sale investments, amounts due from related
companies, bills receivable and deposits and other receivables, the
Group minimises credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating
counterparties.

The Group's objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising
losses incurred due to increased credit risk exposure. The Group trades only
with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that
the majority of customers who wish to trade are required to pay cash on
delivery or in advance before collecting any goods. A minority of customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a) CREDIT RISK (CONTINUED)
EXPOSURE TO CREDIT RISK

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each class of financial
assets recognised in the statement of financial position.

CREDIT RISK CONCENTRATION PROFILE

The Group assesses concentration of credit risk by monitoring on an on-
going basis the aged analysis of its trade receivables. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group. At 31 December 2016, the
Group's trade receivables of RMB4,020,000 (2015: RMB3,794,000) were due
from its 10 largest customers.

(b) LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting
financial obligations due to shortage of funds. The Group'’s exposure to
liquidity risk arises primarily from mismatches of the maturities of financial
assets and liabilities. The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of stand-by credit
facilities.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43, BIBEMEEEERBER (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)  LIQUIDITY RISK (CONTINUED) (b) REELRERE (&)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of the BRIEBEAMEFANTK  AEEeREE
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payment, is as EAEF'#fﬁHEﬂEE’J?JHWEE)\RZZDT :

follows:
Within 1 year

oron demand 1to3 years 3to 5years Over 5 years Total
VERSRERR 123% 3558 SENE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT

31 December 2016 RZB-RETZR=1-8
Trade payables 5k 185,577 - - - 185,577
Bils payable ERZE 655,020 - - - 655,020

Financialliabltes included in SAETERRAMERFE
accruals and other payables MeRak 855,875 - - - 855,875
Due to related companies EREELTHE 4391 s s s 4391
Loan from anon-controling interest FERERE 27,924 = 84,901 = 112,825

Interest-bearing bank and HERARAMER
other borrowings 823459 2,551,195 1,548,619 - 4929873
Bonds payable ENRARS 205,522 660,933 - - 866,455
2,757,768 3,218,728 1,633,520 - 7,610,016
|

31 December 2015 R-E-RF+-F=t-H
Trade payables BIRMTR 140229 - - - 140229
Bils payable ERZE 998,738 - - - 998,738

Financialliabltes included in STAETERREMERZE
accruals and other payables MERAR 918144 - - - 918144
Due to related companies EREELTHE 8805 - - - 8805

Interest-bearing bank and HESTRARES

other borrowings %1727 2407348 483211 1,386,381 5238667
Bonds payable ENRERS - 921498 - - 921498

3007643 3328846 48321 1,386,381 8226081
|
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43. B EREEBEERBER (E)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(c)  INTEREST RATE RISK 0  FI=EEPk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the
Group's financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily from its loans and borrowings subject to a floating
interest rate.

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS FOR INTEREST RATE RISK

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Group does not account for fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the
reporting date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

For variable rate financial assets and liabilities, the Group has determined
the carrying amounts of cash and short-term deposits based on their
notional amounts, which reasonably approximate to their fair values
because these are mostly short-term in nature or are repriced frequently.
For interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, a change in interest rate at
the reporting date would increase/(decrease) profit or loss by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular
foreign currency rates, remain constant.

MEREBRAARESRTANAFEIR
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43, BIBEMEEEERBER (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
() INTEREST RATE RISK (CONTINUED) © F=ERp(E)
SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS FOR INTEREST RATE RISK (CONTINUED) FERBRBURE DT (E)
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments (continued) JEETABEZ nE R R (E)
2016 2015
Increase in —E—REF —E—RHF
basis points RMB’'000 RMB'000
EHIh ARET T ARETIT
Interest expense FERX
RMB AREE 10 (2,041) (3,094)
usD ETT 10 (357) (243)
Interest income FBUA
RMB AREE 10 425 487
usD E 10 7 7
I
(d)  FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK d) SNER

The Group holds cash and cash equivalents and interest-bearing bank ~ ANEEFFFAINEHENR € MR EE B
borrowings denominated in foreign currencies for working capital AT BRITERIELEE SRS - NH
4t

purposes. At the end of the reporting period, these foreign currency net  REIR @ ZEUINEEEHFEE (&
assets/(liabilities) (mainly in SGD, USD and Hong Kong dollars (‘HKD") areas &) (EZR&#F T - Ex KRBT H

follows: T

2016 2015

—E-XF —E—hF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%TR ARETFT

SGD T 161 161
usD ETT (412,482) (381,154)
HKD BT 5,284 69
(407,037) (380,924)

I
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 43. BiBURMEEHZERBEK (#)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)  FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK (CONTINUED) (d)  SMNERER (&)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible &R B R A H At 7] & A =R 5 T2

change in the SGD, USD and HKD exchange rates (against RMB), with all T » REERF (2 0BRTIE R ) 37

other variables held constant, on the Group's profit, net of tax and equity.

PIETT « ETTRIBTL GLARE) EEH
AR BB B -

2016 2015
—E—RE —E-hE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT
SGD - strengthened 5% (2015:5%) ¥ T — 858 5% (ZZF—FRF : 5%) 8 8
— weakened 5% (2015: 5%) — 8555% (=2 —hF : 5%) (8) ©)
USD - strengthened 2% (2015:2%) 57T — 1858 2% (ZF— 1% : 2%) (8,250) (7,623)
- weakened 2% (2015: 2%) — #552% (ZF—T1%F : 2%) 8,250 7,623
HKD - strengthened 1% (2015:1%) 7T — 1% (ZZE—hF : 1%) 53 1
—weakened 1% (2015: 1%) — E551%(ZF—1%F : 1%) (53) O
L]

44, CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 44, EXREE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard Z’»‘g HENLHMEAREERESREEE R

the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy

capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’

value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders
or issue new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2016
and 31 December 2015

As disclosed in note 34, subsidiaries of the Group are required by the Wholly
Foreign Owned Enterprise Law of the PRC to contribute to and maintain
a non-distributable statutory reserve fund whose utilisation is subject to
approval by the relevant PRC authorities. This externally imposed capital
requirement has been complied with by these subsidiaries for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.
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The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt includes a loan from a non-
controlling interest, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, bonds
payable, trade and bills payables, amount due to related companies,
accruals and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents, and pledged
time deposits. Capital includes equity attributable to owners of the parent
less the statutory reserve fund. The Group's policy is to keep the gearing

ratio below 90%.

AEBEREEABLXRERESN  BE
BELESAEFERABERNNAEF
e REFHEeRFERERENR R
RITREAMER - BNREES  BEH/E
MRBERENZEE - BNREQRFEA -
fERtERMEMENFR - BRE MRS
FEVICERERFNR EABRER
AEEANEIEEDBEERES - A5H
HVBR R#ER 0% A THEEREL X -

2016 2015

= i

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ T ARETFT

Trade payables B 5 R RIE 185,577 140,229
Bills payable ER IR 655,020 998,738
Accruals and other payables FEET B R R E A IR 1,422,739 1,310,389
Due to related companies FEfTRE A R T 4,391 8,805
Loan from a non-controlling interest IR ERE R 100,000 -
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTEERIT R E AR 4,357,542 4,458,951
Bonds payable ERREGES 800,000 800,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents R BeEMReEEY (512,806) (581,355)
Pledged time deposits e EEEN (226,349) (397,884)

Net debt BEFR 6,786,114 6,737,873
Equity attributable to owners of the parent RIS AL 3,035,787 3,001,017
Less: Statutory reserve fund B OETERER (285,412) (275,880)
Adjusted capital KREER 2,750,375 2,725,137
Capital and net debt BEXMBETFE 9,536,489 9,463,010
Gearing ratio BEXRBELE 71.16% 71.20%
L]
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 45. D TR EIFEAR R R

COMPANY

REREHRE BARR R BN & &R
T

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2016 2015
—E-RE —E-RE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARETFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries NN IEVNGIE ey 1,446,355 1,340,000
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 4,185 3,680
Due from a subsidiary FEB BB A R IA 219,400 220938
Prepayments TERTFRIA 318 318
Cash and cash equivalents Re kESEED 13,034 22628
Total current assets MBVEEERE 236,937 247,564
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accruals and other payables FEET B A R H A R 508 9,270 11,303
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHERITREMIEK 243,619 285,873
Total current liabilities MENE(EERE 252,889 297,176
Net current liabilities FmEAE (15,952) (49612)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BREERRBEE 1,430,403 1,290,388
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FTESRIT REM AR 176,800 -
Net assets EEE 1,253,603 1,290,388
]
EQUITY R
Share capital &N 881,124 881,124
Convertible bonds ARRES 322,436 322,436
Reserves G 50,043 86,828
Total equity B 1,253,603 1,290,388
|
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45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

45. ADTBWIBRRE (&)

i

AAFRRHERENT

Available-
for-sale
investment
revaluation
Convertible reserve Retained
bonds AHHE profits Total
AR ES RESHFHE RER =R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR¥T T ARBT AR¥T T
At 1 January 2015 NZE—hE—HA—H 322436 1,097 69,505 393,038
Profit for the year REF A - - 91919 91919
Other comprehensive income REEHEMEEMPA
for the year:
Change in fair value of an AHHERENTEEZS)
available-for-sale investment - (1,097) - (1,097)
Total comprehensive income REEEEBAERE
for the year - (1,097) 91,919 90,822
Convertible bonds interest RIRRE S FB 14,596 - (14,596) -
Payment of convertible bonds S ATHRAR &5 F1. &
interest (14,596) - - (14,596)
Final 2014 dividend declared EER_ZEFERABE - - (60,000) (60,000)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—R%F
+=-A=+—~H 322436 - 86,828 409,264
|
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—HA—H 322,436 - 86,828 409,264
Profit for the year NSl - - 60,306 60,306
Other comprehensive income  FREMZEWA :
for the year:
Change in fair value of an AHEERE
available-for-sale investment NEEE) - 505 - 505
Total comprehensive income REREEEBRALRE
for the year = 505 60,306 60,811
Convertible bonds interest AR ESFLE 14,596 = (14,596) =
Payment of convertible bonds X AT ESF B
interest (14,596) - - (14,596)
Final 2015 dividend declared BESR-E—RAFERARE = = (83,000) (83,000)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RF
+=—A=+—H 322,476 505 49,538 372,479
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46. INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Percentage of
registration and
operations

o A 1t B

Nominal value of
registered capital

HAfEAEE

46. HEMBATEHN
ARFHBA RGBT

Place of equity
interest attributable
to the Company
AN EIFEAG
REEDL

Direct Indirect

H#EZ L3

Principal activities

Henan Xinlianxin
Fertiliser Co,, Ltd.* #

A RO EAE
BRAR]

PRC/Mainland China
R R E

RMB1,446,355,200
AR
1,446,355,200 7T

100% -

Manufacture and trading
of urea, compound
fertiliser, methanol,
liquid ammonia and
ammonia solution

HENMHERE
EER - BfE -
BEER RRAR

Henan Shoulashou PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
Fertiliser Co, Ltd.*® BB AR 1,0000007T e

A EFRFAR
BIRAA] e

Xinjiang Xinlianxin Energy PRC/Mainland China RMB1,185,000,000 - 7890%  Investment holding,
Chemicals Co, Ltd*® R B AR manufacture and
(note a) 1,185,000,000 7T trading of urea and
("Xinjiang XLX") compound fertiliser

i oEL R T KEERR - B
AR~ A (fizEa) NMIHERE
([ D) REalk

Manas Tianli Coal Co, Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB65,000,000 - 7890%  Coal mining and sales
(“Tianli"y*e BB AR 65000000 7T of coal

INETR I BEREFAER S B K S
BREFAT
(TRF L) e

Manas Tianxin Coal PRC/Mainland China RMB39,550,000 - 7890%  Coal mining and sales
Co, Ltd. (“Tianxin")® R FREAM A RE 39,550,0007T of coal

IS ANHTR IR 2 BEARBFAER S B IR S
BREFRAT
([RAR]) e

Henan Nongxin Fertiliser PRC/Mainland China RMB15,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and trading
Co, Ltd. ("Nongxin")*® REL RN ARES 15,000,000 7T of compound fertiliser

(note ¢)
AR ALEEER AR
(T ]) e (MisEc)

and related products
SLERHEEAN
KAAEER
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Notes to Financial Statements
Eji%ﬁ%% BﬁH 371 December 2016 R —FE—~NF+_-H=4+—H

46. INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 46. BEMEBATEFR (&)
Place of equity
interest attributable
to the Company
A AIELL
REES L
Direct Indirect

=k A

Percentage of
registration and
operations

Nominal value of
registered capital

AMELAEE

Principal activities

ook 2 A 8 1t B

Xinxiang Country PRC/Mainland China RMB106,000,000 - 100%  Leasing of land
Runcheng Trading BB AR 106,000,000 7T HELH
Co,, Ltd.
("Runcheng”)®®
(note b)
MBFEHE S
BRAR(NEH]) e
(FaEDb)
Jiujiang Xinlianxin PRC/Mainland China RMB2,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and trading
Fertiliser Co,, Ltd. FRERERE AR 2,000,000 7T of urea and
(Jiujiang XLX")*@ compound fertiliser
JUT U EMERE SLENHERE
BRATe EEalk
(THT & ) e
Xinlianxin (Jilin) Fertiliser PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and trading
Co, Ltd. (Yilin XLX")*® BB AR 50000007T of urea and
D (B EHE compound fertiliser
AR SUENHERE
(TEMRLED]) e rEalk
The subsidiary is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law. * Z B A AR R B2 A /S
BEEERAA -
e These subsidiaries are established in the PRC and registered under PRC law. e ZEWB A AR B pR S W AR AR A A
Rl
¢ Not audited by Ernst & Young LLP, Singapore or another member firm of the Ernst f AP 3E A Ernst & Young LLP, Singapore 2% %2 7k

BETAN RSP 2B E MK B &5
EBERZ

& Young global network
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46. INFORMATION ABOUT SUBSIDIARIES(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a) During the year, the Group and an independent third party entered into a capital
injection agreement. Pursuant to this agreement, the independent third party
agreed to inject RMB350,000,000 into Xinjiang XLX, of which RMB100,000,000
was contributed as capital reserve. Following the completion of the capital
injection, the Group’s interest in Xinjiang XLX has been diluted from 100% to
approximately 78.90% as at 31 December 2016.

(b) During the year, the Group acquired Runcheng from XLX Chem. Further details of
the Runcheng Acquisition are included in note 35 to the financial statements.

(@} In the prior year, the Group acquired the remaining 49% interest of Nongxin
at a consideration of RMB5,017,000. As a result, the Group owned 100% equity
interest of Nongxin as at 31 December 2015.

47. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 27 March 2017.

46. HEMBIRESR (F])

@) RAEERN  AEBR—ZBIE=77]
SUFEWEE o RIBWIHGE - B E=FH
B E mFELE O E AR 350,000,000
JT - Hep AR 100,000,000 7T E BUR E A
BANGEE - BETTROEE 2% - KT —X
FH+—A=+—8  KAEBERFELEDL
HOREZS T FR 100% HEE = 4 78.90% ©

(b) WAFEER - AEEE 8 MEMETKRE
B o BEBEBKENE - FFBIER
BTSRRI FE 35 -

@) RE—"FE AEEEREARYE
5,017,000 70 U5 B8 2 0 B9 49% 25 © AL -
R-T—RAF+-A=+—8 X&EEHE
AR 100% ALAE

47. HOEBIREEHREK

EXQERN - T—tF=-A-t+tHtE
WIRAE T TSR ©
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Five-Year Financial Summaryf
IEMBENRE

o

VAN 051 AN 5% [ 70 48 25 T 1B R 4F /R VAR
AREMNEERAEME  HREZACET
B RBERIERE

A summary of the consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements, is set out below.

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2016

2015 2014 2013 2012
sl T FE T uE T —E— 4
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NS ARET T ARBTT ARETT ARKTT
RESULTS E
REVENUE A 5,710,698 5,788,181 5,081,748 3,968,946 3,945,584
Cost of sales SHER A (4,687,090) (4,464,611) (4,182,984) (3,221,247) (3,225,942)
Gross profit EAH 1,023,608 1,323,570 898,764 747,699 719,642
Other income and gains HABYA Rz 69,985 80,699 56,272 26,302 29,080
Selling and distribution HE kD HFAX
expenses (435,334) (347,186) (197,946) (82,242) (69,462)
General and administrative —RE AT
expenses (318,612) (317,496) (242,789) (275,984) (202,493)
Other expenses HAbFZ (33,192) (33,181) (10,976) (9,079) (22,387)
Finance costs BEFS AR AR (266,366) (228,190) (218,020) (95,073) (82,359)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BT B 40,089 478216 285,305 311,623 372,021
Income tax expense FiS i (11,054) (69,945) (48,579) (52,230) (61,020)
PROFIT FORTHE YEAR F R T 29,035 408,271 236,726 259,393 311,007
I
Attributable to: AT ALFESR :
Owners of the parent [SYNCIETPE PN 30,120 408,780 240,796 264,052 311,121
Non-controlling interest IEE AR S (1,085) (509) (4,070) (4,659) (120)
29,035 408271 236,726 259,393 311,001
I
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREER
AND NON-CONTROLLING ~ FkiEpRriEss
INTERESTS
TOTAL ASSETS BEE 10,919,995 10,835,284 9,588,469 7,302,884 5,117,217
TOTAL LIABILITIES e G (7,637,034) (7,834,267) (6,915,013) (4,789,033) (2,788,785)
NON-CONTROLLING FEPERR R
INTEREST (247,174) — 1,499 2571) (7,230)
3,035,787 3,001,017 2,674,995 2,551,280 2,321,202
I
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In this annual report, unless the context states otherwise, the following
terms shall have the following meanings:

"AC" or "Audit Committee”

Audit Committee of the Company [EEZEE B ARRNEZZE
=

"AGM" Annual General Meeting of the Company [RERBFERE] B ARANKRERE
FRg

"Board” The Board of Directors =5 B =g

"Companies Act” The Companies Act (Chapter 50) of Singapore NGV 8 FTINEERI S 50

BRAENE

“Company”or“China XLX”  China XLX Fertiliser Ltd. EAVNCII =S s RELEERR

[ B OE D BRAT]
“Constitution” Constitution of the Company [E7E ] B ARAENERE
“Director(s)” Director(s) of the Company [EF] §E AARKESR
"EGM” Extraordinary General Meeting of the [RERFEFRIRE ] ZAN/NSI L) ks
Company RIRE
"FY 2015" The financial year ended 31 December 2015 [ZZ2—RAIK BHE-_T—1F
FE +=ZA=+—H
IEH =
“FY 2016 The financial year ended 31 December 2016 [ ZZ "B HE_Z—XF
FE] +=—A=+—8H
IEHTEREFE
“Group” The Company and its subsidiaries altogether [REE | NN E)E R A
BT
"Henan XLX" Henan Xinlianxin Fertiliser Co., Ltd., a wholly [ m i A E e R
owned subsidiary of the Company BRAR AR
NAEAIMEZEWE
NC]
"HKS" Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of — [77T] B BEETE
Hong Kong g
“Listing Rules” The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities [ Em#RAl] BEAZFTE S B

on the SEHK

D ED

Al
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Glossary

ARER

"Model Code” Model Code for Securities Transactions by [ 1RZ4E<FAI] B LWETAES
Directors of Listed Issuers, Appendix 10 to the EITEFZHE

Listing Rules

ZESFRI(EH
R AIFTEE10)

“NC"or “Nominate Nomination Committee of the Company [REEES B ARFMERZE
Committee” Bg
“PRC” or “China” The People’s Republic of China [ ] H  HEARHNE
“RC" or "Remuneration Remuneration Committee of the Company [(FHEES ] B ARFNFME
Committee” Bg
“RMB" Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC (AR B FEEEE®A
R
"S$” Singapore dollars [ ¥ 7e & FNET
“SEHK” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited [ B 22 P ¥ BAEABEXRFA
BRAR
"SFO" The Securities and Futures Ordinance [BHREEROI] 8 B BEGIFE57
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) EBHFMHPEK
il
"SGX-ST” Singapore Exchange Securities Trading [ ¥ 22 FFr B FNEIERS
Limited FrBBR A R]
“Shareholder(s)" Shareholder(s) of the Company [R5 | & ARANRE
"XLX Chem” Henan Xinlianxin Chemicals Group Co,, Ltd. [NEOMET ] ¥ AELENMET
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